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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS
This Annual Report
p on Form 10-K contains forward-looking
g statements. We intend such forward-looking
g statements
to be covered byy the safe harbor provisions
p
for forward-looking
g statements contained in Section 27A of the
Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange
g Act of 1934. All statements other than statements
of historical facts contained herein, includingg statements regarding
g
g our results of operations;
p
financial pposition and
pperformance; the anticipated
p
impact
p t off the coronavirus COVID-19 pandemic
p
on ourr business; liquidity
q
y and our
abilityy to fund our business operations
p
and initiatives; capital
p
expenditure
p
and debt service obligations;
g
business
strategies,
g
pplans and goals,
g
including
g those related to marketing,
g acquisitions
q
and expansion
p
of our business; product
p
approvals
pp
and plans;
p
industryy trends; expectations
p
regarding
g
g consumer behaviors and trends; our culture and
operating
p
g philosophy;
p
p y human resource management;
g
arrangements
g
with and deliveryy of our services to the
customers; conversion of backlog;
g dividend policy;
p
y legal
g proceedings;
p
g and our objectives
j
for future operations,
p
are
forward-looking
g statements. The words “expect,”
p
“anticipate,”
p
“intend,” “plan,”
p
“believe,” “seek,” “see,” “will,”
“would,” “target,”
g
“likely”,
y and similar expressions
p
are intended to identifyy forward-lookingg statements. Forwardlookingg statements are based largely
g y on our current expectations
p
and pprojections
j
about future events and financial
trends that we believe mayy affect our financial condition, results of operations,
p
business strategy,
gy short-term and
long-term
g
business operations
p
and objectives,
j
and financial needs. These forward-looking
g statements are subject
j to
inherent uncertainties, risks, changes
g in circumstances and other important
p
factors that are difficult to predict.
p
Moreover, we operate
p
in a very
y competitive
p
and rapidly
p y changing
g g environment in which new risks emerge
g from time
to time. It is not ppossible for our management
g
to predict
p
all risks, nor can we assess the impact
p of all important
p
factors on our business or the extent to which anyy factor, or combination of such factors, mayy cause actual results to
differ materiallyy from those contained in any
y forward-looking
g statements we may
y make. In light
g of these risks,
uncertainties and assumptions,
p
the forward-lookingg events and circumstances discussed may
y not occur and our
financial condition and actual results could differ materiallyy and adversely
y from those anticipated
p
or implied
p
in the
forward-looking
g statements. We caution you
y therefore against
g
relying
y g on these forward-lookingg statements. Some
of the important
p
factors that could cause actual results to differ from our expectations
p
include regional,
g
national, or
gglobal political,
p
economic, business, competitive,
p
market and regulatory
g
y conditions and the other important
p
factors
included in this Annual Report
p on Form 10-K in “Item 1A Risk Factors,” “Item 7 Management’s
g
Discussion and
Analysis
y of Financial Condition and Results of Operations,”
p
and “Item 7A Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures
About Market Risk.” We qqualifyy all of our forward-lookingg statements byy these cautionaryy statements. Except
p as
required
q
byy applicable
pp
law, we do not plan
p to ppubliclyy update
p
or revise anyy forward-lookingg statements contained
herein, whether as a result of anyy new information, future events, changed
g circumstances or otherwise. For a further
discussion of the risks relatingg to our business, see “Item 1A Risk Factors” of Part I of this Annual Report
p on Form
10-K.
WEBSITE AND SOCIAL MEDIA DISCLOSURE
We use our website (www.medpace.com)
p
and our corporate
p
Facebook, YouTube, LinkedIn, Vimeo, Instagram
g
and
Twitter accounts as channels of distribution of company
p y information. The information we post
p through
g these
channels mayy be deemed material. Accordingly,
g y investors should monitor these channels, in addition to following
g
our ppress releases, Securities and Exchange
g Commission, or SEC, filings
g and ppublic conference calls and webcasts.
The contents of our website and social media channels are not, however, a part of this report.
TRADEMARKS
We own or have the rights
g to use various trademarks referred to in this Annual Report
p on Form 10-K, including,
g
amongg others, Medpace
p
and ClinTrak and their respective
p
logos.
g Solely
y for convenience, we may
y refer to
trademarks in this Annual Report
p on Form 10-K without the TM and ® symbols.
y
Such references are not intended to
indicate, in anyy way,
y that we will not assert, to the fullest extent ppermitted by
y law, our rights
g to our trademarks.
Other trademarks appearing
pp
g in this Annual Report
p on Form 10-K are the pproperty
p y of their respective
p
owners.
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MARKET AND INDUSTRY INFORMATION
Market data used throughout
g
this Annual Report
p on Form 10-K is based on management’s
g
knowledge
g of the
industryy and the ggood faith estimates of management.
g
All of management’s
g
estimates ppresented herein are based on
industryy sources, including
g analyst
y reports
p
and management’s
g
knowledge.
g We also relied, to the extent available,
upon
p management’s
g
review of independent
p
industry
y surveys
y and ppublications pprepared
p
by
y a number of sources and
other ppublicly
y available information. We are responsible
p
for all of the disclosure in this Annual Report
p on Form 10K and while we believe that each of the ppublications, studies and surveys
y used throughout
g
this Annual Report
p on
Form 10-K are pprepared
p
by
y reputable
p
sources, we have not independently
p
y verified market and industry
y data from
third-party sources.
All of the market data used in this Annual Report
p on Form 10-K involves a number of assumptions
p
and limitations,
and yyou are cautioned not to ggive undue weight
g to such estimates. While we believe the estimated market pposition,
market opportunity
pp
y and market size information included in this Annual Report
p on Form 10-K is ggenerally
y reliable,
such information, which in ppart is derived from management’s
g
estimates and beliefs, is inherentlyy uncertain and
imprecise
p
and has not been verified by
y anyy independent
p
source. Projections,
j
assumptions
p
and estimates of our future
pperformance and the future pperformance of the industryy in which we operate
p
are necessarilyy subject
j to a high
g degree
g
of uncertaintyy and risk due to a varietyy of factors, includingg those described in “Item 1A Risk Factors” of Part I of
this Annual Report
p on Form 10-K and elsewhere in this Annual Report
p on Form 10-K. These and other factors could
cause results to differ materiallyy from those expressed
p
in our estimates and beliefs and in the estimates pprepared
p
by
y
independent parties. See “Forward-Looking Statements” above.
GLOSSARY
We define the terms below that appear throughout this report as follows:
“Large pharmaceutical companies.” Large
g pharmaceutical
p
companies
p
represent
p
the top
p 20 ppharmaceutical
companies by worldwide prescription drug sales as classified by Evaluate Ltd via EvaluatePharma©.
“Mid-sized biopharmaceutical companies.” Mid-sized biopharmaceutical
p
companies
p
represent
p
biopharmaceutical
p
companies
p
with at least $250 million in sales, based on publicly
p
y available data and management’s
g
knowledge,
g that
are not classified as a top 20 pharmaceutical company by Evaluate Ltd via EvaluatePharma©.
“Small biopharmaceutical companies.” Small biopharmaceutical
p
companies
p
represent
p
biopharmaceutical
p
companies that have less than $250 million in sales, based on publicly available data and management’s knowledge.
“Phase I.” Phase I trials are typically
yp
y conducted in healthyy individuals or, on occasion, in patients,
p
and typically
yp
y
involve 20 to 80 subjects
j
and range
g from a few months to several yyears. These trials are designed
g
to establish the
basic safety,
y dose tolerance, absorption,
p
metabolism, distribution and excretion of the clinical product
p
candidate, the
side effects associated with increasingg doses, and if ppossible, early
y evidence of effectiveness. If the trial establishes
the basic safety and metabolism of the clinical product candidate, Phase II trials are generally initiated.
“Phase II.” Phase II trials are conducted in a limited ppopulation
p
of patients
p
with the disease or condition that the
clinical pproduct candidate is intended to treat. These trials typically
yp
y test a few hundred ppatients and last on
average
g 12 to 18 months. Phase II trials are typically
yp
y designed
g
to identify
y possible
p
adverse effects and safetyy risks, to
ppreliminarilyy evaluate the efficacyy of the clinical product
p
candidate for specific
p
targeted
g
diseases or conditions, and
to determine dose tolerance, optimal
p
dosage
g and dosingg schedule. Phase II trials are sometimes divided into two
pphases: Phase IIa trials typically
yp
y evaluate the dose response
p
of the clinical product
p
candidate and Phase IIb trials
typically
yp
y evaluate the efficacyy of the clinical product
p
candidate at the prescribed
p
doses. If the Phase II trials indicate
that the clinical product
p
candidate may
y be safe and effective, Phase III trials are generally
g
y initiated.

-4-

“Phase III.” Phase III trials evaluate the clinical pproduct candidate in significantly
g
y larger
g and more diverse patient
p
ppopulations
p
than Phase I and II trials and are conducted at multiple,
p geographically
g g p
y dispersed
p
sites. On average,
g this
pphase lasts from one to three yyears. Depending
p
g on the size and complexity,
p
y Phase III CRO contracts may
y include
multiple
p sequential
q
trials. Duringg this pphase, the clinical pproduct candidate’s overall benefit/risk ratio and the basis
for pproduct approval
pp
are established. If the clinical pproduct candidate successfully
y completes
p
Phase III, then the
sponsor
p
mayy submit a New Drugg Application,
pp
or NDA, or Biologics
g License Application
pp
for approval
pp
byy the United
States Food and Drugg Administration, or FDA, or a similar marketing
g authorization application
pp
for approval
pp
by
y nonU.S. regulatory agencies.
“Phase IV.” Phase IV or “post-approval”
p
pp
trials are intended to monitor the drug’s
g long-term
g
risks and benefits, to
analyze
y different dosage
g levels, to evaluate different safetyy and efficacy
y pparameters in target
g populations
p p
or to
substantiate marketingg claims. Phase IV trials typically
yp
y enroll thousands of patients
p
and last from six months to
several yyears. The FDA mayy require
q
Phase IV testingg and surveillance programs
p g
to monitor the effect of approved
pp
drugs
g which have been commercialized, and the FDA has the ppower to pprevent or limit further marketingg of a
p
product
based on the results of ppost-marketingg programs.
p g
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Part I
Item 1. Business
Overview
We are one off the world’s leading clinical contractt research organizations, orr CROs, by revenue, solely focused on
providing scientifically-driven outsourced clinical developmentt services to the biotechnology,
gy pharmaceutical
p
and
medical device industries. Ourr mission is to accelerate the global developmentt off safe and effective medical
therapeutics. We differentiate ourselves from ourr competitors by ourr disciplined operating model centered on
providing full-service Phase I-IV clinical developmentt services and ourr therapeutic expertise. We believe this
combination results in timely and cost-effective delivery off clinical developmentt services forr ourr customers. We
believe thatt we are a partnerr off choice forr small and mid-sized biopharmaceutical companies based on ourr abilityy to
consistently utilize ourr full-service, disciplined operating model to deliverr timely and high-quality results forr ourr
customers. Accordingly,
g y ourr business strategy
gy aims to continue to expand
p
ourr markett share in the growing
g
g Phase IIV CRO markett as we conduct clinical trials across all major
j therapeutic
p
areas, with particular
p
strength
g in Oncology,
gy
Metabolic Disease, Cardiology, Antiviral and Anti-infective (AVAI) and Central Nervous System (CNS).
Our Revenues: Markets and Clinical Development Services
Before a new drugg can be commercialized, it often must undergo
g extensive pre-clinical
p
and clinical testingg and
regulatory
g
y review to verifyy safety
y and efficacy.
y CROs pprovide a comprehensive
p
range
g of pproduct development
p
services for Phase I-IV clinical trials. These clinical trials are separated
p
into distinct pphases in order to thoroughly
g y
evaluate the pproduct. We ggenerate our revenues byy providing
p
g a full suite of services supporting
pp
g the entire clinical
development
p
pprocess from Phase I to Phase IV across a wide range
g of therapeutic
p
areas.
Medical Department: Our medical department
p
consists of therapeutic
p
leads who pprovide strategic
g direction
for study
y design
g and planning,
p
g train operational
p
staff, work with pprimary
y investigators,
g
pprovide medical
monitoring and meet with regulatory agencies.
Clinical Trial Management: Our team of clinical trial managers
g (CTMs) lead all aspects
p
of studyy execution
and drive accountabilityy across the functional team members. Our CTMs use ClinTrak, our proprietary
p p
y
information management
g
system
y
for clinical trials, which is integrated
g
with our standard operating
p
g
procedures (“SOPs”), allowing the CTMs to access real-time study metrics.
Data-Driven Feasibility: Our dedicated feasibilityy team of clinical experts
p
analyze
y specific
p
pprotocols, using
g
many data sources to determine countries and sites that are most appropriate for the study.
Study Start-Up: Our gglobal Study
y Start-Upp staff conducts trial start upp activities, includingg studyy
documentation submission pprocesses to independent
p
Institutional Review Boards, or IRBs, ethics
committees and to ex-US competent
p
authorities. Our studyy start-upp team includes fully
y dedicated budget
g
and legal associates to ensure focused negotiations and execution of site contracts.
Patient Recruitment and Retention: We navigate
g the complexities
p
of patient
p
recruitment and retention by
y
pproviding
g strategic
g solutions that address clinical program
p g
needs. Our ppatient recruitment and retention
department
p
identify
y ppatient motivators and anyy potential
p
barriers to join
j
and remain in the clinical research
study.
Clinical Monitoring: Our clinical research associates, or CRAs, pprovide site management
g
services
includingg in-house, onsite and virtual monitoring.
g Their knowledge
g of local regulations
g
and laws, in
addition to Good Clinical Practice, or GCP, and International Council on Harmonisation of Technical
Requirements
q
for Registration
g
of Pharmaceuticals for Human Use, or ICH, gguidelines ensure compliance
p
and data qquality.
y CRAs report
p into a global
g
matrix structure and receive comprehensive,
p
hands-on trainingg
in an individualized curriculum consistingg of in-house and field-based training,
g supplemented
pp
with clinical
research department
p
core rotations and ongoing
g g study-specific
y p
training.
g
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Risk-Based Monitoring: We support
pp a comprehensive
p
approach
pp
to monitoring
g to ensure adequate
q
pprotection
of the rights,
g
welfare, and safety
y of human subjects
j
and the qquality
y and integrity
g y of the study.
y This approach
pp
focuses on pprevention and mitigation
g
of important
p
and likely
y risks and is part
p of the overarching
g
surveillance utilized to manage studies.
Regulatory Affairs: We pprovide expert
p strategic,
g operational,
p
and tactical regulatory
g
y gguidance, and create
thorough
g scientifically-grounded
yg
regulatory
g
y compliant
p
documentation at each stage
g of the drugg and
biologics development process to regulatory agencies around the globe.
Medical Writing: Medical writers work closelyy with our medical experts,
p
biostatisticians, and other
members of the studyy team to develop
p studyy protocols,
p
clinical and statistical study
y reports,
p
and integrated
g
submission documents accordingg to regulatory
g
y guidelines.
g
Biometrics and Data Sciences: We pprovide high-quality
g q
y data collected duringg clinical trials that supports
pp
regulatory
g
y submissions, including
g NDAs or Biologics
g License Application
pp
for approval
pp
by
y the FDA, or a
similar marketingg authorization application
pp
for approval
pp
byy non-U.S. regulatory
g
y agencies.
g
Our data science
team develops
p detailed specifications
p
for the collection, organization,
g
validation, analysis
y and quality
q
y
control of clinical trial data. Our biostatisticians pprovide trial design
g consulting,
g statistical methodology
gy
recommendations, programming expertise and reporting accuracy.
Pharmacovigilance: Our safetyy and pharmacovigilance
p
g
ggroup
p collects, evaluates, analyzes
y
and reports
p
safetyy information. We provide
p
gglobal adverse event management,
g
pphysician
y
reviewed safety
y narrative
writingg and custom safety
y surveillance.
Core Laboratory: Our core laboratoryy services include both imaging
g g services and cardiovascular core
laboratoryy services. We ppartner with imaging
g g experts
p
from major
j academic and clinical institutions
involved in research to pprovide image
g readingg in a secure environment utilizing
g identical software and
workstations integrated
g
into ClinTrak allowing
g for prompt
p
p turnaround and oversight.
g Our cardiovascular
core laboratory provides state of the art standardized electrocardiogram services and data analysis.
Central Laboratory: Our Central Laboratoryy operates
p
in four locations, includingg Cincinnati, Ohio; Leuven,
Belgium;
g
Shanghai,
g
China; and Singapore.
g p
The Central Laboratory
y has longstanding
g
g core competency
p
y in
specialized
p
esoteric testing,
g includingg biomarkers for efficacyy in addition to standard assayy offerings.
g We
also pprovide biorepository
p
y services offering
g solutions for comprehensive
p
specimen
p
life cycle
y management,
g
and molecular and ggenetic testingg for detection of pathogenic
p
g
events at the genome
g
level includingg viral
load and viral shedding.
Bioanalytical Laboratory. Our Bioanalytical
y
Laboratory
y is located on our clinical research campus
p in
Cincinnati, Ohio. Workingg in a Good Laboratoryy Practice compliant
p
settingg followingg FDA and European
p
Medicines Agency,
g y or EMA, guidelines,
g
the Bioanalytical
y
Laboratoryy delivers method transfer,
development,
p
validation, sample
p analysis
y and metabolite screening
g and identification of ppre-clinical and
clinical biological
g
samples
p with expertise
p
in developing
p g pproprietary,
p
y highly
g y scientific, esoteric and sensitive
tests for small and large molecules.
Clinics: Our clinics conduct studies in normal healthyy volunteers, special
p
ppopulations,
p
and ppatient
populations over a spectrum of diseases and is located on our clinical research campus in Cincinnati, Ohio.
Quality Assurance: Our qqualityy assurance team works closelyy with study
y teams to ensure compliance
p
with
pprotocols, SOPs and regulatory
g
y guidelines
g
to ultimatelyy protect
p
research subject
j safetyy as well as the
integrity
g y and validity
y of studyy data. Our quality
q
y assurance team also provides
p
services including
g regulatory
g
y
training,
g internal system
y
audits, SOP oversight,
g hosting
g of audits and regulatory
g
y inspections,
p
as well as
p
performs
third pparty
y audits of critical vendors and investigative
g
sites on behalf of our customers.
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Customers
We have a well-diversified, attractively-positioned
yp
customer base that includes small biopharmaceutical
p
companies,
p
mid-sized biopharmaceutical companies and large pharmaceutical companies.
We have in the ppast and may
y in the future enter into arrangements
g
with our customers or other drug,
g biologic
g or
medical device companies
p
in which we take on ppayment
y
risk by
y making
g strategic
g investments in our customers or
other drugg companies,
p
providing
p
g flexible payment
p y
terms or fee financing
g to customers or other companies,
p
or
entering into other risk sharing arrangements on trial execution.
For a discussion of our net new business awards and backlog,
g see Item 7. “Management’s
g
Discussion and Analysis
y
of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—New
p
Business Awards and Backlog”
g of Part II of this Annual
Report on Form 10-K.
Sales and Marketing
We employ
p y an integrated
g
sales and marketingg team to sell our services to biotechnology,
gy pharmaceutical
p
and
medical device companies.
p
The team consists of pprofessional business development
p
representatives
p
focused on
securingg business from both new and existingg customers, through
g a consultative and strategic
g sales approach.
pp
We
embed our medical and scientific experts
p
from the beginning
g
g of the sales pprocess when we first engage
g g ppotential
customers.
As ppart of our sales strategy,
gy our team focuses on a customer segmentation
g
model. Our team targets
g and engages
g g
customers in our addressable market, matches customer characteristics with therapeutic
p
fit and maintains a mindset
of full-service outsourcing.
g Our structured and disciplined
p
approach
pp
facilitates strong
g account evaluation, which
results in increased focus by
y the sales team, the development
p
of effective and productive
p
territories, the management
g
of sales force effectiveness and the creation of a pprocess wherebyy both marketingg and sales operate
p
under the same
guiding principles.
We consult collaboratively
y with our customers and help
p optimize
p
timely
y completion
p
of their clinical trials and
pprograms,
g
in part,
p
because we engage
g g our therapeutic
p
experts,
p
regulatory
g
y affairs experts
p
and operations
p
team
throughout
g
the clinical trial process.
p
Our sales team is then able to take the study
y design,
g regulatory
g
y pplan and
execution pplan discussed up
p front and carry
y that through
g to the pproposal
p
and provide
p
a final concept
p during
g one-onone customer discussions and final CRO evaluations.
Our marketingg team supports
pp
the business development
p
function in three keyy areas, ggenerating
g brand awareness
through
g customized campaigns
p g and web-site development,
p
conference pplanningg and lead ggeneration through
g market
research and business intelligence
g
analysis.
y
All of our sales and marketing
g data are housed within a third ppartyy
customer relationshipp management
g
tool that provides
p
us the analytics
y
we need to make sales pplanning
g and sales
management decisions.
Competition
We compete
p primarily
p
y against
g
other full-service CROs as well as services provided
p
byy in-house research and
development,
p
or R&D, departments
p
of biopharmaceutical
p
companies.
p
Our major
j CRO competitors
p
include
Laboratoryy Corporation
p
of America Holdings,
g ICON pplc, Syneos
y
Health, Inc., PAREXEL International Corporation,
p
PPD, Inc., PRA Health Sciences, Inc., IQVIA Holdings Inc. and numerous specialty and regional CROs.
We ggenerally
y compete
p on the basis of a number of factors, including
g experience
p
within specific
p
therapeutic
p
areas,
qqualityy of staff and services, reliability,
y range
g of provided
p
services, ability
y to recruit pprincipal
p investigators
g
and
ppatients into studies expeditiously,
p
y abilityy to organize
g
and manage
g large-scale,
g
global
g
clinical trials, gglobal presence
p
with strategically
g
y located facilities, speed
p
to completion,
p
pprice and overall value. We believe we compete
p effectivelyy
with our competitors
p
across these factors, particularly
p
y due to our full-service operating
p
g model, our deepp therapeutic
p
expertise
p
in areas that are among
g the largest,
g
most complex
p and fastest ggrowing
g in ppharmaceutical development,
p
our
gglobal platform
p
and our experienced
p
and committed management
g
team. However, some of our competitors
p
have
ggreater financial resources and a wider range
g of service offerings
g over a greater
g
geographic
g g p area than we do, which
could put
p us at a competitive
p
disadvantage
g with respect
p to these competitors.
p
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The CRO industryy remains fragmented,
g
with several hundred smaller, narrowly
y focused service providers
p
and a
small number of full-service companies
p
with gglobal capabilities.
p
We believe there are significant
g
barriers to others
becomingg a global
g
provider
p
offeringg a broad range
g of services and products
p
includingg the cost and experience
p
necessaryy to develop
p strongg therapeutic
p
areas, expertise
p
to manage
g complex
p clinical pprograms,
g
infrastructure to
support
pp large
g global
g
programs,
p g
ability
y to deliver high-quality
g q
y services and expertise
p
required
q
to pprepare
p regulatory
g
y
submissions in numerous jurisdictions.
Government Regulation
Development of Drugs, Biologics and Medical Devices
The development
p
of drugs,
g biologics
g and medical devices is highly
g y regulated
g
in the United States and other
countries. Our services are subject
j to varying
y g regulatory
g
y requirements
q
designed
g
to ensure the quality
q
y and integrity
g y of
the ppre-clinical and clinical trial pprocess. In the United States, the FDA has pprimary
y authority
y to regulate
g
these
activities, in addition to the approval
pp
process,
p
and the subsequent
q
manufacturing,
g safety,
y labeling,
g storage,
g record
keeping
p g and marketing
g for these pproducts, which are the responsibility
p
y of our customers. Before a marketingg
application
pp
for a drugg is readyy for submission to regulatory
g
y authorities, the candidate drugg must often undergo
g
rigorous
g
testing
g in clinical trials. In the United States, these trials must be conducted in accordance with the Federal
Food, Drug,
g and Cosmetic Act, its implementing
p
g regulations,
g
and other federal and state requirements
q
that require
q
the drugg to be tested and studied in certain ways
y prior
p
to approval.
pp
The FDA has similar authority
y and requirements
q
with respect
p to the clinical testingg of biological
g
pproducts and medical devices. Before a human clinical trial may
y
begin
g in the United States, the manufacturer or sponsor
p
of the clinical pproduct candidate must file an Investigational
g
New Drugg Application,
pp
or IND, with the FDA, which contains, among
g other things,
g the results of ppre-clinical tests,
manufacturer information and other analytical
y
data. A separate
p
submission to an existing
g IND must also be made for
each successive clinical trial conducted duringg pproduct development.
p
Each clinical trial must be conducted pursuant
p
to, and in accordance with, an effective IND. Each human clinical trial we conduct is subject
j to the oversight
g of an
IRB, which is an independent
p
committee that has the regulatory
g
y authority
y to review, approve
pp
and monitor a clinical
trial for which the IRB has responsibility.
p
y The FDA and IRB receive reports
p
on the progress
p g
of each phase
p
of clinical
testingg and may
y require
q
the modification, suspension,
p
or termination of clinical trials if, among
g other things,
g an
unreasonable risk is ppresented to ppatients or if the design
g of the trial is insufficient to meet its stated objective.
j
In
addition, information about certain clinical trials must be made ppublicly
y available on the federal ggovernment
website, www.clinicaltrials.gov.
In the United States, GCP regulations
g
ggovern the design,
g conduct, performance,
p
monitoring,
g auditing,
g recording,
g
analysis,
y
and reporting
p
g of clinical trials. In order to comply
p y with GCP and other requirements,
q
we must, amongg other
things:
g

comply with specific requirements governing the selection of qualified principal investigators and
clinical research sites;

obtain specific written commitments from principal investigators;

obtain IRB review and approval and supervision of the clinical trials by an independent review board or
ethics committee;

obtain a favorable opinion from regulatory agencies to commence a clinical trial;

verify that appropriate patient informed consents are obtained before the patient participates in a clinical
trial;

ensure that adverse drug reactions resulting from the administration of a drug or biologic during a
clinical trial are medically evaluated and reported in a timely manner;

monitor the validity and accuracy of data;

monitor drug or biologic accountability at clinical research sites; and

verify that principal investigators and clinical trial staff maintain records and reports and permit
appropriate governmental authorities access to data for review.
Clinical trials conducted outside the United States are subject
j to the laws and regulations
g
of the countryy where the
trials are conducted. These laws and regulations
g
may
y or may
y not be similar to the laws and regulations
g
administered
by
y the FDA and other laws and regulations
g
regarding
g
g the protection
p
of patient
p
safetyy and privacy
p
y and the control of
clinical trial ppharmaceuticals, medical devices or other clinical trial materials. Within the EU, these requirements
q
are
enforced byy the EMA and requirements
q
may
y varyy slightly
g y from one member state to another. In Canada, clinical
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trials are regulated
g
byy the Health Products and Food Branch of Health Canada as well as pprovincial regulations.
g
Similar requirements
q
also apply
pp y in other jjurisdictions, includingg countries outside the EU and countries in Asia and
Latin America where we operate
p
or where our customers mayy intend to apply
pp y for marketingg authorization. Clinical
trials conducted outside the United States also mayy be subject
j to FDA regulation
g
if the clinical trials are conducted
ppursuant to an IND or an Investigational
g
Device Exemption
p
for a product
p
candidate that will seek FDA approval
pp
or
clearance. In addition, clinical trial sponsors follow ICH E6 guidelines as a principle for GCP.
The clinical trial customer and the pparties conductingg the clinical trials share in responsibilities
p
to ensure that all
applicable
pp
legal
g and regulatory
g
y requirements
q
are fulfilled. Manyy of the functions we regularly
g
y perform
p
in the conduct
of clinical trials subject
j us directly
y to regulations
g
(e.g.,
g compliance
p
with GCP), and in some circumstances, we will
take on legal
g and regulatory
g
y responsibility
p
y either through
g a transfer of obligations
g
to us from our clinical trial
customers or our actingg as local legal
g representative
p
for certain of our clinical trial customers. We mayy be subject
j to
regulatory
g
y action if we fail to comply
p y with these requirements.
q
Failure to comply
p y with certain regulations
g
mayy also
result in the termination of ongoing
g g research and disqualification
q
of data collected during
g the clinical trials. For
example,
p violations of GCP could result, depending
p
g on the nature of the violation and the type
yp of pproduct involved,
in the issuance of a warningg letter, suspension
p
or termination of a clinical trial, refusal of the FDA to approve
pp
clinical trial or marketingg applications
pp
or withdrawal of such applications,
pp
injunction,
j
seizure of investigational
g
pproducts, civil penalties,
p
criminal prosecutions
p
or debarment from assistingg in the submission of new drugg
applications.
pp
See “Item 1A. Risk Factors—Risks Relating
g to Our Business—If we fail to pperform our services in
accordance with contractual requirements,
q
government
g
regulations
g
and ethical considerations, we could be subject
j to
significant
g
costs or liabilityy and our reputation
p
could be adverselyy affected” of Part I of this Annual Report
p on
Form 10-K.
We monitor our clinical trials to test for compliance
p
with applicable
pp
laws and regulations
g
in the United States and
the foreign
g jurisdictions
j
in which we operate.
p
We have adopted
p SOPs that are designed
g
to satisfyy regulatory
g
y
requirements
q
and serve as a mechanism for controllingg and enhancing
g the quality
q
y of our clinical trials. In the United
States, our procedures were developed to ensure compliance with GCP and associated requirements.
Health Information Privacy
The confidentialityy of personal
p
health information, includingg patient-specific
p
p
information collected duringg clinical
trials, is heavilyy regulated
g
in the United States and other countries. The U.S. Department
p
of Health and Human
Services has ppromulgated
g
rules under the Health Insurance Portability
y and Accountabilityy Act of 1996, as amended
by
y the Health Information Technology
gy for Economic and Clinical Health Act of 2009 and their implementing
p
g
regulations,
g
including
g the Privacy
y and Security
y Rules, or collectively,
y HIPAA, that ggovern the use, handling
g and
disclosure of ppersonallyy identifiable medical information. These regulations
g
also establish pprocedures for the
exercise of an individual’s rights
g and the methods ppermissible for de-identification of health information. HIPAA
applies
pp
to “covered entities,” which include certain types
yp of healthcare providers,
p
as well as service pproviders to
covered entities which access pprotected health information, known as “business associates.” Two of our subsidiaries,
Medpace
p
Clinical Pharmacology,
gy LLC and C-MARC, LLC, are covered entities under HIPAA. Further, manyy
investigators
g
with whom we are involved in clinical trials are also directly
y subject
j to HIPAA as covered entities.
There are instances where we mayy be considered a business associate of a covered entity
y investigator,
g
and we have
signed
g
business associate agreements
g
with some investigators.
g
If we are determined to be a business associate, we
would be directly
y liable for anyy breaches of pprotected health information and other HIPAA violations. We are also
liable contractually
y under any
y business associate agreements
g
we have signed
g
with covered entities. In addition, we
are also subject
j to privacy
p
y legislation
g
in Canada under the federal Personal Information Protection and Electronic
Documents Act, the Act Respecting
p
g the Protection of Personal Information in the Private Sector and the Personal
Health Information Protection Act and pprivacyy legislation
g
in the EU under the 95/46/EC Privacyy Directive on the
pprotection and free movement of ppersonal data, as replaced
p
byy the General Data Protection Regulation
g
from earlyy
2018 onwards. See “Item 1A. Risk Factors—Risks Relatingg to Our Industry—Current
y
and proposed
p p
laws and
regulations
g
regarding
g
g the protection
p
of personal
p
data could result in increased risks of liability
y or increased cost to us
or could limit our service offerings” of Part I of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
Health Industry Arrangements
The conduct of ppre-clinical and clinical trials mayy be subject
j to laws and regulations
g
that are intended to pprevent the
misuse of government
g
healthcare pprogram
g
funding.
g In the United States, these laws include, among
g others, the False
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Claims Act, which pprohibits submitting
g or causing
g the submission of false statements or improper
p p claims for
ggovernment healthcare program
p g
payments;
p y
and the Anti-Kickback statute, which pprohibits ppaying,
y g offeringg to pay
p y or
receivingg payment
p y
with the intent to induce the referral of services or items that are covered under a federal
healthcare program. Violations of these laws and regulations may incur administrative, civil, and criminal penalties.
Environmental Regulation and Liability
We are subject
j to various laws and regulations
g
relatingg to the pprotection of the environment and human health and
safetyy in the countries in which we do business, including
g laws and regulations
g
ggoverning
g the management
g
and
disposal
p
of hazardous substances and wastes, the cleanup
p of contaminated sites and the maintenance of a safe
workplace.
p
Our operations
p
include the use, ggeneration and disposal
p
of hazardous materials and medical wastes. We
may,
y in the future, incur liability
y under environmental statutes and regulations
g
for contamination of sites we own or
operate
p
(including
g contamination caused by
y prior
p
owners or operators
p
of such sites), the off-site disposal
p
of
hazardous substances and for ppersonal injuries
j
or property
p p y damage
g arisingg from exposure
p
to hazardous materials
from our operations.
p
We believe that we have been and are in substantial compliance
p
with all applicable
pp
environmental laws and regulations
g
and that we currentlyy have no liabilities under such environmental requirements
q
that could reasonably be expected to materially harm our business, results of operations or financial condition.
Intellectual Property
We developp and use a number of proprietary
p p
y methodologies,
g
analytics,
y
systems,
y
technologies
g and other intellectual
pproperty
p y in the conduct of our business. We relyy upon
p a combination of confidentialityy policies,
p
nondisclosure
agreements
g
and other contractual arrangements
g
to protect
p
our trade secrets, and copyright
py g and trademark laws to
pprotect other intellectual property
p p y rights.
g
We have obtained or applied
pp
for trademarks and copyright
py g protection
p
in the
United States and in a number of foreign
g countries. Our material trademarks include Medpace
p
and ClinTrak.
Although
g the duration of trademark registrations
g
varies from countryy to country,
y trademarks generally
g
y mayy be
renewed indefinitelyy so longg as they
y are in use and/or their registrations
g
are pproperly
p y maintained, and so long
g as they
y
have not been found to have become generic.
Human Capital
As of December 31, 2020 we had approximately 3,600 employees located across 39 countries. As of December 31,
2019 and 2018, we had approximately 3,500 and 2,900 employees, respectively. Our associates are our most
important asset and we recognize the importance of motivating and rewarding our associates by providing them with
competitive benefits as part of their overall compensation and benefits package. We have developed comprehensive
benefits packages that deliver quality and value while satisfying the diverse needs of our workforce and meeting
local market requirements and expectations.
Attracting,
g developing,
p g retaining
g and advancing
g talent at all levels at Medpace
p
is a key
y component
p
to sustaining
g our
organic
g
ggrowth and continuingg our mission. We strive to maintain a culture of diversityy and inclusion in which
ppeople
p from all backgrounds
g
can fullyy contribute to the growth
g
and success of our business. As such, we are
committed to maintainingg a respectful
p
work environment, pprovidingg equal
q opportunity
pp
y and the fair treatment of all
individuals on the basis of merit, without regard
g
for gender,
g
race, color, creed, religion,
g
familyy status, age,
g national
origin
g or ancestry,
y physical
p y
or mental disability,
y medical condition, veteran status, citizenship,
p sexual orientation,
ggender identity,
y or anyy other protected
p
group
g p status. Anti-discrimination, anti-harassment and anti-retaliation
ppolicies are applicable
pp
to all employees
p y
and are set forth in the Medpace
p
Code of Conduct. All employees
p y
are
responsible
p
for upholding
p
g the Medpace
p
Code of Conduct, which forms the foundation of our personnel
p
and ethics
p
policies
and practices.
p
We have developed a strong record of hiring and developing women at all levels of the organization. Approximately
68% of our employees globally are women representing 65% of management and 51% of director level and above
positions. In addition, of our U.S. based employees, approximately 17% are non-white, including 12% of
management. None of our US employees are currently covered by a collective bargaining agreement specific to our
Company.
Our Commitment to compliance, people, safety, communities and the environment is further described in our 20192020 Corporate Responsibility Report published on our website. That Report is not part of this annual report on
Form 10-K.
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Recruitment and Retention
The success of our business depends
p
upon
p our abilityy to attract and retain qualified
q
professional,
p
scientific and
technical staff. The level of competition
p
amongg employers
p y in the United States and ggloballyy for skilled personnel,
p
pparticularlyy for those with Ph.D., M.D. or equivalent
q
degrees
g
or training,
g is high.
g We believe that our brand
recognition
g
and our multinational presence
p
are advantages
g in attracting
g qqualified candidates. We also believe that the
wide range
g of clinical trials in which we pparticipate
p allows us to offer broad experience
p
to clinical researchers. Our
disciplined
p
and centralized approach
pp
to hiring,
g training,
g and development
p
of employees
p y
has fostered, and we believe
will continue to foster, strongg employee
p y loyalty.
y y Retention of experienced
p
employees
p y
is important
p
to maintaining
g our
g
growth
and our high
g quality
q
y of service over time.
As our associates develop knowledge and skills that will contribute to the wider Medpace mission and business
success, we believe in rewarding strong performance with compensatory and non-compensatory recognition. We
have a robust career path and compensation structure that acknowledges associate performance and development at
all levels of the organization. Of the 262 management-level roles that were newly filled in 2020, approximately 55%
of these roles were filled by our pipeline of internal talent.
Development
We have a history of identifying talented individuals and training them to excel in our disciplined operating model.
Dedicated training and development teams are focused on creating, facilitating, and evaluating the success of
training programs across functional areas. We have invested in the development and implementation of a global
learning management system which is universally used to record regulatory compliance, capture attendance at
instructor led training sessions, deliver online training content, proctor online exams, and to facilitate other training
activities.
Safety
Safetyy is at the core of Medpace’s
p
mission. We have a robust incident reporting
p
g pprocedure for work-related injuries
j
and illnesses and our lab operations
p
follow all additional Health and Safetyy requirements.
q
Our facilities are equipped
q pp
with access control systems
y
to maintain pproper
p pphysical
y
security
y for our associates and company
p y assets, as well as
on-site securityy personnel
p
in keyy offices. In addition to pphysical
y
security,
y we have pprograms
g
and trainingg in pplace for
First Aid, CPR and Fire Wardens for safe evacuations. We are pproud of our extremelyy low incident rates and remain
committed to continuously
y monitoring
g campusp and ppolicy-related
y
measures that can be incorporated
p
in order to
further reduce risk for our associates.
Additional information is available in our Corporate
p
Responsibility
p
y Report
p within the Investor Relations section of
our website at investor.medpace.com.
Liability and Insurance
We mayy be liable to our customers for anyy failure to conduct their clinical trials pproperly
p y accordingg to the agreedg
upon
p protocol
p
and contract. If we fail to conduct a clinical trial properly
p p y in accordance with the agreed-upon
g
p
pprocedures, we mayy have to repeat
p a clinical trial or a particular
p
portion
p
of the services at our expense,
p
reimburse the
customer for the cost of the services and/or pay additional damages.
At our Phase I clinic, we studyy the effects of drugs
g on healthyy volunteers. In addition, in our clinical business we, on
behalf of our customers, contract with pphysicians
y
who render pprofessional services, including
g the administration of
the substance beingg tested to pparticipants
p
in clinical trials, many
y of whom are seriously
y ill and are at ggreat risk of
further illness or death as a result of factors other than their pparticipation
p
in a trial. As a result, we could be held
liable for bodily
y injury,
j y death, ppain and suffering,
g loss of consortium or other personal
p
injury
j y claims and medical
expenses
p
arising
g from a clinical trial. In addition, we sometimes engage
g g the services of vendors necessary
y for the
conduct of a clinical trial, such as laboratories or medical diagnostic
g
specialists.
p
Because these vendors are engaged
g g
as subcontractors, we are responsible
p
for their pperformance and mayy be held liable for damages
g if the subcontractors
fail to perform
p
in the manner specified
p
in their contract.
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To reduce our ppotential liability,
y and as a requirement
q
of the GCP regulations,
g
informed consent is required
q
from
each volunteer and ppatient. In addition, our customers provide
p
us with contractual indemnification for all of our
service related contracts. These indemnities ggenerallyy do not, however, protect
p
us against
g
certain of our own actions
such as those involvingg negligence
g g
or misconduct. Our business, financial condition and operating
p
g results could be
harmed if we were required
q
to pay
p y damages
g or incur defense costs in connection with a claim that is not
indemnified, that is outside the scope
p of an indemnityy or where the indemnity,
y although
g applicable,
pp
is not honored in
accordance with its terms.
Available Information
We are subject
j to the informational requirements
q
of the Exchange
g Act and, in accordance therewith, file reports,
p
includingg annual, qquarterly
y and current reports,
p
pproxy
y statements and other information with the Securities and
Exchange
g Commission, or the SEC. Copies
p of our annual reports
p
on Form 10-K, qquarterly
y reports
p
on Form 10-Q,
current reports
p
on Form 8-K and our Proxyy Statements for our annual meetings
g of stockholders, and anyy
amendments to those reports,
p
as well as Section 16 reports
p
filed by
y our insiders, are available free of charge
g on our
website as soon as reasonablyy practicable
p
after we file the reports
p
with, or furnish the reports
p
to the SEC. Our
website address is http://www.medpace.com,
p
p
and our investor relations website is located at investor.medpace.com.
p
Information on our website is not incorporated
p
byy reference herein. The SEC maintains an Internet site
(http://www.sec.gov)
p
g
containingg reports,
p
pproxy
y and information statements, and other information regarding
g
g issuers
that file electronicallyy with the SEC.
Item 1A. Risk Factors
Investing in our common stock involves a high degree of risk. You should consider carefully the risks and
uncertainties described below, together with the other information included in this report. The occurrence of any of
the following risks may materially and adversely affect our business, financial condition, results of operations and
future prospects. In these circumstances, the market price of our common stock could decline. Other events that we
do not currently anticipate or that we currently deem immaterial may also affect our business, prospects, financial
condition and results of operations.
Risk Factor Summary
The following summarizes the most material risks that make an investment in our common stock risky.
Business and Economic Risks
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

The potential loss, delay or non-renewal of our contracts, or the non-payment by our customers for services
that we have performed, could adversely affect our results.
Our backlog may not convert to net revenue at our historical conversion rates.
Our operating results have historically fluctuated between fiscal quarters and years and may continue to
fluctuate in the future, which may adversely affect the market price of our stock.
Our operating margins could decrease due to increased pricing pressure or other pressures, if we are unable
to either achieve efficiencies in our operating expenses or grow revenues at a rate faster than expenses.
Our customer or therapeutic area concentration may have a material adverse effect on our business,
financial condition, results of operations or cash flows.
We bear financial risk if we underprice our fixed-fee contracts or overrun cost estimates, and our financial
results can also be adversely affected by failure to receive approval for change orders or delays in
documenting change orders.
The outbreak of the coronavirus (COVID-19) is materially and adversely affecting our business.
If we are unable to successfully execute our growth strategies or manage our growth effectively, our results
of operations or financial condition could be adversely affected.
If we are unable to recruit suitable investigators and enroll patients for our customers’ clinical trials, our
clinical development business may suffer.
The failure of third parties to provide us critical support services could materially adversely affect our
business, financial condition, results of operations, cash flows or reputation.
Potential future investments in our customers’ businesses or products could have a negative impact on our
financial results.
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Technical and Cybersecurity Risks
•
•

Our business depends on the continued effectiveness and availability of our information systems, including
the information systems we use to provide our services to our customers, such as ClinTrak, and failures of
these systems may materially limit our operations.
If the security of confidential information used in connection with our services is breached or otherwise
subject to unauthorized access, our reputation and business may be materially harmed.

International Risks
• Our business is subject to international economic, political and other risks that could negatively affect our
results of operations and financial condition.
• Due to the global nature of our business, we may be exposed to liabilities under the Foreign Corrupt
Practices Act and various other anti-corruption laws, and any allegation or determination that we violated
these laws could have a material adverse effect on our business.
• The United Kingdom’s withdrawal from the European Union may have a negative effect on global
economic conditions, financial markets and our business.
Industry Risks
•
•
•
•
•
•

•
•
•
•

Outsourcing trends in the biopharmaceutical industry and changes in aggregate expenditures and R&D
budgets could adversely affect our operating results and growth rate.
We may be affected by healthcare reform and potential additional regulatory reforms, which may adversely
impact the biopharmaceutical industry or otherwise reduce the need for our services or negatively impact
our profitability.
Consolidation in the biopharmaceutical industry could lead to a reduction in our revenues.
If we fail to comply with federal, state and foreign healthcare laws, including fraud and abuse laws, we
could face substantial penalties and our business, results of operations, financial condition and prospects
could be adversely affected.
Laws and regulations regarding the protection of personal data could result in increased risks of liability or
increased cost to us or could limit our service offerings.
Our business could be harmed from the loss or suspension of a license or imposition of a fine or penalties
under, or future changes in, or interpretations of, the law or regulations of the Clinical Laboratory
Improvement Act of 1967, and the Clinical Laboratory Improvement Amendments of 1988 (CLIA), or
those of other national, state or local agencies in the U.S. and other countries where we operate
laboratories.
The biopharmaceutical industry has a history of patent and other intellectual property litigation, and we
might be involved in costly intellectual property lawsuits.
Actions by regulatory authorities or customers to limit the scope of or withdraw an approved drug, biologic
or medical device from the market could result in a loss of revenue.
If we do not keep pace with rapid technological changes, our services may become less competitive or
obsolete.
Circumstances beyond our control could cause the CRO industry to suffer reputational or other harm that
could result in an industry-wide reduction in demand for CRO services, which could harm our business.

Other Legal, Regulatory, Insurance and Tax Risks
•
•
•

If we fail to perform our services in accordance with contractual requirements, government regulations and
ethical considerations, we could be subject to significant costs or liability and our reputation could be
adversely affected.
Some of our services involve direct interaction with clinical trial patients and operation of a Phase I clinical
facility, which could create potential liability that may adversely affect our results of operations and
financial condition.
Our clinical development services could subject us to potential liability that may adversely affect our
results of operations and financial condition.
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•
•
•
•
•

Our operations involve the use and disposal of hazardous substances and waste which can give rise to
liability that could adversely impact our financial condition
We act as legal representative and/or data representative for some clients.
Our insurance may not cover all of our indemnification obligations and other liabilities associated with our
operations.
Our effective income tax rate may fluctuate, which may adversely affect our operations, earnings and
earnings per share.
The requirements associated with being a public company require significant company resources and
management attention.

Structural and Organizational Risks
•
•

Our Chief Executive Officer and founder controls a substantial amount of our outstanding common stock
and his interests may be different from or conflict with those of our other shareholders.
We are party to transactions with related persons that may increase the risk of allegations of conflicts of
interest, and such allegations may impair our ability to realize the benefits we expect from these
transactions.

General Risks
•
•

If we lose the services of key personnel or are unable to recruit experienced personnel, our business could
be adversely affected.
Our operations might be affected by the occurrence of a natural disaster or other catastrophic event.

Business and Economic Risks
The potential loss, delay or non-renewal of our contracts, or the non-payment by our customers for services that
we have performed, could adversely affect our results.
We experience termination, cancellation and non-renewals of contracts by our customers in the ordinary course of
business, and the number and dollar value of cancellations can vary significantly from year to year.
The time between when a clinical trial is awarded and when it goes to contract is typically several months, and prior
to a new business award going to contract, our customers can cancel the award without notice. Moreover, once an
award goes to contract, most of our customers for clinical trial services can terminate our contracts without cause
upon 30 days’ notice. Our customers may delay, terminate or reduce the scope of our contracts for a variety of
reasons beyond our control, including, but not limited to:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

decisions to forego or terminate a particular clinical trial;
lack of available financing, budgetary limits or changing priorities;
actions by regulatory authorities;
changes in law;
production problems resulting in shortages of the drug being tested;
failure of the drug being tested to satisfy safety requirements or efficacy criteria;
unexpected or undesired clinical results;
insufficient investigator recruitment or patient enrollment in a trial;
decisions to downsize product development portfolios due to general economic conditions, Market
conditions or otherwise;
dissatisfaction with our performance, including the quality of data provided and our ability to meet agreed
upon schedules;
shift of business to another CRO or internal resources;
product withdrawal following market launch; or
shut down of our customers’ manufacturing facilities.

As a result, contract terminations, delays and modifications are a regular part of our business. In the event of
termination, our contracts often provide for payment to us of fees for services provided up to the point of
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termination and for close-out activities for winding down the clinical trial, and reimbursement of all non-cancellable
expenses. These payments may not be sufficient for us to maintain our profit margins or recover our costs, and
termination or non-renewal may result in lower resource utilization rates, including with respect to personnel who
we are not able to place on another customer engagement. Historically, cancellations and delays have negatively
impacted our operating results.
Clinical trials can be costly and for the year ended December 31, 2020, 75% and 15% of our net revenue was
derived from small biopharmaceutical companies and mid-sized biopharmaceutical companies, respectively, which
may have limited access to capital. In addition, we provide services to our customers before they pay us for some of
our services. There is a risk that we may initiate a clinical trial for a customer, and the customer subsequently
becomes unwilling or unable to fund the completion of the trial. In such a situation, notwithstanding the customer’s
ability or willingness to pay for or otherwise facilitate the completion of the trial, we may be legally or ethically
bound to complete or wind down the trial at our own expense.
Because the contracts included in our backlog are generally terminable without cause, we do not believe that our
backlog as of any date is necessarily a meaningful predictor of future results. In addition, we may not realize the full
benefits of our backlog of contractually committed services if our customers cancel, delay or reduce their
commitments under our contracts with them. Thus, the loss or delay of a large contract or the loss or delay of
multiple contracts could adversely affect our net revenue and profitability. In addition, the terminability of our
contracts puts increased pressure on our quality control efforts, since not only can our contracts be terminated by
customers as a result of poor performance, but any such termination may also affect our ability to obtain future
contracts from the customer involved and others.
Our backlog may not convert to net revenue at our historical conversion rates.
Backlog represents anticipated future net revenue from net new business awards that have commenced, but have not
been completed. Reported backlog will fluctuate based on new business awards, changes in scope to existing
contracts, cancellations, revenue recognition on existing contracts and foreign exchange adjustments from non-U.S.
dollar denominated backlog. Once work begins on a project, net revenue is recognized over the duration of the
project. Projects may be terminated or delayed by the customer or delayed by regulatory authorities for reasons
beyond our control. To the extent projects are delayed, the timing of our net revenue could be adversely affected.
Moreover, in the event that a customer cancels a contract, we often would be entitled to receive payment for services
provided up to the point of cancellation and for close-out activities for winding down the clinical trial, and
reimbursement of all non-cancellable expenses. Typically, however, we have no contractual right to the full amount
of the future net revenue reflected in our backlog in the event of a contract cancellation or subsequent changes in
scope that reduce the value of the contract. The duration of the projects included in our backlog, and the related net
revenue recognition, generally range from a few months to several years. Our backlog may not be indicative of our
future net revenue, and we may not realize all of the anticipated future net revenue reflected in our backlog. A
number of factors may affect the realization of our net revenue from backlog, including:
•
•
•

the size, complexity and duration of the projects;
the cancellation or delay of projects; and
changes in the scope of work during the course of a project.

Fluctuations in our reported backlog levels also result from the fact that we may receive a small number of relatively
large projects in any given reporting period that may be included in our backlog. Because of these large projects, our
backlog in that reporting period may reach levels that may not be sustained in subsequent reporting periods.
Additionally, although an increase in backlog will generally result in an increase in net revenue over time, an
increase in backlog at a particular point in time does not necessarily correspond directly to an increase in net revenue
during any particular period, or at all. The extent to which contracts in backlog will result in net revenue depends on
many factors, including, but not limited to, delivery against project schedules, scope changes, contract terminations
and the nature, duration and complexity of the contracts, and can vary significantly over time.
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As we increasingly compete for and enter into large contracts that are more global in nature, there can be no
assurance about the rate at which our backlog will convert into net revenue. A decrease in this conversion rate would
mean that the rate of net revenue recognized on contracts may be slower than what we have experienced in the past,
which could impact our net revenue and results of operations on a quarterly and annual basis. The revenue
recognition on larger, more global projects could be slower than on smaller, less global projects for a variety of
reasons, including, but not limited to, an extended period of negotiation between the time the project is awarded to
us and the actual execution of the contract, as well as an increased timeframe for obtaining the necessary regulatory
approvals. Additionally, delayed projects will remain in backlog and will not generate revenue at the rate originally
expected. Thus, the relationship of backlog to realized revenues is indirect and may vary significantly over time.
Our operating results have historically fluctuated between fiscal quarters and years and may continue to
fluctuate in the future, which may adversely affect the market price of our stock.
Our operating results have fluctuated in previous quarters and years and may continue to vary significantly from
quarter to quarter and year to year and are influenced by a variety of factors, such as:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

timing of contract amendments for changes in scope that could affect the value of a contract and potentially
impact the amount of net new business awards and net revenue from quarter to quarter;
commencement, completion, execution, postponement or termination of large contracts;
contract terms for the billing and recognition of revenue milestones;
progress of ongoing contracts and retention of customers;
timing of and charges associated with completion of acquisitions and other events;
changes in the mix of services delivered, both in terms of geography and type of services;
customer disputes or other issues that may impact the revenue we are able to recognize or the collectability
of our related accounts receivable
exchange rate fluctuations; and
adoption of Accounting Standards Updates released by the Financial Accounting Standards Board

Our operating results for any particular quarter or year are not necessarily a meaningful indicator of future results
and fluctuations in our quarterly or yearly operating results could negatively affect the market price and liquidity of
shares of our common stock.
Our operating margins could decrease due to increased pricing pressure or other pressures, if we are unable to
either achieve efficiencies in our operating expenses or grow revenues at a rate faster than expenses.
Historically, we have been able to generate the operating margins that we do because of our disciplined, full-service
operating model. However, we operate in a highly competitive environment, and, if we experience increased levels
of competitive pricing pressure, our operating margins may decrease. In addition, we may adapt our operating model
to achieve greater levels of growth or in response to investor demands. Such changes could result in lower operating
margins.
Our customer or therapeutic area concentration may have a material adverse effect on our business, financial
condition, results of operations or cash flows.
Although we did not have any customer that represented 10% or more of our net revenue during the year ended
December 31, 2020, we derive a significant portion of our revenues from a limited number of large customers. If
any large customer decreases or terminates its relationship with us, our business, financial condition, results of
operations or cash flows could be materially adversely affected. Also, consolidation in our actual or potential
customer base results in increased competition for important market segments and fewer available customer
accounts. Additionally, conducting multiple clinical trials for different sponsors in a single therapeutic class,
involving similar drugs, biologics or medical devices, may adversely affect our business if some or all of the trials
are terminated because of new scientific information or regulatory decisions that affect the products as a class.
Moreover, even if these trials are not terminated, they may compete with each other, thereby limiting our potential
revenue going forward.
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We bear financial risk if we underprice our fixed-fee contracts or overrun cost estimates, and our financial
results can also be adversely affected by failure to receive approval for change orders or delays in documenting
change orders.
The majority of our Phase I–IV contracts are fixed-fee contracts. We bear the financial risk if we initially underprice
our contracts or otherwise overrun our cost estimates. In addition, contracts with our customers are subject to change
orders, which we commonly experience and which occur when the scope of work we perform needs to be modified
from that originally contemplated by our contract with the customer. Modifications can occur, for example, when
there is a change in a key trial assumption or parameter, a significant change in timing or a change in staffing needs.
Furthermore, we may be unable to successfully negotiate changes in scope or change orders on a timely basis or at
all, which could require us to incur cost outlays ahead of the receipt of any additional revenue. In addition, under US
GAAP, we cannot recognize additional revenue anticipated from change orders until appropriate documentation is
received by us from the customer authorizing the change. However, if we incur additional expense in anticipation of
receipt of that documentation, we must recognize the expense as incurred. Such underpricing, significant cost
overruns or delay in documentation of change orders could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of
operations, financial condition or cash flows.
The outbreak of the coronavirus (COVID-19) is materially and adversely affecting our business.
On March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization declared the coronavirus COVID-19 outbreak to be a pandemic.
This pandemic has resulted in increased travel restrictions and caused the shutdown of many businesses in countries
in which we operate. While we continue to operate globally, the level of activity at each of our locations varies
depending on the local governmental requirements and guidelines. Our office staff are effectively working in the
office or remotely and our labs are fully operational with modifications made to ensure the safety of our employees.
The diversion of resources to treat COVID-19 patients has significantly impacted the operations at most of the
investigative sites where patients in our clinical trials are recruited and treated. This has resulted in reduced trial
starts and slowed new business awards, each of which results in decreased revenues. Depending on the duration of
the disruption, ongoing studies may be cancelled and some of our clients may lack the funding to complete trials
which are extended due to slowed recruitment of patients. We work with many smaller clients with limited financial
resources and market disruptions may make raising additional funds difficult for those clients. Travel restrictions
and business closures have also impacted study participants and clinical sites which affects our ability to efficiently
provide clinical trial services. As a result, we are working with our customers to develop solutions to limit disruption
to clinical trials while following required regulatory guidelines and maintaining quality to ensure the health and
well-being of study participants. These include alternative assessment methods such as virtual monitoring visits. The
COVID-19 outbreak had a significant adverse effect on fiscal year 2020 and we believe that the outbreak will have a
continued adverse impact on our results of operations in the future. In connection with this expected adverse impact,
we have also evaluated our headcount needs in a number of geographies and implemented some staff reductions
where appropriate. As we cannot predict the duration or scope of the pandemic, the future financial impact on our
results of operations and financial condition cannot be reasonably estimated, but the impact will likely be material.
If we are unable to successfully execute our growth strategies or manage our growth effectively, our results of
operations or financial condition could be adversely affected.
Our key growth strategies include: continued organic growth, continued maintenance of margins, increasing capture
of the high-growth clinical development market, deepening existing and developing new relationships with our core
customer segment and pursuing selective and complementary bolt-on acquisitions. Though we will strive to meet
these goals, we may not have or adequately build the competencies necessary to achieve our objectives. In addition,
we may not receive market acceptance for our services and we may face increased competition. If we are unable to
successfully continue our organic growth, continue to maintain our margins, increase our capture of the clinical
development market, deepen existing and develop new relationships with our core customer segment, pursue
complementary and non-transformative acquisitions or attract additional large pharmaceutical company customers,
our future business, reputation, results of operations and financial condition could be adversely affected. The nature
and pace of our growth introduces risks associated with quality control and customer dissatisfaction due to delays in
performance or other problems. In addition, foreign operations involve the additional risks of assimilating
differences in foreign business practices, hiring and retaining qualified personnel and overcoming language barriers.
Failure to manage growth effectively could have a material adverse effect on our business.
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If we are unable to recruit suitable investigators and enroll patients for our customers’ clinical trials, our clinical
development business may suffer.
The recruitment of investigators and patients for clinical trials is essential to our business. Investigators are typically
located at hospitals, clinics or other sites and supervise the administration of the investigational drug, biologic or
device to patients during the course of a clinical trial. Patients typically include people from the communities in
which the clinical trials are conducted. Our clinical development business could be adversely affected if we are
unable to attract suitable and willing investigators or patients for clinical trials on a consistent basis. For example, if
we are unable to engage investigators to conduct clinical trials as planned or enroll sufficient patients in clinical
trials, we may need to expend additional funds to obtain access to resources or else be compelled to delay or modify
the clinical trial plans. These considerations might result in additional costs to us or otherwise adversely impact the
progress of a clinical trial, our being unable to successfully achieve our projected development timelines, or
potentially even lead to the termination of ongoing clinical trials or development of a product.
The failure of third parties to provide us critical support services could materially adversely affect our business,
financial condition, results of operations, cash flows or reputation.
We depend
p
on third parties
p
for support
pp services vital to our business. Such support
pp services include, but are not
limited to, laboratoryy services, third-party
p y transportation
p
and travel pproviders, technology
gy pproviders, freight
g
forwarders and customs brokers, drugg depots
p and distribution centers, suppliers
pp
or contract manufacturers of drugs
g
for ppatients participating
p
p g in clinical trials and providers
p
of licensing
g agreements,
g
maintenance contracts or other
services. In addition, we also rely
y on third-party
p y CROs and other contract clinical personnel
p
for clinical services
either in regions
g
where we have limited resources, or in cases where demand cannot be met by
y our internal staff. The
failure of anyy of these third pparties to adequately
q
y pprovide us critical support
pp services could have a material adverse
effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations, cash flows or reputation.
Potential future investments in our customers’ businesses or products could have a negative impact on our
financial results.
We have in the ppast and may
y in the future enter into arrangements
g
with our customers or other drug,
g biologic
g or
medical device companies
p
in which we take on ppayment
y
risk by
y making
g strategic
g investments in our customers or
other drugg companies,
p
providing
p
g flexible payment
p y
terms or fee financing
g to customers or other companies,
p
or
enteringg into other risk sharingg arrangements
g
on trial execution. Our financial results would be adversely
y affected if
the amount realized from anyy such risk sharing
g arrangement
g
was less than the value of our services under the
contract related to such arrangement.
g
Technical and Cybersecurity Risks
Our business depends on the continued effectiveness and availability of our information systems, including the
information systems we use to provide our services to our customers, such as ClinTrak, and failures of these
systems may materially limit our operations.
Due to the global nature of our business and our reliance on information systems to provide our services, we intend
to increase our use of web-enabled and other integrated information systems in delivering our services. We already
provide access to such an information system, ClinTrak, to certain of our customers in connection with the services
we provide to them. As the breadth and complexity of our information systems continue to grow, we will
increasingly be exposed to the risks inherent in the development, integration and ongoing operation of evolving
information systems, including:
•
•
•

disruption, impairment or failure of data centers, telecommunications facilities or other key infrastructure
platforms;
security breaches of, cyberattacks on and other failures or malfunctions in our critical application systems
or their associated hardware; and
excessive costs, excessive delays or other deficiencies in systems development and deployment.

The materialization of any of these risks may impede the processing of data, the delivery of databases and services
and the day-to-day management of our business and could result in the corruption, loss or unauthorized disclosure of
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proprietary, confidential or other data. While we have disaster recovery plans in place, they might not adequately
protect us in the event of a system failure. Despite any precautions we take, damage from fire, floods, hurricanes,
power loss, telecommunications failures, computer viruses, information system security breaches and similar events
at our facilities or at those of our third party provider that backs up our data centers could result in interruptions in
the flow of data to our servers and from our servers to our customers. Corruption or loss of data may result in the
need to repeat a trial at no cost to the customer, but at significant cost to us, or result in the termination of a contract
or damage to our reputation. Moreover, regulatory authorities may impose requirements on the use of electronic
records and signatures for regulatory purposes. For example, FDA’s regulations at 21 CFR Part 11 establish the
criteria pursuant to which the FDA will consider electronic records and signatures to be trustworthy, reliable, and
generally equivalent to paper records and handwritten signatures. Any failures to comply with those regulatory
requirements could impact our customers’ ability to rely on the data contained in those electronic records in our
systems or result in the FDA’s rejection of the data. Additionally, in order for our information systems to continue to
be effective going forward, we periodically need to upgrade our technology systems and increase our capacity to
keep pace with technological developments and our growth as a company. Significant delays in system
enhancements or inadequate performance of new or upgraded systems once completed could damage our reputation
and harm our business. Our operations also may suffer if we are unable to effectively manage the implementation of
and adapt to new technology systems. We have entered into agreements with certain vendors to provide systems
development and integration services that develop or license to us the IT platform for programs to optimize our
business processes. If such vendors fail to perform as required or if there are substantial delays in developing,
implementing and updating the IT platform, our customer delivery may be impaired, and we may have to make
substantial further investments, internally or with third parties, to achieve our objectives. Additionally, our progress
may be limited by parties with existing or claimed patents who seek to prevent us from using preferred technology
or seek license payments from us. Any such shortcoming may require us to make substantial further investments in
our IT platform, which could adversely affect our financial results.
Unauthorized disclosure of sensitive or confidential data, whether through system failure or breaches or employee
negligence, fraud or misappropriation, could damage our reputation and cause us to lose customers. Similarly,
unauthorized access to or through our information systems or those we develop for our customers, whether by our
employees or third parties, including a cyberattack by computer programmers and hackers who may develop and
deploy viruses, worms or other malicious software programs, could result in negative publicity, significant
remediation costs, legal liability and damage to our reputation and could have a material adverse effect on our
results of operations. In addition, our liability insurance might not be sufficient in type or amount to adequately
cover us against claims related to security breaches, cyberattacks and other related breaches.
If the security of confidential information used in connection with our services is breached or otherwise subject
to unauthorized access, our reputation and business may be materially harmed.
Our services require us to collect, store, use, and transmit significant amounts of confidential information, including
personally identifiable information, and other critical data. We employ a range of information technology solutions,
controls, procedures, and processes designed to protect the confidentiality, integrity, and availability of our critical
assets, including our data and information technology systems. While we engage in a number of measures aimed to
protect against security breaches and to minimize problems if a data breach were to occur, our information
technology systems and infrastructure may be vulnerable to damage, compromise, disruption, and shutdown due to
attacks or breaches by hackers or due to other circumstances, such as error or malfeasance by employees or third
party service providers or technology malfunction. The occurrence of any of these events, as well as a failure to
promptly remedy these events should they occur, could compromise our systems, and the information stored in our
systems could be accessed, publicly disclosed, lost, stolen, or damaged. Any such circumstance could adversely
affect our ability to attract and maintain customers, cause us to suffer negative publicity, and subject us to legal
claims and liabilities or regulatory penalties. In addition, unauthorized parties might alter information in our
databases, which would adversely affect both the reliability of that information and our ability to market and
perform our services. Techniques used to obtain unauthorized access or to sabotage systems change frequently, are
constantly evolving and generally are difficult to recognize and react to effectively. We may be unable to anticipate
these techniques or to implement adequate preventive or reactive measures. Several recent, highly publicized data
security breaches at other companies have heightened consumer awareness of this issue and may embolden
individuals or groups to target our systems or those of our strategic partners or enterprise customers.
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International Risks
Our business is subject to international economic, political and other risks that could negatively affect our results
of operations and financial condition.
We have significant operations in foreign countries, including, but not limited to, countries in Europe, Latin
America, Asia, the Middle East and Africa, that may require complex arrangements to deliver services on global
contracts for our customers. As a result, we are subject to heightened risks inherent in conducting business
internationally, including the following:
•

•
•
•

•

•
•
•
•
•
•
•

conducting a single trial across multiple countries is complex, and issues in one country, such as a failure to
comply with local regulations or restrictions, may affect the progress of the trial in the other countries, for
example, by limiting the amount of data necessary for a trial to proceed, resulting in delays or potential
cancellation of contracts, which in turn may result in loss of revenue;
the United States or other countries could enact legislation or impose regulations or other restrictions,
including unfavorable labor regulations or tax policies, which could have an adverse effect on our ability to
conduct business in or expatriate profits from those countries;
tax rates in certain foreign countries may exceed those in the United States and foreign earnings may be
subject to withholding requirements or the imposition of tariffs, exchange controls or other restrictions,
including restrictions on repatriation;
certain foreign countries are expanding or may expand their regulatory framework with respect to patient
informed consent, protection and compensation in clinical trials, and privacy, which could delay or inhibit
our ability to conduct trials in such jurisdictions or which could materially increase the risks associated
with performing trials in such jurisdictions;
certain foreign countries are expanding or may expand their banking regulations that govern international
currency transactions, particularly cross-border transfers, which may inhibit our ability to transfer funds
into or within a jurisdiction, impeding our ability to pay our principal investigators, vendors and
employees, thereby impacting our ability to conduct trials in such jurisdictions;
the regulatory or judicial authorities of foreign countries may not enforce legal rights and recognize
business procedures in a manner to which we are accustomed or would reasonably expect;
we may have difficulty complying with a variety of laws and regulations in foreign countries, some of
which may conflict with laws in the United States;
potential violations of existing or newly adopted local laws or anti-bribery laws, such as the United States
Foreign Corrupt Practices Act, or FCPA, and the UK Bribery Act of 2010, may cause a material adverse
effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations, cash flows or reputation;
changes in political and economic conditions, including inflation, may lead to changes in the business
environment in which we operate, as well as changes in foreign currency exchange rates;
foreign governments may enact currency exchange controls that may limit the ability to fund our operations
or significantly increase the cost of maintaining operations;
customers in foreign jurisdictions may have longer payment cycles, and it may be more difficult to collect
receivables in foreign jurisdictions; and
natural disasters, pandemics or international conflict, including terrorist acts, could interrupt our services,
endanger our personnel or cause project delays or loss of trial materials or results.

These risks and uncertainties could negatively impact our ability to, among other things, perform large, global
projects for our customers. Furthermore, our ability to deal with these issues could be affected by applicable U.S.
laws and the need to protect our assets. In addition, we may be more susceptible to these risks as we enter and
continue to target growth in emerging countries and regions, including Asia, Eastern Europe and Latin America,
which may be subject to a relatively higher risk of political instability, economic volatility, crime, corruption and
social and ethnic unrest, all of which are exacerbated in many cases by a lack of an independent and experienced
judiciary and uncertainties in how local law is applied and enforced. The materialization of any such risks could
have an adverse impact on our financial condition, results of operations, cash flows or reputation.
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Due to the global nature of our business, we may be exposed to liabilities under the Foreign Corrupt Practices
Act and various other anti-corruption laws, and any allegation or determination that we violated these laws could
have a material adverse effect on our business.
We are required to comply with the FCPA, UK Bribery Act of 2010 and other U.S. and foreign anti-corruption laws,
which prohibit companies from engaging in bribery including corruptly or improperly offering, promising, or
providing money or anything else of value to foreign officials and certain other recipients. In addition, the FCPA
imposes certain books, records and accounting control obligations on public companies and other issuers. We
operate in parts of the world in which corruption can be common and compliance with anti-bribery laws may
conflict with local customs and practices. Our global operations face the risk of unauthorized payments or offers
being made by employees, consultants, sales agents and other business partners outside of our control or without our
authorization. It is our policy to implement safeguards (including mandatory training) to prohibit these practices by
our employees and business partners with respect to our operations. However, irrespective of these safeguards, or as
a result of monitoring compliance with such safeguards, it is possible that we or certain other parties may discover
or receive information at some point that certain employees, consultants, sales agents, or other business partners may
have engaged in corrupt conduct for which we might be held responsible. Violations of the FCPA or other foreign
anti-corruption laws may result in restatements of, or irregularities in, our financial statements as well as severe
criminal or civil sanctions, and we may be subject to other liabilities, which could negatively affect our business,
operating results and financial condition. In some cases, companies that violate the FCPA may be debarred by the
U.S. government and/or lose their U.S. export privileges. Changes in anti-corruption laws or enforcement priorities
could also result in increased compliance requirements and related costs which could adversely affect our business,
financial condition and results of operations. In addition, the U.S. or other governments may seek to hold us liable
for FCPA violations or violations of other anti-corruption laws committed by companies in which we invest or that
we acquired or will acquire.
The United Kingdom’s withdrawal from the European Union may have a negative effect on global economic
conditions, financial markets and our business.
The United Kingdom left the EU on January 31, 2020. The withdrawal (known as “Brexit”) has created significant
uncertainty about the future relationship between the United Kingdom and the EU, including with respect to the
laws and regulations that will apply as the United Kingdom determines which EU laws to replace or replicate to
facilitate the withdrawal. The U.K. and the EU reached a free trade agreement on December 24, 2020, which
included regulatory and customs cooperation mechanisms, as well as provisions supporting open and fair
competition. Under the trade agreement, the U.K. is free to set its own trade policy and can negotiate with other
countries that do not currently have free trade deals with the EU. Although the full impact of the trade agreement is
uncertain, it is possible that the recent changes to the trading relationship between the U.K. and the EU due to the
trade agreement could result in increased cost of goods imported into and exported from the U.K., which may
decrease the profitability of our operations. Brexit could also adversely affect European and worldwide economic
and market conditions and could contribute to instability in global financial markets.
Due to the fact that we have operations located within the U.K., Brexit could negatively impact our operations
resulting primarily from (a) operational disruptions due to changes in the manner in which people and products are
moved between the U.K. and EU; (b) changes in the regulatory regime governing in clinical trials in the U.K; and
(c) potential price increases for supplies purchased by our U.K. businesses from companies located in the EU or
elsewhere.
Further, due to Brexit, the value of the British Pound Sterling incurred significant fluctuations. Further actions
related to Brexit may occur in the future. If the value of the British Pound Sterling continues to incur similar
fluctuations, unfavorable exchange rate changes may negatively affect the value of our operations and businesses
located in the U.K., as translated to our reporting currency, the United States Dollar, in accordance with US GAAP,
which may impact the revenue and earnings we report. For more information with respect to Exchange Rate risk
applicable to us, please see Part 2 Item 7A. "Market Risk Disclosures" elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10K. Continued fluctuations in the British Pound Sterling may also result in the imposition of price adjustments by
EU-based suppliers to our U.K. businesses, as those suppliers seek to compensate for the changes in value of the
British Pound Sterling as compared to the European Euro. Any of these results could have a material adverse effect
on the business, revenues and financial condition of our UK and European operations.
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Industry Risks
Outsourcing trends in the biopharmaceutical industry and changes in aggregate expenditures and R&D budgets
could adversely affect our operating results and growth rate.
Our revenues depend on the level of R&D expenditures, size of the drug development pipelines and outsourcing
trends of the biopharmaceutical industry, including the amount of such R&D expenditures that is outsourced and
subject to competitive bidding among CROs. Accordingly, economic factors and industry trends that affect
biopharmaceutical companies affect our business. For example, if biopharmaceutical companies become less able to
access capital in the future, they may commit less capital to our services going forward. Also, biopharmaceutical
companies continue to seek long-term strategic collaborations with global CROs with favorable pricing terms. Many
of our competitors seek out these collaborations, while we generally do not. If our competitors can successfully enter
into these collaborations, it may reduce the share of the biopharmaceutical outsourcing business that we might
otherwise be positioned to capture.
In addition, if the biopharmaceutical industry reduces its outsourcing of clinical trials or such outsourcing fails to
grow at projected or expected rates, or at all, our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows
could be materially and adversely affected. We may also be negatively impacted by consolidation and other factors
in the biopharmaceutical industry, which may slow decision making by our customers, result in the delay or
cancellation of existing projects, cause reductions in overall R&D expenditures or lead to increased pricing
pressures. Further, in the event that one of our customers combines with a company that is using the services of one
of our competitors, the combined company could decide to use the services of that competitor or another provider.
All of these events could adversely affect our business, financial condition, cash flows or results of operations.
We may be affected by healthcare reform and potential additional regulatory reforms, which may adversely
impact the biopharmaceutical industry or otherwise reduce the need for our services or negatively impact our
profitability.
Numerous government bodies are considering or have adopted various healthcare reforms and may undertake, or are
in the process of undertaking, efforts to control growing healthcare costs through legislation, regulation and
voluntary agreements with healthcare providers and biopharmaceutical companies, including many of our
customers. By way of example, in March 2010, the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act, as amended by the
Health Care and Education Reconciliation Act, or collectively, the Affordable Care Act, was signed into law, which,
among other things, expanded, over time, health insurance coverage, imposed health industry cost containment
measures, enhanced remedies against healthcare fraud and abuse, added new transparency requirements for
healthcare and health insurance industries, imposed new taxes and fees on pharmaceutical and medical device
manufacturers, added new requirements for certain applicable drug and device manufacturers to disclose payments
to physicians, including principal investigators, and imposed additional health policy reforms, any of which may
significantly impact the biopharmaceutical industry. We are uncertain as to the full effects of these reforms on our
business and are unable to predict what legislative proposals, if any, will be adopted in the future. If regulatory cost
containment efforts limit the profitability of new drugs, our customers may reduce their R&D expenditures, which
could reduce the business they outsource to us. Similarly, if regulatory requirements for product testing are relaxed
or harmonized across jurisdictions, or simplified drug approval procedures are adopted, the demand for our services
could decrease.
Government bodies may also adopt healthcare legislation or regulations that are more burdensome than existing
regulations. For example, product safety concerns and recommendations by the Drug Safety Oversight Board could
change the regulatory environment for drug products, and new or heightened regulatory requirements may increase
our expenses or limit our ability to offer some of our services. Additionally, new or heightened regulatory
requirements may have a negative impact on the ability of our customers to conduct industry sponsored clinical
trials, which could reduce the need for our services. These developments and the lack of clarity regarding future
healthcare policies and regulations have created significant uncertainty that could adversely affect our business,
financial condition, cash flows or results of operations.
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Consolidation in the biopharmaceutical industry could lead to a reduction in our revenues.
The biopharmaceutical
p
and CRO industries are currentlyy undergoing
g g a pperiod of increased merger
g activity.
y Several
large
g biopharmaceutical
p
companies
p
have recentlyy completed
p
mergers
g and acquisitions
q
that will consolidate the
outsourcingg trends and R&D expenditures
p
into fewer companies,
p
and manyy larger
g and medium sized
biopharmaceutical
p
companies
p
have been acquiring
q
g smaller biopharmaceutical
p
companies.
p
As a result of this and
future consolidations, our customer diversityy mayy decrease and our business mayy be adversely
y affected.
If we fail to comply with federal, state and foreign healthcare laws, including fraud and abuse laws, we could
face substantial penalties and our business, results of operations, financial condition and prospects could be
adversely affected.
Even though we do not order healthcare services or bill directly to Medicare, Medicaid or other third party payors,
certain federal and state healthcare laws and regulations pertaining to fraud and abuse are applicable to our business.
We could be subject to healthcare fraud and abuse laws of both the federal government and the states in which we
conduct our business. Because of the breadth of these laws and the narrowness of available statutory and regulatory
exceptions, it is possible that some of our business activities could be subject to challenge under one or more of such
laws. If we or our operations are found to be in violation of any of the laws described above or any other
governmental regulations that apply to us, we may be subject to penalties, including civil and criminal penalties,
damages, fines, imprisonment and the curtailment or restructuring of our operations, any of which could materially
adversely affect our ability to operate our business and our financial results.
Laws and regulations regarding the protection of personal data could result in increased risks of liability or
increased cost to us or could limit our service offerings.
The confidentiality, collection, use and disclosure of personal data, including clinical trial patient-specific
information, are subject to governmental regulation generally in the country in which the personal data was collected
or used. For example, U.S. federal regulations under the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of
1996, as amended by the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act of 2009 and their
implementing regulations, including the Privacy and Security Rules, or collectively, HIPAA, generally require
individuals’ written authorization, in addition to any required informed consent, before protected health information
may be used for research and such regulations specify standards for de-identifications and for limited data sets. We
may also be subject to applicable state privacy and security laws and regulations in states in which we operate. Two
of our subsidiaries, Medpace Clinical Pharmacology, LLC and C-MARC, LLC, are covered entities under HIPAA.
Further, because of amendments to the HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules that were promulgated on January 25,
2013, known as the Omnibus Final Rule, service providers to covered entities under HIPAA, known as business
associates, are now directly subject to HIPAA. There are some instances where we may be a HIPAA “business
associate” of a “covered entity,” meaning that we may be directly liable for any breaches of protected health
information and other HIPAA violations. We are also liable contractually under any business associate agreements
we have signed with covered entities. If we are determined to be a business associate, we would be subject to
HIPAA’s enforcement scheme, which, as amended, can result in up to $1.5 million in annual civil penalties for each
HIPAA violation. A single breach incident can result in multiple violations of the HIPAA standards, meaning that
penalties could be in excess of $1.5 million. In addition, the Federal Civil Penalties Inflation Adjustment
Improvement Act of 2015 required all federal agencies to adjust their civil monetary penalties to inflation, no later
than August 1, 2016. As a result, the minimum annual penalties for each HIPPA violation which occurs later than
February 17, 2009 is now $1.7 million.
HIPAA also authorizes state attorneys general to file suit on behalf of their residents for violations. Courts are able
to award damages, costs and attorneys’ fees related to violations of HIPAA in such cases. While HIPAA does not
create a private right of action allowing individuals to file suit against us in civil court for violations of HIPAA, its
standards have been used as the basis for duty of care cases in state civil suits such as those for negligence or
recklessness in the misuse or breach of protected health information. In addition, HIPAA mandates that the
Secretary of the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services conduct periodic compliance audits of HIPAA
covered entities and their business associates for compliance with the HIPAA privacy and security standards, and
Phase two of these audits, focusing on business associates has begun.
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In the EU, personal data includes any information that relates to an identified or identifiable natural person with
health information carrying additional obligations, which may include obtaining the explicit consent from the
individual for collection, use or disclosure of the information. In addition, we are subject to EU rules with respect to
export of such data out of the EU. Such data export rules are constantly changing, for example, following a decision
of the European Court of Justice in October 2015, transferring personal data to U.S. companies like us that had
certified as a member of the EU-U.S. Safe Harbor Scheme was declared invalid and the other methods to permit
transfer are now under review. In July 2016, the European Commission approved the EU-U.S. Privacy Shield, which
replaces the U.S. Safe Harbor Scheme. The United States, the EU and its member states, and other countries where
we have operations, such as China, Russia and Singapore, continue to issue new privacy and data protection rules
and regulations that relate to personal data and health information. Failure to comply with certain
certification/registration and annual re-certification/registration provisions associated with these data protection and
privacy regulations and rules in various jurisdictions, or to resolve any serious privacy or security complaints, could
subject us to regulatory sanctions, criminal prosecution or civil liability. Federal, state and foreign governments may
propose or have adopted additional legislation governing the collection, possession, use or dissemination of personal
data, such as personal health information, and personal financial data as well as security breach notification rules for
loss or theft of or unauthorized access to such data. Additional legislation or regulation of this type might, among
other things, require us to implement new security measures and processes or bring within the legislation or
regulation de-identified health or other personal data, each of which may require substantial expenditures or limit
our ability to offer some of our services. Additionally, if we violate applicable laws, regulations or duties relating to
the use, privacy or security of personal data, we could be subject to civil liability or criminal prosecution, be forced
to alter our business practices and suffer reputational harm. We also are subject to the requirements of the EU’s
General Data Protection Regulation, or GDPR, because we are processing data in the EU and data of EU residents
outside of the EU. The GDPR shortens the deadline for data breach notifications, imposes additional obligations
when we process personal data on behalf of our customers, including in relation to security measures, and increases
administrative burdens on companies processing personal data, including employee and business partner data. If we
do not comply with our obligations under the GDPR we could be exposed to significant fines of up to 20 million
EUR or up to 4% of the total worldwide annual turnover of the preceding financial year, whichever is higher.
Our business could be harmed from the loss or suspension of a license or imposition of a fine or penalties under,
or future changes in, or interpretations of, the law or regulations of the Clinical Laboratory Improvement Act of
1967, and the Clinical Laboratory Improvement Amendments of 1988 (CLIA), or those of other national, state or
local agencies in the U.S. and other countries where we operate laboratories.
The commercial laboratory testing industry is subject to extensive U.S. regulation, and many of these statutes and
regulations have not been interpreted by the courts. CLIA extends federal oversight to virtually all clinical
laboratories operating in the U.S. by requiring that they be certified by the federal government or by a federally
approved accreditation agency. The sanction for failure to comply with CLIA requirements may be suspension,
revocation or limitation of a laboratory’s CLIA certificate, which is necessary to conduct business, as well as
significant fines and/or criminal penalties. In addition, we are subject to regulation under state law. State laws may
require that laboratories and/or laboratory personnel meet certain qualifications, specify certain quality controls or
require maintenance of certain records. We also operate laboratories outside of the U.S. and are subject to laws
governing our laboratory operations in the other countries where we operate.
Applicable statutes and regulations could be interpreted or applied by a prosecutorial, regulatory or judicial authority
in a manner that would adversely affect our business. Potential sanctions for violation of these statutes and
regulations include significant fines and the suspension or loss of various licenses, certificates and authorizations,
which could have a material adverse effect on our business. In addition, compliance with future legislation could
impose additional requirements on us, which may be costly.
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The biopharmaceutical industry has a history of patent and other intellectual property litigation, and we might be
involved in costly intellectual property lawsuits.
The biopharmaceutical industry has a history of intellectual property litigation, and these lawsuits will likely
continue in the future. Accordingly, even without wrongdoing on our part, we may face patent infringement suits by
companies that have patents for similar business processes or other suits alleging infringement of their intellectual
property rights. Legal proceedings relating to intellectual property could be expensive, take significant time and
divert management’s attention from other business concerns, regardless of the outcome of the litigation. If we do not
prevail in an infringement lawsuit brought against us, we might have to pay substantial damages, and we could be
required to stop the infringing activity or obtain a license to use technology on unfavorable terms. Further, our
customers could be similarly exposed to intellectual property suits and the resulting economic and operational strain
defending such claims could negatively impact such customers’ ability to fund or continue ongoing clinical trials on
which we are working.
Actions by regulatory authorities or customers to limit the scope of or withdraw an approved drug, biologic or
medical device from the market could result in a loss of revenue.
Government regulators have the authority, after approving a drug, biologic or medical device, to limit its indication
for use by requiring additional labeled warnings or to withdraw the product’s approval for its approved indication
based on safety or other concerns. Similarly, customers may act to voluntarily limit the availability of approved
products or withdraw them from the market after we begin our work. If we are providing services to customers for
products that are limited in availability or withdrawn, we may be required to narrow the scope of or terminate our
services with respect to such products, which would prevent us from earning the full amount of net revenue
anticipated under the related service contracts.
If we do not keep pace with rapid technological changes, our services may become less competitive or obsolete.
The biopharmaceutical
p
industryy generally,
g
y and drug
g development
p
and clinical research more specifically,
p
y are subject
j
to rapid
p technological
g
changes.
g Our current competitors
p
or other businesses might
g develop
p technologies
g or services
that are more effective or commerciallyy attractive than, or render obsolete, our current or future technologies
g and
services. If our competitors
p
introduce superior
p
technologies
g or services and if we cannot make enhancements to
remain competitive,
p
our competitive
p
pposition would be harmed. If we are unable to compete
p successfully,
y we may
y
lose customers or be unable to attract new customers, which could lead to a decrease in our revenue and have a
material adverse effect on our financial condition.
Circumstances beyond our control could cause the CRO industry to suffer reputational or other harm that could
result in an industry-wide reduction in demand for CRO services, which could harm our business.
Demand for our services may be affected by perceptions of our customers regarding the CRO industry as a whole.
For example, other CROs could engage in conduct that could render our customers less willing to do business with
us or any CRO. Likewise, a widely reported injury to clinical trial participants could result in negative perceptions
of clinical trial activity, thereby adversely impacting our industry. One or more CROs could engage in or fail to
detect malfeasance, such as inadequately monitoring sites, producing inaccurate databases or analysis, falsifying
patient records, and performing incomplete lab work, or take other actions that would reduce the confidence of our
customers in the CRO industry. As a result, the willingness of biopharmaceutical companies to outsource R&D
services to CROs could diminish and our business could thus be harmed materially by events outside our control.
Other Legal, Regulatory, Insurance and Tax Risks
If we fail to perform our services in accordance with contractual requirements, government regulations and
ethical considerations, we could be subject to significant costs or liability and our reputation could be adversely
affected.
We contract with biopharmaceutical companies to perform a wide range of services to assist them in bringing new
drugs to market. Our services include monitoring clinical trials, data and laboratory analysis, electronic data capture,
patient recruitment and other related services. Such services are complex and subject to contractual requirements,
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government regulations, and ethical considerations. For example, we are subject to regulation by the FDA, and
comparable foreign regulatory authorities relating to our activities in conducting pre-clinical studies and clinical
trials. Before clinical trials begin in the United States, a drug is tested in pre-clinical trials that must comply with
Good Laboratory Practice and other requirements. An applicant must file an IND, which must become effective
before human clinical testing may begin. Further, an independent IRB, for each medical center proposing to
participate in the clinical trial must review and approve the protocol for the clinical trial. Once initiated, clinical
trials must be conducted pursuant to and in accordance with the applicable IND conditions, the requirements of the
relevant IRBs, the Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act and its implementing regulations, including GCP, and
other requirements. We are also subject to regulation by the Drug Enforcement Administration, or DEA, which
regulates the distribution, recordkeeping, handling, security, and disposal of controlled substances. If we fail to
perform our services in accordance with these requirements, regulatory authorities may take action against us or our
customers. Such actions may include injunctions or failure of such regulatory authority to grant marketing approval
of our customers’ products, imposition of clinical holds or delays, suspension or withdrawal of approvals, rejection
of data collected in our clinical trials, license revocation, product seizures or recalls, operational restrictions, civil or
criminal penalties or prosecutions, damages or fines. Customers may also bring claims against us for breach of our
contractual obligations, and patients in the clinical trials and patients taking drugs approved on the basis of those
trials may bring personal injury claims against us. Any such action could have a material adverse effect on our
business, financial condition, results of operations, cash flows or reputation.
Such consequences could arise if, among other things, the following occur:
Improper performance of our services. The performance of clinical development services is complex and timeconsuming. For example, we may make mistakes in conducting a clinical trial that could negatively impact or
obviate the usefulness of results of the trial or cause the results of the trial to be reported improperly. If the trial
results are compromised, we could be subject to significant costs or liability, which could have an adverse impact on
our ability to perform our services and our reputation would be harmed. As examples:
•
•
•

non-compliance generally could result in the termination of ongoing clinical trials or the disqualification
of data for submission to regulatory authorities;
non-compliance could compromise data from a particular trial, such as failure to verify that adequate
informed consent was obtained from patients, which could require us to repeat the trial under the terms
of our contract at no further cost to our customer, but at a potentially substantial cost to us; and
breach of a contractual term could result in liability for damages or termination of the contract.

The services we provide in connection with large clinical trials can cost tens of millions of dollars, and while we
endeavor to contractually limit our exposure to such risks, improper performance of our services could have a
material adverse effect on our financial condition, damage our reputation and result in the cancellation of current
contracts by the affected customer or other current customers or failure to obtain future contracts from the affected
customer or other current or potential customers.
Investigation of customers. From time to time, one or more of our customers are investigated by regulatory
authorities or enforcement agencies with respect to regulatory compliance of their clinical trials, programs or the
marketing and sale of their drugs. In these situations, we have often provided services to our customers with respect
to the clinical trials, programs or activities being investigated, and we are called upon to respond to requests for
information by the authorities and agencies. There is a risk that either our customers or regulatory authorities could
claim that we performed our services improperly or that we are responsible for clinical trial or program compliance.
If our customers or regulatory authorities make such claims against us, we could be subject to significant costs in
defending our activities and potential damages, fines or penalties. In addition, negative publicity regarding
regulatory compliance of our customers’ clinical trials, programs or products could have an adverse effect on our
business and reputation.
Insufficient customer funding to complete a clinical trial. As noted above, clinical trials can cost tens of millions of
dollars. There is a risk that we may initiate a clinical trial for a customer, and then the customer becomes unwilling
or unable to fund the completion of the trial. In such a situation, notwithstanding the customer’s ability or
willingness to pay for or otherwise facilitate the completion of the trial, we may be ethically bound to complete or
wind down the trial at our own expense.
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Interactive voice/web response service malfunction. We develop and maintain our own, and also use third-parties to
run, interactive voice/web response systems. These systems automatically manage the randomization of patients in a
given clinical trial to different treatment arms and regulate the supply of investigational drugs. An error in the
design, programming or validation of these systems could lead to inappropriate assignment or dosing of patients
which could give rise to patient safety issues, invalidation of the trial or liability claims against us. Furthermore,
negative publicity associated with such a malfunction could have an adverse effect on our business and reputation.
Additionally, errors in randomization may require us to repeat the trial at no further cost to our customer, but at a
substantial cost to us.
In addition to the above U.S. laws and regulations, we must comply with the laws of all countries where we do
business, including laws governing clinical trials in the jurisdiction where the trials are performed. Failure to comply
with applicable requirements could subject us to regulatory risk, liability and potential costs associated with redoing
the trials, which could damage our reputation and adversely affect our operating results.
Some of our services involve direct interaction with clinical trial patients and operation of a Phase I clinical
facility, which could create potential liability that may adversely affect our results of operations and financial
condition.
We operate a facility where Phase I clinical trials are conducted, which ordinarily involve testing an investigational
drug, biologic or medical device on a limited number of individuals to evaluate its safety, determine a safe dosage
range and identify side effects. Failure to operate such a facility and clinical trials in accordance with FDA, DEA
and other applicable regulations could result in disruptions to our operations. Additionally, we face risks associated
with adverse events resulting from the administration of such drugs, biologics and medical devices and the
professional malpractice of medical care providers. We also directly employ nurses and other trained employees
who assist in implementing the testing involved in our clinical trials, such as drawing blood from subjects. Any
professional malpractice or negligence by such investigators, nurses or other employees could potentially result in
liability to us in the event of personal injury to or death of a subject in clinical trials. This liability, particularly if it
were to exceed the limits of any indemnification agreements and insurance coverage we may have, may adversely
affect our financial condition, results of operations and reputation.
Our clinical development services could subject us to potential liability that may adversely affect our results of
operations and financial condition.
Our business involves the testing of new drugs, biologics and medical devices on patients in clinical trials. Our
involvement in the clinical trial and development process creates a risk of liability for personal injury to or death of
patients, particularly for those with life-threatening illnesses, resulting from adverse reactions to the products
administered during testing or after regulatory approval. For example, we may be sued in the future by individuals
alleging personal injury due to their participation in clinical trials and seeking damages from us under a variety of
legal theories. If we are required to pay damages or incur defense costs in connection with any personal injury claim
that is outside the scope of indemnification agreements we have with our customers, if any indemnification
agreement is not performed in accordance with its terms or if our liability exceeds the amount of any applicable
indemnification limits or available insurance coverage, our business, financial condition, results of operations, cash
flows or reputation could be materially and adversely affected. We might also not be able to obtain adequate
insurance or indemnification for these types of risks at reasonable rates in the future.
We also contract with institutions and physicians to serve as investigators in conducting clinical trials If the
investigators or study staff commit errors or make omissions during a clinical trial that result in harm to trial
patients, or patients suffer harm with a delayed onset after a clinical trial is completed and the product has obtained
regulatory approval, claims for personal injury or products liability damages may result. Additionally, if the
investigators engage in fraudulent or negligent behavior, trial data may be compromised, which may require us to
repeat the clinical trial or subject us to liability or regulatory action. We do not believe we are legally responsible for
the medical care rendered by such third party investigators, and we would vigorously defend any claims brought
against us. However, it is possible we could be found liable for claims with respect to the actions of third party
investigators and the institutions at which clinical trials may be conducted.
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Our operations involve the use and disposal of hazardous substances and waste which can give rise to liability
that could adversely impact our financial condition.
We conduct activities that have involved, and may continue to involve, the controlled use of hazardous materials and
the creation of hazardous substances, including medical waste and other highly regulated substances. As a result, our
operations pose the risk of accidental contamination or injury caused by the release of these materials and/or the
creation of hazardous substances, including medical waste and other highly regulated substances. In the event of
such an accident, we could be held liable for damages and cleanup costs which, to the extent not covered by existing
insurance or indemnification, could harm our business. In addition, other adverse effects could result from such
liability, including reputational damage resulting in the loss of additional business from certain customers.
We act as legal representative and/or data representative for some clients.
We act as the legal representative and/or the data representative for certain clients in certain jurisdictions. As we
believe that acting as legal representative and/or data representative of clients exposes us to a higher risk of liability,
this service is provided subject to our policy and requires certain preconditions to be met. The preconditions relate to
obtaining specific insurance commitments and indemnities from the client to cover the nature of the exposure.
However, there is no guarantee that the specific insurance will be available and provide cover or that a client will
fulfil its obligations in relation to their indemnity.
Our insurance may not cover all of our indemnification obligations and other liabilities associated with our
operations.
We maintain insurance designed to provide coverage for ordinary risks associated with our operations and our
ordinary indemnification obligations, which we believe to be customary for our industry. The coverage provided by
such insurance may not be adequate for all claims we may make or may be contested by our insurance carriers. If
our insurance is not adequate or available to pay liabilities associated with our operations, or if we are unable to
purchase adequate insurance at reasonable rates in the future, our business, financial condition, results of operations
or cash flows may be materially adversely impacted.
Our effective income tax rate may fluctuate, which may adversely affect our operations, earnings and earnings
per share.
Our effective income tax rate is influenced by our projected profitability in the various taxing jurisdictions in which
we operate. The global nature of our business increases our tax risks. In addition, for various reasons, revenue
authorities in many of the jurisdictions in which we operate are known to have become more active in their tax
collection activities. Changes in the distribution of profits and losses among taxing jurisdictions may have a
significant impact on our effective income tax rate, which in turn could have an adverse effect on our net income
and earnings per share. The application of tax laws in various taxing jurisdictions, including the United States, is
subject to interpretation, and tax authorities in various jurisdictions may have diverging and sometimes conflicting
interpretations of the application of tax laws. Changes in tax laws or tax rulings, in the United States or other tax
jurisdictions in which we operate, could materially impact our effective tax rate.
Factors that may affect our effective income tax rate include, but are not limited to:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

the requirement to exclude from our quarterly worldwide effective income tax calculations losses in
jurisdictions where no income tax benefit can be recognized;
actual and projected full year pre-tax income, including differences between actual and anticipated
income before taxes in various jurisdictions;
changes in tax laws, or in the interpretation or application of tax laws, in various taxing jurisdictions;
audits or other challenges by taxing authorities;
changes to intercompany transfer pricing policies or changes in laws within foreign tax jurisdictions
the establishment of valuation allowances against a portion or all of certain deferred income tax assets if
we determined that it is more likely than not that future income tax benefits will not be realized; and
changes in the relative mix and size of clinical trials and staffing levels in various tax jurisdictions.
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These changes may cause fluctuations in our effective income tax rate that could adversely affect our results of
operations and cause fluctuations in our earnings and earnings per share.
The requirements associated with being a public company require significant company resources and
management attention.
We are subject
j to the reporting
p
g requirements
q
of the Exchange
g Act, the Sarbanes-Oxleyy Act of 2002, as amended (the
“Sarbanes-Oxleyy Act”), the listingg requirements
q
of the securities exchange
g on which our common stock is traded,
and other applicable
pp
securities rules and regulations.
g
The Exchange
g Act requires
q
that we file annual, qquarterlyy and
current reports
p
with respect
p to our business and financial condition and maintain effective disclosure controls and
pprocedures and internal control over financial reporting.
p
g In addition, subsequent
q
rules implemented
p
byy the SEC and
NASDAQ mayy also impose
p
various additional requirements
q
on ppublic companies.
p
We have incurred, and we will
continue to incur, additional legal,
g accountingg and other expenses
p
that we did not ppreviously
y incur, pparticularly
y as
we are no longer
g an “emerging
g g ggrowth company”
p y as defined in the Jumpstart
p
Our Business Startups
p Act of 2012 (the
“JOBS Act”). We have made, and will continue to make, changes
g to our corporate
p
ggovernance standards, disclosure
controls and financial reporting
p
g and accountingg systems
y
to continue to meet our reporting
p
g obligations.
g
However, the
measures we take mayy not be sufficient to satisfy
y our obligations
g
as a ppublic company,
p y which could subject
j us to
delistingg of our common stock, fines, sanctions and other regulatory
g
y action and potentially
p
y civil litigation.
g
We are subjectt to Section 404(b) off the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, which requires thatt ourr independentt registered public
accounting firm provide an attestation reportt on the effectiveness off ourr internal control overr financial reporting,
among otherr additional requirements. Compliance with Section 404 is expensive and time consuming for
managementt and could resultt in the detection off internal control deficiencies off which we are currently unaware.
Moreover, iff we have a material weakness in ourr internal controls overr financial reporting, we may nott detectt errors
on a timely basis, and ourr financial statements may be materially misstated. We orr ourr independentt registered public
accounting firm may nott be able to conclude on an ongoing basis thatt we have effective internal controls over
financial reporting, which could harm ourr operating results, cause investors to lose confidence in ourr reported
financial information and cause the trading price off ourr common stockk to fall. Any failure to file accurate and timely
and annual reports thatt we are required to file with the SEC underr the Exchange Actt could resultt in
sanctions, lawsuits, delisting off ourr shares from the NASDAQ Global Selectt Markett orr otherr adverse consequences
thatt would materially harm ourr business.
Structural and Organizational Risks
Our Chief Executive Officer and founder controls a substantial amount of our outstanding common stock and
his interests may be different from or conflict with those of our other shareholders.
As of December 31, 2020, August J. Troendle, our Chief Executive Officer and founder, through his direct
ownership of 693,702 shares of our common stock and his beneficial ownership of 6,493,867 shares of our common
stock held by Medpace Investors LLC (“Medpace Investors”), controls approximately 20.2% of the outstanding
shares of our common stock. Upon a distribution of our common stock held by Medpace Investors, our Chief
Executive Officer would receive approximately 84.8% of such distributed shares. Accordingly, Troendle is able to
exert a significant degree of influence or actual control over our management and affairs and control all corporate
actions requiring shareholder approval, irrespective of how our other shareholders may vote, including:
•
•
•

the election and removal of directors and the size of our board of directors, or the Board;
any amendment of our articles of incorporation or bylaws; or
the approval of mergers and other significant corporate transactions, including a sale of substantially all
of our assets.

Moreover, Troendle’s share ownership may also adversely affect the trading price for our common stock to the
extent investors perceive disadvantages in owning shares of a company with a significant shareholder.
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We are party to transactions with related persons that may increase the risk of allegations of conflicts of interest,
and such allegations may impair our ability to realize the benefits we expect from these transactions.
Due to the relationships among us and certain related persons, the agreements or other transactions we have entered
into with them are considered related person transactions. Our agreements or transactions with related persons may
not be on terms as favorable to us as they would have been if they had been negotiated among unrelated persons. For
additional information on related person transactions involving us, see the “Certain Relationships” section in our
Proxy Statement for our 2021 Annual Meeting of Stockholders. While our Related Person Transaction Policy and
Procedures requires our Audit Committee’s consideration of all relevant facts and circumstances, including a
determination of whether the transaction has terms comparable to those that could be obtained in an arm’s length
transaction, the potential for a conflict of interest exists and such related persons may have conflicts of interest, or
the appearance of conflicts of interest, with respect to matters involving or affecting us and the related person.
Moreover, we are subject to the risk that our stockholders may challenge any such related person transactions and
the agreements entered into as part of them. If such a challenge were to be successful, we might not realize the
benefits expected from the transactions being challenged. Moreover, any such challenge could result in substantial
costs and a diversion of our management’s attention, could have a material adverse effect on our reputation, business
and growth and could adversely affect our ability to realize the benefits expected from the transactions, whether or
not the allegations have merit or are substantiated.
General Risks
If we lose the services of key personnel or are unable to recruit experienced personnel, our business could be
adversely affected.
Our success substantially depends on the collective performance, contributions and expertise of our senior
management team, including August J. Troendle, our Chief Executive Officer and founder, and other key personnel
including qualified management, professional, scientific and technical operating staff. There is significant
competition for qualified personnel in the biopharmaceutical services industry, particularly for those with higher
educational degrees, such as a medical or nursing degree, a Ph.D., or an equivalent degree, and our industry
generally tends to experience relatively high levels of employee turnover. If any of our key employees were to join a
competitor or to form a competing company, some of our customers might choose to use the services of that
competitor or new company instead of our own. Furthermore, customers or other companies seeking to develop inhouse capabilities may hire some of our senior management or other key employees. The departure of any key
contributor, the payment of increased compensation to attract and retain qualified personnel or our inability to
continue to identify, attract and retain qualified personnel or replace any departed personnel in a timely fashion may
impact our ability to grow our business and compete effectively in our industry and may negatively affect our
business, financial condition, results of operations, cash flows or reputation.
Our operations might be affected by the occurrence of a natural disaster or other catastrophic event.
We depend on our customers, investigators, laboratories and other facilities for the continued operation of our
business. Although we have contingency plans in place for natural disasters or other catastrophic events, these
events, including terrorist attacks, pandemic flu, hurricanes, floods and ice and snow storms, could nevertheless
disrupt our operations and IT systems or those of our customers, investigators and collaboration partners, which
could also affect us. Even though we carry business interruption insurance policies and typically have provisions in
our contracts that protect us in certain events, we might suffer losses as a result of business interruptions that exceed
the coverage available under our insurance policies or for which we do not have coverage. Any natural disaster or
catastrophic event affecting us or our customers, investigators or collaboration partners could have a significant
negative impact on our operations and financial performance.
Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
None.
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Item 2. Properties
As off Decemberr 31, 2020, we had leased commercial locations in various countries across North America, Europe,
p
Asia/Pacific, South America and Africa. We also own lab and office space in Leuven, Belgium. Mostt off these
facilities consistt solely off office space; however, we have five laboratories located across fourr facilities and a
logistics warehouse. Ourr principal executive offices are located on a corporate campus in Cincinnati, Ohio
consisting off five buildings totaling approximately 600,000 square feet. The leases forr fourr buildings in ourr
Cincinnati site expire in 2022, 2027, 2027 and 2040, respectively. We own the otherr building. None off ourr leases are
individually material to ourr business model and all have eitherr options to renew orr are located in majorr markets with
whatt we believe are adequate opportunities to continue business operations on terms satisfactory to us.
Item 3. Legal Proceedings
We are ppartyy to legal
g pproceedings
g incidental to our business and may
y become subject
j to additional legal
g pproceedings
g
in the future. While the outcome of these matters could differ from management’s
g
expectations,
p
we do not believe
that the resolution of these matters, individuallyy and in the aggregate,
gg g
is reasonablyy likelyy to have a material adverse
effect to our consolidated financial statements. Litigation
g
is subject
j to inherent uncertainties. See Note 12
“Commitments, Contingencies
g
and Guarantees—Legal
g Proceedings”
g to our consolidated financial statements
included in Item 8 of Part II in this Annual Report
p on Form 10-K.
Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures
Not applicable.
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PART II
Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of
Equity Securities
Market Information for Common Stock
Our common stock trades on the NASDAQ Global Select Market under the symbol “MEDP”.
Holders of Record
On February 12, 2021, there were approximately 16 shareholders of record of our common stock. Because many of
the shares of our common stock are registered in “nominee” or “street” names, we believe that the total number of
beneficial owners is considerably higher.
Dividend Policy
We have not paid any dividends to date, nor do we have current plans to pay any cash dividends on our common
stock for the foreseeable future and instead intend to retain earnings, if any, for future operations, expansion and
debt repayment. However, in the future, subject to the factors described below and our future liquidity and
capitalization, we may change this policy and choose to pay dividends.
We are a holding company which does not conduct any business operations of our own. As a result, our ability to
pay cash dividends on our common stock is dependent upon cash dividends and distributions and other transfers
from our subsidiaries.
In addition, under Delaware law, our Board may declare dividends only to the extent of our surplus (which is
defined as total assets at fair market value minus total liabilities, minus statutory capital) or, if there is no surplus,
out of our net profits for the then current and/or immediately preceding fiscal year.
Any future determination to declare dividends will be at the discretion of our Board and will take into account:

general economic business conditions;

our net income, financial condition and results of operations;

our capital requirements;

our prospects;

the ability of our operating subsidiaries to pay dividends and make distributions to us;

legal restrictions; and

such other factors as our Board may deem relevant.
Share Repurchases
In the first quarter of 2018, the Board of Directors approved a share repurchase program authorizing up to $50.0
million in share repurchases. In the first quarter of 2020, the Board of Directors approved an increase in the stock
repurchase authorization by $50.0 million and in the fourth quarter of 2020, the Board approved an additional
authorization up to $150 million. The program may be discontinued or amended at any time without notice.
This table provides certain information with respect to our monthly repurchases of the Company’s common stock
during the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2020:

Period
October 1, 2020, through
October 31, 2020
November 1, 2020, through
November 30, 2020
Total

Total Number of
Shares Purchased

Average Price Paid
per Share

Total Number of
Shares Purchased
as Part of Publically
Announced Plan

Approximate Dollar
Value of Shares That
May Yet Be Purchased
Under the Plan

82,400

$

110.91

854,525

$

140,860,999

328,570
410,970

$
$

116.55
115.42

1,183,095
1,183,095

$

102,565,353
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All share repurchases were made using cash resources and executed pursuant to established Rule 10b5-1 trading
plans. Our share repurchases may occur through open market purchases or negotiated transactions. The above table
excludes shares repurchased to settle employee tax withholding related to the vesting of stock awards.
We returned $47.4 million to shareholders in the form of share repurchases in the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2020.
Refer to Note 1 – Basis of Presentation of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Part II, Item 8 of this
Form 10-K) for further discussion regarding share repurchases.
Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities

Date
October 2, 2020
October 2, 2020
October 5, 2020
October 9, 2020
October 16, 2020
October 27, 2020
October 27, 2020
November 2, 2020
November 4, 2020
November 6, 2020
November 9, 2020
November 25, 2020
December 4, 2020
December 9, 2020
December 18, 2020
December 21, 2020
December 21, 2020
December 28, 2020
Total

Equity Plan
2014 Equity Incentive Plan
2014 Equity Incentive Plan
2014 Equity Incentive Plan
2014 Equity Incentive Plan
2014 Equity Incentive Plan
2014 Equity Incentive Plan
2014 Equity Incentive Plan
2014 Equity Incentive Plan
2014 Equity Incentive Plan
2014 Equity Incentive Plan
2014 Equity Incentive Plan
2014 Equity Incentive Plan
2014 Equity Incentive Plan
2014 Equity Incentive Plan
2014 Equity Incentive Plan
2014 Equity Incentive Plan
2014 Equity Incentive Plan
2014 Equity Incentive Plan

Number of Stock
Options
Exercised
1,851
2,592
400
4,500
3,407
27,555
5,250
500
2,200
1,000
1,370
2,100
300
200
7,407
750
666
9,258
71,306

$

Exercise Price
14.41
16.20
16.20
16.20
16.20
14.41
16.20
18.23
14.41
14.41
14.41
14.41
14.41
14.41
14.41
14.41
16.20
16.20

Approximate
Aggregate
Purchase Price
$
26,700
42,000
6,500
72,900
55,200
397,100
85,100
9,100
31,700
14,400
19,700
30,300
4,300
2,900
106,700
10,800
10,800
150,000
$
1,076,200

All of the forgoing transactions involved issuances of securities to employees of the Company and are exempt from
registration pursuant to Rule 701 promulgated under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, as transactions
pursuant to benefit plans and contracts relating to compensation.
Purchases of Equity Securities by the Issuer and Affiliated Purchasers
None.
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Stock Performance Graph
The information included under the heading “Stock Performance Graph” is “furnished” and not “filed” for purposes
of Section 18 of the Exchange Act, or otherwise subject to the liabilities of that section, nor shall it be deemed to be
“soliciting material” subject to Regulation 14A or incorporated by reference in any filing under the Securities Act of
1933, as amended, or the Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.
Our common stock is listed for trading on the NASDAQ under the symbol “MEDP.” The Stock Price Performance
Graph set forth below compares the cumulative total shareholder return on our common stock for the period from
August 11, 2016 through December 31, 2020, with the cumulative total return of the Nasdaq Composite Index and
the Nasdaq Health Care Index over the same period. The comparison assumes $100 was invested on August 11,
2016 in the common stock of Medpace Holdings, Inc., in the Nasdaq Composite Index, and in the Nasdaq Health
Care Index and assumes reinvestment of dividends, if any. The stock price performance of the following graph is not
necessarily indicative of future stock price performance. Information used in the graph was obtained from the
Nasdaq Stock Market, a source believed to be reliable, but we are not responsible for any errors or omissions in such
information.
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Equity Compensation Plan Information
The information required by Part II, Item 5 of the Annual Report on Form 10-K regarding equity compensation
plans is incorporated herein by reference to “Part III, Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and
Management and Related Stockholder Matters.”
Item 6. Selected Financial Data
Not applicable.
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
You should read the following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations in
conjunction with our consolidated financial statements and the notes thereto included elsewhere in this Annual
Report on Form 10-K to provide an understanding of our results of operations, financial condition and cash flows.
This section of this Form 10-K generally discusses 2020 and 2019 items and year-to-year comparisons between
2020 and 2019. For a comparison of our results of operations for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2019 and
December 31, 2018, see “Part II, Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results
of Operations” of our annual report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2019, filed with the SEC
on February 25, 2020. This item and the related discussion contain forward-looking statements reflecting current
expectations that involve risks and uncertainties. Actual results and the timing of events may differ materially from
those indicated in such forward-looking statements. Important factors that may cause such differences include, but
are not limited to, those discussed under the “Forward-Looking Statements” above and “Item IA. Risk Factors” in
Part I of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
Business Overview
We are one of the world’s leading clinical contract research organizations, or CROs, by revenue, solely focused on
providing scientifically-driven outsourced clinical development services to the biotechnology, pharmaceutical and
medical device industries. Our mission is to accelerate the global development of safe and effective medical
therapeutics. We differentiate ourselves from our competitors by our disciplined operating model centered on
providing full-service Phase I-IV clinical development services and our therapeutic expertise. We believe this
combination results in timely and cost-effective delivery of clinical development services for our customers. We
believe that we are a partner of choice for small- and mid-sized biopharmaceutical companies based on our ability to
consistently utilize our full-service, disciplined operating model to deliver timely and high-quality results for our
customers.
We focus on conducting clinical trials across all major therapeutic areas, with particular strength in Oncology,
Metabolic Disease, Cardiology, Antiviral and Anti-infective, or AVAI, and Central Nervous System, or CNS. Our
global platform includes approximately 3,600 employees across 39 countries, providing our customers with broad
access to diverse markets and patient populations as well as local regulatory expertise and market knowledge.
How We Generate Revenue
We earn fees through the performance of services detailed in our customer contracts. Contract scope and pricing is
typically based on either a fixed-fee or unit-of-service model, with consideration of activities performed by third
parties, as well as ancillary costs necessary to deliver on the contract scope that are reimbursable by our customers.
Our contracts can range in duration from a few months to several years. These contracts are individually priced and
negotiated based on the anticipated project scope, including the complexity of the project and the performance risks
inherent in the project. The majority of our contracts are structured with an upfront fee that is collected at the time of
contract signing, and the balance of the fee is collected over the duration of the contract either through an arranged
billing schedule or upon completion of certain performance targets or defined milestones.
Revenue, which is distinct from billing and cash receipt, is recognized based on the satisfaction of the individual
performance obligations identified in each contract. Substantially all of our customer contracts consist of a single
performance obligation, as the promise to transfer the individual services defined in the contracts are not separately
identifiable from other promises in the contract, and therefore not distinct. Our performance obligations are
generally satisfied over time and recognized as services are performed. The progression of our contract performance
obligations are measured primarily utilizing the input method of cost to cost. Cancellation provisions in our
contracts allow our customers to terminate a contract either immediately or according to advance notice terms
specified within the applicable contract, which is typically 30 days. Contract cancellation may occur for various
reasons, including, but not limited to, adverse patient reactions, lack of efficacy, or inadequate patient enrollment.
Upon cancellation, we are entitled to fees for services rendered and reimbursable costs incurred through the date of
termination, including payment for subsequent services necessary to conclude the study or close out the contract.
These fees are typically discussed and agreed upon with the customer and are realized as revenue when we believe
the amount can be estimated reliably and its realization is probable. Changes in revenue from period to period are
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driven primarily by new business volume and task order execution activity, project cancellations, changes in
estimated costs to complete performance obligations, and the mix of active studies during a given period that can
vary based on therapeutic area and or study life cycle stage.
Costs and Expenses
Our costs and expenses are comprised primarily of our total direct costs, selling, general and administrative costs,
depreciation and amortization and income taxes.
Total Direct Costs
Total direct costs are primarily driven by labor and related employee benefits, but also include contracted third party
service related expenses, fees paid to site investigators, reimbursed out of pocket expenses, laboratory supplies and
other expenses contributing to service delivery. The other costs of service delivery can include office rent, utilities,
supplies and software licenses which are allocated between Total direct costs and selling, general and administrative
expenses based on the estimated contribution among service delivery and support function efforts on a percentage
basis. Total direct costs are expensed as incurred and are not deferred in anticipation of contracts being awarded or
finalization of changes in scope. Total direct costs, as a percentage of net revenue, can vary from period to period
due to project labor efficiencies, changes in workforce, compensation/bonus programs and service mix.
Selling, General and Administrative
Selling, general and administrative expenses are primarily driven by compensation and related employee benefits, as
well as rent, utilities, supplies, software licenses, professional fees (e.g., legal and accounting expenses), travel,
marketing and other operating expenses.
Depreciation
Depreciation is provided on our property and equipment on the straight-line method at rates adequate to allocate the
cost of the applicable assets over their estimated useful lives, which is three to five years for computer hardware,
software, phone, and medical imaging equipment, five to seven years for furniture and fixtures and other equipment,
and thirty to forty years for buildings. Leasehold improvements are amortized on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of the estimated useful life of the improvement or the associated remaining lease term.
Amortization
Amortization relates to finite-lived intangible assets recognized as expense using the straight-line method or using
an accelerated method over their estimated useful lives, which range in term from 5 to 15 years.
Income Tax Provision
Income tax provision consists of federal, state and local taxes on income in multiple jurisdictions. Our income tax is
impacted by the pre-tax earnings in jurisdictions with varying tax rates and any related tax credits that may be available
to us. Our current and future provision for income taxes will vary from statutory rates due to the impact of valuation
allowances in certain countries, income tax incentives, certain non-deductible expenses, and other discrete items.
Key Performance Metrics
To evaluate the performance of our business, we utilize a variety of financial and performance metrics. These key
measures include net new business awards and backlog.
Net New Business Awards and Backlog
New business awards represent the value of anticipated future net revenue that has been recognized in backlog
during the period. This value is recognized upon the signing of a contract or receipt of a written pre-contract
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confirmation from a customer that confirms an agreement in principle on budget and scope. New business awards
also include contract amendments, or changes in scope, where the customer has provided written authorization for
changes in budget and scope or has approved us to perform additional work as of the measurement date. Awards
may not be recognized as backlog after consideration of a number of factors, including whether (i) the relevant net
revenue is expected only after a pending regulatory hurdle, which might result in cancellation of the study, (ii) the
customer funding needed for commencement of the study is not believed to have been secured or (iii) study
timelines are uncertain or not well defined. In addition, study amounts that extend beyond three years from
measurement date are not included in backlog. The number and amount of new business awards can vary
significantly from period to period, and an award’s contractual duration can range from several months to several
years based on customer and project specifications.
Cancellations arise in the normal course of business and are reflected when we receive written confirmation from the
customer to cease work on a contractual agreement or when we believe the future revenue is unlikely to be realized.
The majority of our customers can terminate our contracts without cause upon 30 days’ notice. Similar to new
business awards, the number and amount of cancellations can vary significantly period over period due to timing of
customer correspondence and study-specific circumstances.
Net new business awards represent
p
gross
g
new business awards received in a pperiod offset by
y total cancellations in
that period.
p
Net new business awards were $1,175.0 million, $1,094.4 million and $899.4 million for the years
y
ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018, respectively.
p
y
Backlog represents anticipated future net revenue from net new business awards that have commenced, but have not
been completed. Reported backlog will fluctuate based on new business awards, changes in scope to existing
contracts, cancellations, net revenue recognition on existing contracts and foreign exchange adjustments from nonU.S. dollar denominated backlog. As off Decemberr 31, 2020, ourr backlog increased by $258.5 million, orr 20.1%, to
$1,541.7 million compared to $1,283.2 million as off Decemberr 31, 2019. Included within backlog as of
December 31, 2020 was approximately $785 million to $805 million that we expect to convert to net revenue in
2021, with the remainder expected to convert to net revenue in years after 2021.
The effect of foreign currency adjustments on backlog was as follows: favorable foreign currency adjustments of
$14.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2020, unfavorable foreign currency adjustments of $6.6 million for
the year ended December 31, 2019 and unfavorable foreign currency adjustments of $2.3 million for the year ended
December 31, 2018.
Backlog and net new business award metrics may not be reliable indicators of our future period revenue as they are
subject to a variety of factors that may cause material fluctuations from period to period. These factors include, but
are not limited to, changes in the scope of projects, cancellations, and duration and timing of services provided.
Coronavirus (COVID-19)
On March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization
g
declared the coronavirus COVID-19 outbreak to be a pandemic.
p
This ppandemic has resulted in increased travel restrictions and caused the shutdown of manyy businesses in countries
in which we operate.
p
While we continue to operate
p
gglobally,
y the level of activityy at each of our locations varies
depending
p
g on the local governmental
g
requirements
q
and guidelines.
g
Our office staff are effectivelyy workingg in the
office or remotelyy and our labs are fullyy operational
p
with modifications made to ensure the safetyy of our employees.
p y
The diversion of resources to treat COVID-19 ppatients has significantly
g
y impacted
p
the operations
p
at most of the
investigative
g
sites where patients
p
in our clinical trials are recruited and treated. This has resulted in reduced trial
starts and slowed new business awards, each of which results in decreased revenues. Depending
p
g on the duration of
the disruption,
p
ongoing
g g studies mayy be cancelled and some of our clients may
y lack the fundingg to complete
p
trials
which are extended due to slowed recruitment of ppatients. We work with manyy smaller clients with limited financial
resources and market disruptions
p
may
y make raising
g additional funds difficult for those clients. Travel restrictions
and business closures have also impacted
p
study
y pparticipants
p
and clinical sites which affects our ability
y to efficiently
y
pprovide clinical trial services. As a result, we are workingg with our customers to developp solutions to limit disruption
p
to clinical trials while followingg required
q
regulatory
g
y guidelines
g
and maintaining
g quality
q
y to ensure the health and
well-beingg of study
y pparticipants.
p
These include alternative assessment methods such as virtual monitoring
g visits. The
COVID-19 outbreak had a significant
g
adverse effect on fiscal year
y 2020 and we believe that the outbreak may
y have
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a continued adverse impact
p on our results of operations
p
in the future. In connection with this adverse impact
p in 2020,
we evaluated our headcount needs in a number of ggeographies
g p
and implemented
p
some staff reductions where
appropriate.
pp p
As we cannot predict
p
the duration or scope
p of the pandemic,
p
the future financial impact
p on our results of
operations
p
and financial condition cannot be reasonablyy estimated.
Exchange Rate Fluctuations
The majority of our contracts and operational transactions are U.S. dollar denominated. The Euro represents the
largest foreign currency denomination of our contractual and operational exposure. As a result, a portion of our
revenue and expenses is subject to exchange rate fluctuations. We have translated the Euro into U.S. dollars using
the following average exchange rates based on data obtained from www.xe.com:
Year Ended December 31,
2019

2020

U.S. Dollars per
p Euro:

1.14

1.12

2018

1.18

Results of Operations
Year Ended December 31, 2020 compared to Year Ended December 31, 2019
Year Ended December 31,
2020
2019

(Amounts in thousands, except percentages)

Revenue, net
Direct service costs, excluding depreciation
and amortization
Reimbursed out-of-pocket expenses
Total direct costs
Selling, general and administrative
Depreciation
Amortization
Total operating expenses
Income from operations
Miscellaneous income (expense), net
Interest income (expense), net
Income before income taxes
Income tax provision
Net income

$

925,925

$

354,426
292,773
647,199
92,156
11,652
7,876
758,883
167,042
1,183
307
168,532
23,148
145,384

Change

$

860,969

$

$

321,006
294,266
615,272
95,245
8,360
14,829
733,706
127,263
(863)
(1,568)
124,832
24,389
100,443 $

% Change

64,956

7.5%

33,420
(1,493)
31,927
(3,089)
3,292
(6,953)
25,177
39,779
2,046
1,875
43,700
(1,241)
44,941

10.4%
(0.5)%
5.2%
(3.2)%
39.4%
(46.9)%
3.4%

Total revenue
Total revenue increased by $65.0 million to $925.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2020, from $861.0
million for the year ended December 31, 2019. The increase was primarily driven by strong activity within the
Oncology,, AVAI and other uncategorized therapeutic areas.
Total direct costs
Total direct costs increased by $31.9 million, to $647.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2020 from $615.3
million for the year ended December 31, 2019. The increase was primarily attributed to personnel costs to support
the growth in service activities. The higher personnel costs portion, including severance, increased by $30.7 million
in the year ended December 31, 2020, compared to the same period in the prior year.
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Selling, general and administrative
Selling, general and administrative expenses decreased by $3.1 million, to $92.2 million for the year ended
December 31, 2020 from $95.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2019. The decrease was primarily driven
by lower travel related costs of $2.5 million in the year ended December 31, 2020, compared to the same period in
the prior year, due to travel restrictions related to COVID-19.
Depreciation and Amortization
Depreciation and amortization expense decreased by $3.7 million, to $19.5 million for the year ended December 31,
2020 from $23.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2019. The decrease in depreciation and amortization was
primarily related to the amortization of our definite lived intangible assets, which are amortized on an accelerated
basis.
Miscellaneous income (expense), net
Miscellaneous income (expense), net increased by $2.0 million to $1.2 million of income for the year ended
December 31, 2020 from $0.9 million of expense for the year ended December 31, 2019. These changes were
mainly attributable to foreign exchange gains or losses that arise in connection with the revaluation of short-term
inter-company balances between our domestic and international subsidiaries, gains or losses from foreign currency
transactions, such as those resulting from the settlement of third-party accounts receivables and payables
denominated in a currency other than the local currency of the entity making the payment.
Interest income (expense), net
Interest income (expense), net increased by $1.9 million to $0.3 million of income for the year ended December 31,
2020 from $1.6 million of expense for the year ended December 31, 2019. The increase in interest income
(expense), net was related to a lower average outstanding balance in the year ended December 31, 2020 under our
credit facility.
Income tax provision
Income tax provision decreased by $1.2 million, to $23.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2020 from $24.4
million for the year ended December 31, 2019. The overall effective tax rates for the years ended December 31,
The decrease in the income tax provision and overall effective
rate was primarily attributable to an increase in excess tax benefits recognized from share-based compensation and
an increase in tax benefits due to foreign tax credits and the benefitt off uncertain tax positions.
Year ended December 31, 2019 compared to Year ended December 31, 2018
See “Item 7 Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” in the
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2019.
Liquidity and Capital Resources
We assess our liquidity in terms of our ability to generate cash to fund our operating, investing and financing
activities. Our principal sources of liquidity are operating cash flows and funds available for borrowing under ourr
unsecured creditt facility (the “Creditt Facility”)
Facility”). As of December 31, 2020, we had cash and cash equivalents of
$277.8 million. Approximately $28.7 million of our cash and cash equivalents, none of which was restricted, was
held by our foreign subsidiaries as of December 31, 2020.
On Septemberr 30, 2019, the Company entered into the Creditt Facility consisting off up to a $50.0 million revolving
line off creditt (the “Line off Credit”). The Creditt Facility replaced a Seniorr Secured Term Loan Facility off $165.0
million (the “Priorr Seniorr Secured Term Loan Facility”) and a Seniorr Secured Revolving Creditt Facility off $150.0
million (the “Priorr Seniorr Secured Revolving Creditt Facility” and, togetherr with the Priorr Seniorr Secured Term
Loan Facility, the “Priorr Seniorr Secured Creditt Facilities”
Facilities”)) which were sett to expire in Decemberr 2021. In relation
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to the termination off the Priorr Seniorr Secured Creditt Facilities, we repaid all outstanding obligations. As a result, no
amounts remain outstanding underr the Priorr Seniorr Secured Creditt Facilities.
As of December 31, 2020, we had $49.8 million available for borrowing under the Credit Facility. Our expected
primary cash needs on both a short and long-term basis are for investment in operational growth, capital
expenditures, share repurchases, selective strategic bolt-on acquisitions, other investments, and other general
corporate needs. We have historically funded our operations and growth with cash flow from operations and
borrowings under our credit facilities. We expect to continue expanding our operations through organic growth and
potentially highly selective bolt-on acquisitions and investments. We expect these activities will be funded from
existing cash, cash flow from operations and, if necessary, borrowings under our existing or future credit facilities or
other debt. We have deemed that foreign earnings will be indefinitely reinvested and therefore we have not provided
taxes on these earnings. While we do not anticipate the need to repatriate these foreign earnings for liquidity
purposes given our cash flows from operations and available borrowings under existing and future credit facilities,
we would incur taxes on these earnings if the need for repatriation due to liquidity purposes arises. We believe that
our sources of liquidity and capital will be sufficient to finance our cash needs for the next 12 months and on a
longer-term basis. However, we cannot assure you that our business will generate sufficient cash flow from
operations, or that future borrowings will be available to us under our Credit Facility or otherwise, in an amount
sufficient to fund our liquidity needs.
Year Ended December 31,
Cash Flows (Amounts in thousands)
Net cash provided by operating activities
$
Net cash used in investing activities
Net cash used in financing activities
Effect of exchange rates on cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash

Increase (decrease) in cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash

$

2020

258,676 $
(31,214)
(82,282)
666
145,846 $

2019

201,867 $
(19,144)
(73,918)
(167)
108,638 $

2018

156,584
(16,973)
(141,580)
(1,241)
(3,210)

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Cash flows from operations are driven mainly by nett income, stockk based compensation expense, amortization of
intangibles and nett movementt in advanced billings, accrued expenses, prepaid and otherr currentt assets, and accounts
ounts
receivable and unbilled, net. Accounts receivable and unbilled, net, and advanced billings fluctuate on a regular
ar
basis as we perform ourr services, bill ourr customers and ultimately collectt on those receivables. We attemptt to
negotiate paymentt terms in orderr to provide forr payments priorr to orr soon afterr the provision off services, butt this
timing off collection can vary significantly on a period by period comparative basis.
Net cash flows provided by operating activities were $258.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2020
consisting of net income of $145.4 million. Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating
activities were $47.0 million, primarily related to noncash lease expense of $13.9 million, stock based compensation
expense of $13.8 million, depreciation of $11.7 million, amortization of intangibles of $7.9 million, and deferred
income tax provision of $0.5 million. Changes in operating assets and liabilities provided $66.3 million in operating
increased advanced billings off $63.4 million and increased accrued
expenses off $24.2 million, offsett by decreased lease liabilities off $11.5 million and increased accounts receivable
and unbilled, nett off $5.5 million.
Net cash flows provided by operating activities were $201.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2019
consisting of net income of $100.4 million. Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating
activities were $65.9 million, primarily related to stock based compensation expense of $20.7 million, amortization
of intangibles of $14.8 million, deferred income tax provision of $10.1 million, noncash lease expense of $9.9
million, and depreciation of $8.4 million. Changes in operating assets and liabilities provided $35.6 million in
operating cash flows and were primarily driven by increased advanced billings off $44.6 million and increasedd
accrued expenses off $21.8 million, offsett by increased accounts receivable and unbilled, nett off $21.3 million.
million

- 41 -

Net cash flows provided by operating activities were $156.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2018
consisting of net income of $73.2 million. Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating
activities were $43.8 million, primarily related to amortization of intangibles of $29.6 million, depreciation of $9.2
million, stock based compensation expense of $6.5 million, and deferred income tax provision of $3.9 million, offset
by $7.7 million of amortization and adjustment of deferred credit. Changes in operating assets and liabilities
provided $39.6 million in operating cash flows and were primarily driven by increased advanced billings of $35.6
million and increased accrued expenses of $29.0 million, offset by increased accounts receivable and unbilled, net of
$27.0 million.
Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Net cash used in investing activities was $31.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2020 primarily consisting of
property and equipment expenditures.
Net cash used in investing activities was $19.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2019 primarily consisting of
property and equipment expenditures.
Net cash used in investing activities was $17.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2018 primarily consisting of
property and equipment expenditures.
Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Net cash used in financing activities was $82.3 million in the year ended December 31, 2020, primarily related to
$98.3 million in repurchases of common stock, offset by proceeds from stock options exercises of $16.0 million.
Net cash used in financing activities was $73.9 million in the year ended December 31, 2019, primarily related to
$80.4 million in principal payments on our Prior Senior Secured Term Loan Facility, offset by proceeds from stock
options exercises of $6.5 million.
Net cash used in financing activities was $141.6 million in the year ended December 31, 2018, primarily related to
$72.2 million in principal payments on our Prior Senior Secured Term Loan Facility and $70.0 million in principal
payments on our Prior Senior Secured Revolving Credit Facility.
Share Repurchases
In the first qquarter of 2018, the Board of Directors approved
pp
a share repurchase
p
program
p g
authorizingg upp to $50.0
million in share repurchases.
p
In the first quarter
q
of 2020, the Board of Directors approved
pp
an increase in the stock
repurchase
p
authorization by
y $50.0 million. In the fourth quarter
q
of 2020, the Board approved
pp
the stock repurchase
p
authorization upp to $150.0 million. For the year
y ended December 31, 2020, the Company
p y repurchased
p
1,183,095
shares for $98.3 million. As of December 31, 2020, we have remainingg authorization of $102.6 million remaining
g
under the repurchases program.
Repurchases
p
under the share repurchase
p
program
p g
are executed in the open
p market or negotiated
g
transactions under
tradingg plans
p
established pursuant
p
to Rule 10b5-1. The Company
p y constructively
y retired the repurchased
p
shares
associated with these approved
pp
share repurchase
p
programs,
p g
with all amounts paid
p in excess of par
p value reflected
within Retained earnings
g in the Company’s
p y consolidated balance sheets. The repurchase
p
pprogram
g
may
y be suspended
p
or discontinued at anyy time without notice.
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Indebtedness
On September 30, 2019 (the “Closing Date”), Medpace Inc., as borrower (the “Borrower”), and Medpace
IntermediateCo, Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, as guarantor (the “Guarantor”), entered into the
new loan agreement (the “Loan Agreement”), which provides for an unsecured credit facility (the “Credit Facility”)
in an aggregate principal amount up to $50.0 million. The Credit Facility provides that outstanding balances will
bear interest at a rate of LIBOR plus 100 basis points (1.00%). The Loan Agreementt also provides thatt the Credit
Facility will expire in 364 days from the Closing Date.
to extend its expiration date to March 31, 2021 and add provisions for alternative interest rates when certain
interbank market offered rates are not available.
The Credit Facility is guaranteed by the Guarantor and its material, direct or indirect wholly owned domestic
subsidiaries, with certain exceptions, including where providing such guarantees is not permitted by law, regulation
or contract or would result in adverse tax consequences. All of the obligations under the Credit Facility are
unsecured.
The Credit Facility is subject to customary negative covenants. The Company was in compliance with all financial
covenants as of December 31, 2020.
The Credit Facility contains certain events of default, including, among others, non-payment of principal or interest,
breach of the covenants, cross default and cross acceleration to certain other indebtedness, defaults on monetary
judgment orders, certain ERISA events, certain bankruptcy and insolvency events, actual or asserted invalidity of
any guarantee or security document and change in control.
As off Decemberr 31, 2020, we had no indebtedness underr the Creditt Facility. As off Decemberr 31, 2020, we had $0.2
million in letters off creditt outstanding related to certain operating lease obligations, which are secured by the Credit
Facility.
y
Contractual Obligations and Commercial Commitments
We have various contractual obligations, which are recorded as liabilities in our consolidated financial statements.
Other items are not recognized as liabilities in our consolidated financial statements but are required to be disclosed.
The following table summarizes our future payments for all contractual obligations and commercial commitments
for the years subsequent to the year ended December 31, 2020:

Contractual Obligations (In thousands)

Operating lease obligations
Total

Total

$

196,471
196,471

Payments Due by Period
Less than 1
year
1-3 years
3-5 years

$

22,415
22,415

$

35,509
35,509

$

26,884
26,884

More than 5
years

$

111,663
111,663

We have recorded a tax liability for unrecognized benefits for uncertain tax positions of $8.6 million, which has not
been included in the above table due to the uncertainties in the timing of settlement of the income tax positions.
We are a party to certain vendor contracts related to clinical services that if cancelled may require payments for
services performed and potentially additional services required to protect the safety of subjects. The value of these
potential wind-down provisions is generally borne by our customers and is not practical to estimate.
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Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
Off-balance sheet arrangements refer to any transaction, agreement or other contractual arrangement to which an
entity not consolidated under our entity structure exists, where we have an obligation arising under a guarantee
contract, derivative instrument or variable interest or a retained or contingent interest in assets transferred to such an
entity or similar arrangement that serves as credit, liquidity or market risk support for such assets. We have no offbalance sheet arrangements.
Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the United
States of America, or US GAAP, requires us to make a variety of decisions which affect reported amounts and
related disclosures, including the selection of appropriate accounting principles and the assumptions on which to
base accounting estimates. In reaching such decisions, we apply judgment based on our understanding and analysis
of the relevant circumstances, including our historical experience and other assumptions. Actual results could differ
from our estimates. We are committed to incorporating accounting principles, assumptions and estimates that
promote the representational faithfulness, verifiability, neutrality and transparency of the accounting information
included in the financial statements.
Revenue Recognition
We generally enter into contracts with customers to provide services ranging in duration from a few months to
several years. The contract terms generally provide for payments based on a fixed-fee or unit-of-service
arrangement. We account for revenue in accordance with ASC 606, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, which
we adopted on January 1, 2018. Revenue on contracts is recognized, when or as we satisfy the contract performance
obligations by transferring control of the services provided to the customer, at the amount that reflects the
consideration to which we expect to be entitled in exchange for transferring those services. Our performance
obligations are generally satisfied over time and recognized as work progresses.
Contract Assumptions
Accounting for contracts performed over a period of time involves the use of various assumptions to estimate total
contract revenue and costs. We estimate expected costs to complete a contract and recognize contracted revenue
over the life of the contract as those costs are incurred while performing our contracted obligations.
Cost estimates are based on a detailed project budget and are developed based on many variables, including, but not
limited to, the scope of the work, labor productivity, the complexity of the study, the participating geographic
locations and the Company’s historical experience. To assist with the estimation of costs expected at completion
over the life of a project, regular contract reviews are performed in which performance to date is compared to the
most current estimate to complete assumptions. The reviews include an assessment of costs incurred to date
compared to expectations based on budget assumptions and other circumstances specific to the project. The total
estimated costs necessary to complete is updated and any revisions to the existing cost estimate results in cumulative
adjustments to the amount of revenue recognized in the period in which the revisions are identified. Because of the
uncertainties inherent in estimating the costs necessary to fulfill contractual obligations, it is possible that estimates
may change in the near term, resulting in a material change in revenue reported.
Contracts generally provide for pricing modifications upon scope of work changes. We recognize revenue, at an
amount to which we expect to be entitled, related to work performed in connection with scope changes when the
underlying services are performed and a binding contractual commitment has been established with the customer. If
our customers do not agree to pricing changes upon changes in our scope of work, we could be exposed to cost
overruns and reduced contract profitability. Costs are not deferred in anticipation of contracts being awarded or
amendments being finalized, but are expensed as incurred.
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Most contracts are terminable by the customer, either immediately or according to advance notice terms specified
within the contracts. These contracts require payment of fees for services rendered through the date of termination
and may require payment for subsequent services necessary to conclude the study or close out the contract. Final
settlement amounts are agreed to with the customer based on remaining work to be performed. These amounts are
included in revenue when we believe the amount can be estimated reliably and its realization is probable. In
evaluating the probability of recognition, we consider the contractual basis for the settlement amount and the
objective evidence available to support the amount.
Certain contracts contain volume rebate arrangements with our customers that provide for rebates if certain specified
spending thresholds are met. These obligations are considered as a reduction in revenue when it appears probable
that the arrangement thresholds will be met.
We occasionally enter into incentive fee arrangements with customers that provide for additional compensation if
certain defined contractual milestones or performance thresholds are met. These additional fees are included in the
estimated transaction price when there is a basis to reasonably estimate the amount of the fee and when achievement
of the incentive milestone is deemed probable. These estimates are based on anticipated performance, our best
judgment at the time or ultimately, upon achievement of the threshold or milestone.
We record revenue net of any tax assessments by governmental authorities that are imposed and concurrent with
specific revenue generating transactions.
Performance Obligations
Substantially all of our contracts consist of a single performance obligation, as the promise to transfer the individual
services described in the contracts are not separately identifiable from other promises in the contracts, and therefore
not distinct. Revenue recognition is determined by assessing the progress of performance completed or delivered to
date compared to total services to be delivered under the terms of the arrangement. The measures utilized to assess
progress on the satisfaction of performance are specific to the performance obligation identified in the contract.
For the majority of our contract performance obligations, we utilize the input method of cost to cost to measure
progress. Under this method, the Company determines cost incurred to date for the services it provides compared to
the total estimated costs at completion.
For certain other contractual performance obligations, the Company has determined that an output method is the best
measure of progress. These relate to certain unitized contracts, and the Company recognizes revenue in the period in
which the unit is delivered compared to total contracted units.
Income Taxes
We are subject to income taxes in the United States and numerous foreign jurisdictions. Significant judgment is
required in the forecasting of taxable income using historical and projected future operating results in determining
our provision for income taxes and the related assets and liabilities. The provision for income taxes includes income
taxes paid, currently payable and receivable, and deferred taxes.
We record deferred tax assets and liabilities based on temporary differences between the financial statement bases
and tax bases of assets and liabilities. Deferred tax assets are recorded for tax benefit carryforwards using tax rates
anticipated to be in effect in the year in which temporary differences are expected to reverse. If it does not appear
more likely than not that the full value of a deferred tax asset will be realized, the Company records a valuation
allowance against the deferred tax asset, with an offsetting charge to the Company’s income tax provision or benefit.
The recoverability of our deferred tax assets is estimated based on consideration of all available positive and
negative evidence, including, but not limited to, our ability to generate a sufficient level of future taxable income,
reversals of deferred tax liabilities (other than those with an indefinite reversal period), tax planning strategies and
recent financial performance. The assessment of recoverability is performed on a jurisdiction by jurisdiction basis.
Based on the analysis of the above factors, we determined that as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 a valuation
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allowance in the amount of $0.6 million and $0.8 million, respectively, was required relating to certain foreign
operating loss carryforwards, and other deferred tax assets that are currently not expected to be realized. Differences
in actual results compared to our estimates and changes in our assumptions could result in an adjustment to the
valuation allowance in the future and would generally impact earnings or other comprehensive income depending on
the nature of the respective deferred asset for which the valuation allowance exists.
We have recognized certain liabilities, including penalties and interest in the amount of $2.1 million as of
December 31, 2020, within other long-term liabilities on the consolidated balance sheets. These relate to uncertain
tax positions that are subject to various assumptions and judgment. Liabilities for these uncertain tax positions are
assessed on a position by position basis. The calculation of these liabilities involves dealing with uncertainties in the
application of complex tax regulations in both domestic and foreign jurisdictions. These positions may be subject to
audit and review by tax authorities, and may result in future taxes, interest and penalties if we are unsuccessful in
defending our positions. If the calculation of liability related to uncertain tax positions proves to be more or less than
the ultimate assessment, a tax expense or benefit to expense, respectively would result.
As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, as a result of an updated analysis of future cash needs in the United States and
opportunities for investment outside the United States, we assert that all foreign earnings will be indefinitely
reinvested and therefore we have not provided taxes on these earnings. These undistributed earnings of foreign
subsidiaries will support future growth in foreign markets and maintain current operating needs of foreign locations.
We will continue to monitor our assertion related to investment of foreign earnings. See Note 11 of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements for further information regarding this assertion.
Stock Based Compensation
We have stock based compensation plans in which we issue stock based awards to employees and directors in the
form of vested common shares, stock options, stock appreciation rights (SARs), restricted stock awards (RSAs),
restricted stock units (RSUs), or other cash based or stock dividend equivalent awards. All of our currently
outstanding awards are subject to equity classification pursuant to the terms of the award grants and based on
accounting guidance which governs such transactions. Accounting guidance applicable to equity classified awards
require all stock based compensation, including vested shares, grants of employee stock options and restricted stock
to be recognized in the consolidated statements of operations based on their grant date fair values.
We estimate the fair value of our stock options utilizing the Black-Scholes-Merton option pricing model, which
requires the input of highly subjective assumptions including: the expected stock price volatility, the calculation of
the expected holding period of the award, the risk free interest rate and expected dividends on the underlying
common stock. Due to the lack of Company specific historical and implied volatility data, we have based our
estimate of expected volatility on the historical volatility of a group of peer companies that are most representative
of our company. The historical volatility is calculated based on a period of time commensurate with the expected
holding period assumption. The holding period represents the period that our option awards are expected to be
outstanding. We use the simplified method as prescribed by accounting guidance governing such awards, to
calculate the expected term for options granted to employees as we do not have sufficient historical evidence data to
provide a reasonable basis upon which to estimate the expected holding period. This simplified method utilizes the
mid-point between the vesting date and the date of the contractual term. The risk free rate is based on extrapolated
rates of U.S. Treasury bonds whose terms are consistent with the expected holding period of the stock options. We
have assumed a dividend yield of zero as we have not historically paid any dividends on our common stock.
All our stock based option awards are subject to service based vesting conditions. Compensation expense related to
stock option awards to employees is recognized on a straight line basis based on the grant date fair value over the
associated service period of the award, which is equal to the vesting term.
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The following table summarizes the key weighted average assumptions used in the Black-Scholes-Merton option
pricing model to calculate the fair value of options during the periods:

Expected holding period - years
Expected volatility
Risk-free interest rate
Expected dividend yield

2020

Year Ended December 31,
2019

2018

3.1
31.0%
1.0%
0.0%

2.6
26.3%
2.0%
0.0%

5.4
27.0%
2.8%
0.0%

The assumptions used in the table above reflect both grant date inputs to arrive at the grant date fair values for stock
options subject to equity-classified stock compensation accounting and reflect a fair value calculation for stock
options outstanding in the period subject to liability-classified stock compensation accounting. As of December 31,
2020, all outstanding stock based awards were subject to equity classification.
The weighted average grant date fair value of employee stock options granted was $15.19, $14.06 and $11.51 for the
years ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018.
Effect of Recent Accounting Pronouncements
Refer to Note 2 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for management’s discussion of the effect of
recent accounting pronouncements.
Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk
Market risk is the potential loss arising from adverse changes in market rates and prices, such as foreign currency
exchange rates, inflation, interest rates, and other relevant market rates or prices changes. We are exposed to market
risk from changes in foreign currency exchange rates, inflation rate and credit risk and we regularly evaluate our
exposure to such changes.
Foreign Currency Risk
We have business operations globally, and accordingly, we are exposed to foreign currency fluctuations that can
affect our financial results. For the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, approximately 11.1%, respectively, of
our revenue was derived from contracts denominated in currencies other than the U.S. dollar, whereas
approximately 25.2% and 22.3% of our operational costs, including, but not limited to, salaries, wages and other
employee benefits, were derived in foreign currencies. Of these exposures, approximately 79.7% and 81.9% of
revenue denominated in foreign currencies and approximately 50.8% and 52.8% of operational costs denominated in
foreign currencies were Euro denominated for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively. Our
financial statements are reported in U.S. dollars and, accordingly, fluctuations in exchange rates will affect the
translation of our revenues and expenses denominated in foreign currencies into U.S. dollars for purposes of
reporting our consolidated financial results. We recalculated our reported pre-tax income for the years ended
December 31, 2020 and 2019 using foreign exchange rates that were 10% higher and 10% lower than actual
exchange rates utilized during the year. When utilizing foreign exchange rates 10% higher than actual exchange
rates, our pre-tax income for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 is negatively impacted by approximately
$8.8 million and $6.7 million, respectively. When utilizing foreign exchange rates 10% lower than actual exchange
rates, our pre-tax income for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 is positively impacted by approximately
$8.8 million and $6.7 million, respectively.
We are also subject to foreign currency transaction risk for fluctuations in exchange rates during the period of time
between contract commencement and cash settlement for services that we provide in relation to the contract. This
exposure may affect our contract and operational profitability. To mitigate our foreign currency risk exposure we
provide for exchange rate fluctuation adjustments subject to certain thresholds within our contracts where contract
currency varies from currencies where costs will be incurred to support delivery of the contract.
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Credit Risk
Financial instruments that subject the Company to credit risk primarily consist of cash and cash equivalents, and
accounts receivable and unbilled, net. The cash and cash equivalent balances are held and maintained with highquality financial institutions with reputable credit ratings and, consequently, we believe that such funds are subject
to minimal credit risk.
We generally do not require collateral or other securities to support customer receivables. In the years ended
December 31, 2020 and 2019, credit losses have been immaterial and within our expectations. Moreover, in many
cases we require advance payment from our customers for a portion of the study contract price upon the signing of a
service contract which helps to mitigate credit risk. As of the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, there were
no major customers accounting for more than 10% of our accounts receivable and unbilled, net.
Inflation
Our contracts that provide for services to be performed in excess of a year generally are based on inflation
assumptions for the portion of the services to be performed beyond one year. We do not have significant operations
in countries where the economy is considered highly inflationary, and do not believe in the near term that inflation
will have a material adverse impact on us. However, if actual rates are greater than our inflation assumptions,
inflation could have a material adverse effect on our operations or financial condition.
Interest Rates
We have no outstanding long-term debt as of December 31, 2020. We therefore no longer have meaningful interest
rate risk. However, if the need for additional liquidity arises and we utilize our Credit Facility, interest rates could
have a material adverse effect on our operations or financial condition.
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data
Management's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
Management
g
of Medpace
p
Holdings,
g Inc. (the “Company”)
p y is responsible
p
for establishing
g and maintaining
g adequate
q
internal control over financial reporting.
p
g Internal control over financial reporting
p
g is designed
g
to pprovide reasonable
assurance regarding
g
g the reliability
y of financial reporting
p
g and the preparation
p p
of our consolidated financial statements
for external reporting
p
g purposes
p p
in accordance with accountingg principles
p
p generally
g
y accepted
p in the United States of
America. Internal control over financial reporting
p
g includes those policies
p
and procedures
p
that (1) pertain
p
to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accuratelyy and fairlyy reflect the transactions and dispositions
p
of the
assets of the Company,
p y (2) provide
p
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary
y to ppermit
ppreparation
p
of consolidated financial statements in accordance with accounting
g pprinciples
p ggenerally
y accepted
p in the
United States of America, and that receipts
p and expenditures
p
are being
g made only
y in accordance with authorizations
of our management
g
and directors, and (3) provide
p
reasonable assurance regarding
g
g pprevention or timely
y detection of
unauthorized acquisition,
q
use or disposition
p
of the Company’s
p y assets that could have a material effect on the
consolidated financial statements.
Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting
p
g mayy not prevent
p
or detect misstatements
in the consolidated financial statements. Also, pprojections
j
of anyy evaluation of effectiveness to future periods
p
are
subject
j to the risk that controls mayy become inadequate
q
because of changes
g in conditions, or that the degree
g of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
Management
g
assessed the effectiveness of the Company’s
p y internal control over financial reporting
p
g as of
December 31, 2020. In makingg these assessments, management
g
used the framework established by
y the Committee
of Sponsoring
p
g Organizations
g
of the Treadwayy Commission (COSO) in Internal Control — Integrated
g
Framework
(2013). Based on management’s
g
assessment and the criteria in the COSO framework, management
g
has concluded
that the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2020 was effective.
The effectiveness of the Company’s
p y internal control over financial reporting
p
g has been audited by
y Deloitte & Touche
LLP, an independent
p
registered
g
ppublic accounting
g firm, as stated in their report
p included herein.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the shareholders and the Board of Directors of Medpace Holdings, Inc.
Opinion on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Medpace Holdings, Inc. and subsidiaries (the
"Company") as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, the related consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive
income, shareholders' equity, and cash flows, for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2020, and
the related notes (collectively referred to as the "financial statements"). In our opinion, the financial statements
referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as of December 31,
2020 and 2019, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2020, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States) (PCAOB), the Company's internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2020, based on
criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated February 16, 2021, expressed an unqualified
opinion on the Company's internal control over financial reporting.
Change in Accounting Principle
As discussed in Note 2 to the financial statements, the Company has changed its method of accounting for leases as
of January 1, 2019, due to the adoption of Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Accounting Standards
Codification (“ASC”) Topic 842, Leases, using the Comparatives Under ASC 840 Option transition approach.
Basis for Opinion
These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on the Company's financial statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with
the PCAOB and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal
securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the
PCAOB.
We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. Our audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that
respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. Our audits also included evaluating the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.
Critical Audit Matter
The critical audit matter communicated below is a matter arising from the current-period audit of the financial
statements that was communicated or required to be communicated to the audit committee and that (1) relates to
accounts or disclosures that are material to the financial statements and (2) involved our especially challenging,
subjective, or complex judgments. The communication of critical audit matters does not alter in any way our opinion
on the financial statements, taken as a whole, and we are not, by communicating the critical audit matter below,
providing a separate opinion on the critical audit matter or on the accounts or disclosures to which it relates.
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Revenue Recognition — Clinical Research– Refer to Note 2 to the financial statements
Critical Audit Matter Description
The Company recognizes contract revenue over the contract term as the service progresses, because the transfer of
control to the customer is continuous. Substantially all of the Company’s clinical research contracts consist of a
single performance obligation as the promise to transfer individual services described in the contracts are not
separately identifiable from other promises in the contracts, and therefore not distinct. The accounting for these
contracts involves judgment, particularly as it relates to the process of estimating costs to complete a contract for the
performance obligation, which includes direct costs, reimbursable out-of-pocket costs, and reimbursable investigator
site payments. Contract costs are recognized as incurred, and revenue recognition is based on cost incurred to date
for the services provided compared to the total estimated costs to complete a contract.
Given the judgments necessary to estimate costs to complete a contract for the performance obligation used to
recognize revenue for certain clinical research contracts over time, auditing such estimates required extensive audit
effort due to the complexity of contracts and a high degree of auditor judgment when performing audit procedures
and evaluating the results of those procedures.
How the Critical Audit Matter Was Addressed in the Audit
Our audit procedures related to management’s estimates of costs to complete a contract for the performance
obligation used to recognize revenue for certain clinical research contracts included the following, among others:
•
•

•

We tested the effectiveness of controls over revenue recognized throughout the contract term, including
management’s controls over estimates of future services to be delivered and costs to be incurred under the
contract.
We selected a sample of contracts and performed the following:
• Evaluated whether the contracts were properly included in management’s calculation of contract
revenue based on the terms and conditions of each selected contract, including whether continuous
transfer of control to the customer occurred as progress was made toward fulfilling the performance
obligation.
• Compared the transaction prices to the consideration expected to be received based on current rights
and obligations under the contracts and any pricing modifications and scope changes that were agreed
upon with the customers.
• Tested management’s identification of distinct performance obligations by evaluating whether the
progress of performance completed or delivered to date compared to total services to be delivered
under the terms of the arrangement.
• Tested the accuracy and completeness of the total contract costs incurred to date for the performance
obligation.
• Evaluated the estimates of costs to complete a contract for the performance obligation by:
• Comparing costs incurred to date to the costs management estimated to be incurred to date.
• Evaluating management’s ability to achieve the estimates of total contract cost by performing
corroborating inquiries with the Company’s project managers and financial analysts, and
comparing the estimates to management’s work plans and cost estimates.
• Comparing management’s estimates for the selected contracts to costs of similar performance
obligations, when applicable.
• Tested the mathematical accuracy of management’s calculation of revenue for the performance
obligation.
We selected a sample of contracts and evaluated management’s ability to estimate total contract costs
accurately by comparing actual costs to management’s historical estimates.

/s// Deloitte & Touche LLP
Cincinnati, Ohio
February 16, 2021
We have served as the Company's auditor since 2002.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the shareholders and the Board of Directors of Medpace Holdings, Inc.
Opinion on Internal Control over Financial Reporting
We have audited the internal control over financial reporting of Medpace Holdings, Inc. and subsidiaries (the
“Company”) as of December 31, 2020, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework
(2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). In our opinion,
the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December
31, 2020, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework (2013) issued by COSO.
We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States) (PCAOB), the consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2020, of the
Company and our report dated February 16, 2021, expressed an unqualified opinion on those financial statements,
and included an explanatory paragraph related to the Company’s change in method of accounting for leases in fiscal
year 2019.
Basis for Opinion
The Company’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and
for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying
Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit. We are a public accounting firm
registered with the PCAOB and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the
U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and
the PCAOB.
We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting
was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.
Definition and Limitations of Internal Control over Financial Reporting
A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements.
Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.
/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP
Cincinnati, Ohio
February 16, 2021
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MEDPACE HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(Amounts in thousands, except share amounts)
As Of December 31,
2020
2019

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable and unbilled, net (includes $2.6 million and $1.9
million with related parties at December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively)
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Total current assets
Property and equipment, net
Operating lease right-of-use assets
Goodwill
Intangible assets, net
Deferred income taxes
Other assets
Total assets
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable (includes $0.2 million and $0.2 million with related
parties at December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively)
Accrued expenses
Advanced billings (includes $6.5 million and $3.0 million with related
parties at December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively)
Other current liabilities
Total current liabilities
Operating lease liabilities
Deferred income tax liability
Other long-term liabilities
Total liabilities
Commitments and contingencies (see Note 12)
Shareholders’ equity:
Preferred stock - $0.01 par-value; 5,000,000 shares authorized; no shares
issued and outstanding at December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively
Common stock - $0.01 par-value; 250,000,000 shares authorized at
December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively; 35,519,989 and 36,065,278
shares issued and outstanding at December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively
Treasury stock - 185,000 and 200,000 shares at December 31, 2020 and
2019, respectively
Additional paid-in capital
Retained earnings
Accumulated other comprehensive loss
Total shareholders’ equity
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity
See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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$

277,766

$

160,962
34,923
473,651
85,017
113,809
662,396
46,474
536
8,794
1,390,677

$

$

26,552
134,367

$

131,920

$

155,662
29,446
317,028
47,292
52,152
662,396
54,350
376
9,477
1,143,071

$

22,404
109,252

255,664
23,527
440,110
115,143
13,551
16,094
584,898

192,359
18,987
343,002
45,212
12,849
15,725
416,788

-

-

355

360

(5,578)
695,904
115,229
(131)
805,779
1,390,677 $

(6,030)
666,585
68,109
(2,741)
726,283
1,143,071

MEDPACE HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(Amounts in thousands, except per share amounts)

2020

Revenue, net (includes $15.9 million, $18.9 million and $15.1
million with related parties for the years ended December 31,
2020, 2019 and 2018, respectively)
Operating expenses:
Direct service costs, excluding depreciation and amortization
Reimbursed out-of-pocket expenses
Total direct costs
Selling, general and administrative
Depreciation
Amortization
Total operating expenses
Income from operations
Other expense, net:
Miscellaneous income (expense), net
Interest income (expense), net
Total other income (expense), net
Income before income taxes
Income tax provision
Net income
Net income per share attributable to common
shareholders:
Basic
Diluted
Weighted average common shares outstanding:
Basic
Diluted
See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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$

Year Ended December 31,
2019

925,925

$

860,969

$

2018

704,589

354,426
292,773
647,199
92,156
11,652
7,876
758,883
167,042

321,006
294,266
615,272
95,245
8,360
14,829
733,706
127,263

$

1,183
307
1,490
168,532
23,148
145,384

$

(863)
(1,568)
(2,431)
124,832
24,389
100,443 $

1,060
(8,157)
(7,097)
93,951
20,766
73,185

$
$

4.07
3.84

$
$

2.79
2.67

2.05
1.97

35,635
37,708

35,881
37,576

252,284
236,775
489,059
75,681
9,240
29,561
603,541
101,048

$
$

35,547
36,912

MEDPACE HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(Amounts in thousands)

2020

Net income
Other comprehensive income (loss)
Foreign currency translation adjustments, net of taxes
Comprehensive income
See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Year Ended December 31,
2019

$

145,384

$

100,443

$

$

2,610
147,994

$

(224)
100,219 $

2018

73,185
(1,783)
71,402

MEDPACE HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

(Amounts in thousands)
Common
Stock

BALANCE — December 31, 2017
Impact to Retained Earnings from
adoption of ASU 2014-09
BALANCE — January 1, 2018
Net income
Foreign currency translation
Stock-based compensation expense
Stock options exercised
BALANCE — December 31, 2018
Impact to Retained Earnings from
adoption of ASU 2016-02
BALANCE — January 1, 2019
Net income
Foreign currency translation
Stock-based compensation expense
Stock options exercised
BALANCE — December 31, 2019
Net income
Foreign currency translation
Stock-based compensation expense
Stock options exercised
Repurchases of common stock
BALANCE — December 31, 2020

$

(Accumulated Accumulated
Deficit)
Other
Retained
Comprehensive
Earnings
Loss

355 $ (6,030) $ 630,341 $ (120,402) $

355

$

Treasury
Stock

Additional
Paid-In
Capital

(6,030) 630,341

6,499
1
2,541
356 $ (6,030) $ 639,381 $

356

(6,030) 639,381

$

20,741
4
6,463
360 $ (6,030) $ 666,585 $

$

13,784
5
452
15,535
(10)
$
355 $ (5,578) $ 695,904 $

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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5,730
(114,672)
73,185

(41,487) $
9,153
(32,334)
100,443

68,109 $
145,384

(98,264)
115,229 $

Total

(734) $ 503,530
5,730
(734) 509,260
73,185
(1,783)
(1,783)
6,499
2,542
(2,517) $ 589,703
9,153
(2,517) 598,856
100,443
(224)
(224)
20,741
6,467
(2,741) $ 726,283
145,384
2,610
2,610
13,784
15,992
(98,274)
(131) $ 805,779

MEDPACE HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(Amounts in thousands)

2020

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by
operating activities:
Depreciation
Amortization
Stock-based compensation expense
Amortization of debt issuance costs and discount
Noncash lease expense
Deferred income tax provision
Amortization and adjustment of deferred credit
Other
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable and unbilled, net
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Advanced billings
Lease liabilities
Other assets and liabilities, net
Net cash provided by operating activities
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Property and equipment expenditures
Other
Net cash used in investing activities
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from stock option exercises
Repurchases of common stock
Payment of debt
Payments on revolving loan
Payment of deemed landlord liability
Net cash used in financing activities
EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATES ON CASH,
CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND RESTRICTED CASH
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND
RESTRICTED CASH
CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND RESTRICTED CASH —
Beginning of period
CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND RESTRICTED CASH — End
of period
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW
INFORMATION—
Cash paid during the period for income taxes
Cash paid during the period for interest
Acquisition of property and equipment—non-cash
See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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$

Year Ended December 31,
2019

145,384

$

100,443

$

2018

73,185

11,652
7,876
13,784
13,924
527
(706)
(22)

8,360
14,829
20,741
954
9,949
10,050
(801)
1,754

9,240
29,561
6,499
615
3,942
(7,712)
1,653

(5,530)
(3,724)
(2,597)
24,231
63,407
(11,506)
1,976
258,676

(21,256)
(7,381)
4,730
21,824
44,584
(9,034)
2,121
201,867

(27,047)
(1,241)
1,342
29,029
35,593
1,925
156,584

(31,340)
126
(31,214)

(17,912)
(1,232)
(19,144)

(16,024)
(949)
(16,973)

15,992
(98,274)
(82,282)

6,520
(80,438)
(73,918)

2,489
(72,188)
(70,000)
(1,881)
(141,580)

(167)

(1,241)

666
145,846

108,638

(3,210)

131,920

23,282

26,492

$

277,766

$

131,920

$

23,282

$
$
$

23,105
104
18,980

$
$
$

13,235
1,489
2,529

$
$
$

23,311
7,589
1,551

MEDPACE HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As off December 31, 2020 and 2019, and for the Years Ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018
1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION
Description of Business
Medpace Holdings, Inc. together with its subsidiaries, (“Medpace” or the “Company”), a Delaware corporation, is a
global provider of clinical research-based drug and medical device development services. The Company partners
with pharmaceutical, biotechnology, and medical device companies in the development and execution of clinical
trials. The Company’s drug development services focus on full service Phase I-IV clinical development services and
include development plan design, coordinated central laboratory, project management, regulatory affairs, clinical
monitoring, data management and analysis, pharmacovigilance new drug application submissions, and postmarketing clinical support. The Company also provides bio-analytical laboratory services, clinical human
pharmacology, imaging services, and electrocardiography reading support for clinical trials.
The Company’s operations are principally based in North America, Europe, and Asia.
Share Repurchases
In the first qquarter of 2018, the Board of Directors approved
pp
a share repurchase
p
program
p g
authorizingg upp to $50.0
million in share repurchases.
p
In the first quarter
q
of 2020, the Board of Directors approved
pp
an increase in the stock
repurchase
p
authorization by
y $50.0 million. In the fourth quarter
q
of 2020, the Board approved
pp
the stock repurchase
p
authorization upp to $150.0 million. For the year
y ended December 31, 2020, the Company
p y repurchased
p
1,183,095
shares for $98.3 million. As of December 31, 2020, we have remainingg authorization of $102.6 million remaining
g
under the repurchases program.
Repurchases
p
under the share repurchase
p
program
p g
are executed in the open
p market or negotiated
g
transactions under
tradingg plans
p
established pursuant
p
to Rule 10b5-1. The Company
p y constructively
y retired the repurchased
p
shares
associated with these approved
pp
share repurchase
p
programs,
p g
with all amounts paid
p in excess of par
p value reflected
within Retained earnings
g in the Company’s
p y consolidated balance sheets. The repurchase
p
pprogram
g
may
y be suspended
p
or discontinued at anyy time without notice.
Secondary Offering
During the year ended December 31, 2018, Cinven sold a total of 16,399,997 shares of the Company’s common
stock as part of multiple secondary offerings. The Company incurred professional fees in connection with the
secondary offerings of $0.7 million during the year ended December 31, 2018. The fees are included within
operating expenses in the accompanying consolidated statement of operations. As of August 27, 2018, Cinven does
not beneficially own any shares of the Company’s outstanding common stock. The Company did not sell any shares
in or receive any proceeds from the secondary offerings.
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Principles of Consolidation and Presentation
The accompanying
p y g consolidated financial statements have been prepared
p p
in accordance with generally
g
y accepted
p
accountingg principles
p
p in the United States of America (“US GAAP”) and include the accounts and operations
p
of the
Company and its subsidiaries. All intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.
Use of Estimates
The ppreparation
p
of financial statements in conformity
y with US GAAP requires
q
management
g
to make estimates and
assumptions
p
that affect the amounts reported
p
in the consolidated financial statements and accompanying
p y g notes.
Actual results could differ from these estimates.
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Significant
g
items that are subject
j to management
g
estimates and assumptions
p
include revenue, net, allowances for
doubtful accounts, acquisition
q
ppurchase price
p
allocations, long-lived
g
asset impairment
p
and useful lives, exit
liabilities, stock-based compensation, uncertain income tax positions and contingencies.
Reportable Segments
The Company
p y emphasizes
p
its full service outsourcing
g model, pproviding
g services focused on the development,
p
management
g
and execution of clinical trials. As ppart of this full service approach,
pp
the Company
p y utilizes centralized
systems,
y
customer interface technology,
gy support
pp functions and pprocesses that cross service offerings
g and align
g
resources to deliver efficient clinical trial services. Given the full service approach,
pp
the chief executive officer, who
is the chief operating
p
g decision maker (“CODM”) assesses the allocation of resources based on key
y metrics including
g
revenue, backlog,
g and net awards by
y service offering
g and consolidated pprofitabilityy and consolidated cash flows.
Based on the Company’s
p y full service model, internal management
g
and reporting
p
g structure, and key
y metrics used by
y
the CODM to make resource allocation decisions, management
g
has determined that the Company’s
p y operations
p
consist of a single operating segment. Therefore, results of operations are presented as a single reportable segment.
Foreign Currencies
Assets and liabilities recorded in foreign
g currencies on foreign
g subsidiaryy financial statements are translated at the
exchange
g rate on the balance sheet date, while equity
q y accounts are translated at historical exchange
g rates. Revenue
and expenses
p
are recorded at average
g rates of exchange
g during
g the yyear. Translation adjustments
j
are recorded to
Accumulated other comprehensive
p
loss in the consolidated statements of shareholders’ equity
q y and consolidated
statements of comprehensive income.
Separately,
p
y net realized gains
g
and losses on foreign
g currency
y transactions are included in Miscellaneous income
(expense),
p
net, on the consolidated statements of operations.
p
Foreign
g currency
y transactions resulted in a net
ggain/(loss) of $0.5 million, ($0.6) million, and $0.4 million duringg the years
y
ended December 31, 2020, 2019, and
2018, respectively.
Revenue Recognition
The Company
p y ggenerallyy enters into contracts with customers to pprovide services ranging
g g in duration from a few
months to several yyears. The contract terms ggenerally
y pprovide for payments
p y
based on a fixed fee or unit-of-service
arrangement.
g
The Company
p y accounts for revenue in accordance with ASC 606, Revenue from Contracts with
Customers, which the Company
p y adopted
p on January
y 1, 2018 using
g the modified retrospective
p
implementation
p
method. Revenue on contracts is recognized
g
when or as the Company
p y satisfies the contract performance
p
obligations,
g
at the amount that reflects the Company’s
p y cumulative pprogress
g
toward deliveryy of the pperformance obligation.
g
This
pprogress
g
assessment is applied
pp
to the amount of consideration to which the Company
p y expects
p
to be ppaid for deliveryy
of the pperformance obligation.
g
The Company’s
p y pperformance obligations
g
are generally
g
y satisfied over time and related
revenue is recognized
g
as services are pprovided to meet these obligations.
g
Contract Assumptions
An arrangement is accounted for as a contract within the scope of ASC 606 when the Company and its customers
approve the contract, are committed to perform their respective obligations, each party can identify its rights
regarding the goods or services to be transferred, commercial substance is present, and it is probable that the
Company will collect substantially all of the consideration to which it will be entitled in exchange for the goods or
services that will be transferred to the customer.
For the Company’s services to meet this criteria, contracts generally need to be written, pending regulatory hurdles
required to commence work must be cleared, the study protocol must be completed, the customer must have
adequate funding or reasonable path to funding to execute the contracted portion of the study, and the study must be
actively moving forward. Once these criteria have been met, it is deemed that the Company and its customers are
committed to perform their respective obligations. Depending on the timing of when these criteria are met, revenue
recognition may vary significantly on a period over period basis.
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Accounting for contracts performed over a period of time involves the use of various assumptions to estimate total
contract revenue and costs. The Company estimates expected costs to complete a contract and recognizes contracted
revenue over the life of the contract as those costs are incurred.
Cost estimates are based on a detailed project budget and are developed based on many variables, including, but not
limited to, the scope of the work, the complexity of the study, the participating geographic locations and the
Company’s historical experience. To assist with the estimation of costs expected at completion over the life of a
project, regular contract reviews are performed in which performance to date is compared to the most current
estimate to complete assumptions. The reviews include an assessment of costs incurred to date compared to
expectations based on budget assumptions and other circumstances specific to the project. The total estimated costs
necessary to complete is updated and any revisions to the existing cost estimate results in cumulative adjustments to
the amount of revenue recognized in the period in which the revisions are identified. In the case of cost estimates
related to activities legally contracted as reimbursable in nature, including but not limited to investigator fee activity,
these estimates also influence the Company’s assumed contract value and assumed remaining performance
obligations. Because of the uncertainties inherent in estimating the costs necessary to fulfill contractual obligations,
it is possible that estimates may change in the near term, resulting in a material change in revenue reported.
Contracts generally provide for pricing modifications upon scope of work changes. The Company recognizes
revenue, at an amount to which it expects to be entitled, related to work performed in connection with scope changes
when the underlying services are performed and a binding contractual commitment has been established with the
customer. If the Company’s customers do not agree to contract changes upon changes in the Company’s scope of
work, the Company could be exposed to cost overruns and reduced contract profitability. Costs are not deferred in
anticipation of contracts being awarded or amendments being finalized, but are expensed as incurred.
Most contracts are terminable by the customer, either immediately or according to advance notice terms specified
within the contracts. These contracts require payment of fees for services rendered through the date of termination
and may require payment for subsequent services necessary to conclude the study or close out the contract. Final
settlement amounts are agreed to with the customer based on remaining work to be performed. These amounts are
included in revenue when the Company believes the amount can be estimated reliably and its realization is
probable. In evaluating the probability of recognition, the Company considers the contractual basis for the
settlement amount and the objective evidence available to support the amount.
Certain contracts contain volume rebate arrangements
g
with our customers that pprovide for rebates if certain specified
p
spending
p
g thresholds are met. These obligations
g
are considered as a reduction in revenue when it appears
pp
pprobable
that the arrangement
g
thresholds will be met, which can be at contract inception.
p
Total revenue is ppresented net of
rebates of $4.8 million, $6.2 million and $1.2 million in the consolidated statements of operations
p
duringg the yyears
ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018, respectively.
The Company
p y occasionally
y enters into incentive fee arrangements
g
with customers that pprovide for additional
compensation
p
if certain defined contractual milestones or performance
p
thresholds are met. These additional fees are
included in the estimated transaction pprice when there is a basis to reasonably
y estimate the amount of the fee and
when achievement of the incentive milestone is deemed pprobable. These estimates are based on anticipated
p
pperformance, the Company’s
p y best judgment
j g
at the time or ultimately,
y upon
p achievement of the threshold or
milestone.
The Company
p y records revenue net of any
y tax assessments byy governmental
g
authorities that are imposed
p
and
concurrent with specific
p
revenue generating
g
g transactions.
Performance Obligations
Substantially all of the Company’s contracts consist of a single performance obligation, as the promise to transfer
the individual services described in the contracts are not separately identifiable from other promises in the contracts,
and therefore not distinct. Revenue recognition is determined by assessing the progress of performance completed or
delivered to date compared to total services to be delivered under the terms of the arrangement. The measures
utilized to assess progress on the satisfaction of performance are specific to the performance obligation identified in
the contract.
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For the majority of the Company’s contract performance obligations, it utilizes the input method of cost to cost to
measure progress, as the Company has determined that it is the most consistent measure of progress among contract
tasks and represents the most faithful depiction of the transfer of services over the contract life. Under this method,
the Company determines cost incurred to date for the services it provides compared to the total estimated costs at
completion.
For certain other contractual performance obligations, the Company has determined that an output method is the best
measure of progress. These relate to certain unitized contracts, and the Company recognizes revenue in the period in
which the unit is delivered compared to total contracted units.
As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Company had approximately $1.6 billion and $1.4 billion of performance
obligations remaining to be performed for active projects.
Concentration of Credit Risk
Financial instruments that subject
j the Company
p y to credit risk pprimarily
y consist of cash and cash equivalents
q
and
accounts receivable. The cash and cash equivalent
q
balances are held and maintained with financial institutions with
reputable credit ratings and, consequently, the Company believes that such funds are subject to minimal credit risk.
The Company
p y ggenerallyy does not require
q
collateral or other securities to support
pp customer receivables. In the yyears
ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018, credit losses have been immaterial and within management’s
g
expectations.
p
At December 31, 2020 and 2019, there were no customers accounting
g for more than 10% of the
Company’s accounts receivable.
Costs and Expenses
The Company
p y incurs costs associated with service delivery
y including
g direct labor and related employee
p y benefits,
laboratoryy supplies,
pp
and other expenses.
p
These costs are recorded in Direct service costs, excluding
g depreciation
p
and
amortization as a component
p
of Total direct costs in the accompanying
p y g consolidated statements of operations.
p
In
addition, the Company
p y incurs expenses
p
on behalf of its customers for various project
p j expenditures
p
including,
g but not
limited to, investigator
g
site ppayments,
y
travel, meetings,
g pprinting,
g and shipping
pp g and handlingg fees that are reimbursed
byy its customers at cost. These costs are included in Reimbursable out-of-pocket
p
expenses
p
as a component
p
of Total
direct costs in the accompanying
p y g consolidated statements of operations.
p
Total direct costs are expensed
p
as incurred
and are not deferred in anticipation
p
of contracts beingg awarded or finalization of changes
g in scope.
p Selling,
g general
g
and administrative includes administrative ppayroll
y
and related employee
p y benefits, sales and marketingg expenses,
p
administrative travel, and other expenses
p
not directlyy related to service delivery.
y Rent, utilities, supplies,
pp
and
software license expenses
p
are allocated between Total direct costs, and Selling,
g ggeneral and administrative based on
the estimated contribution amongg service delivery
y and support
pp function efforts on a percentage
p
g basis. Depreciation
p
and amortization is reported
p
separately
p
y in the accompanying
p y g consolidated statements of operations.
p
Costs of sales
and marketingg activities not subject
j to recoveryy pursuant
p
to customer contracts, such as feasibility
y assessments and
negotiation
g
of contracts, are expensed
p
as incurred and recorded as a component
p
of Selling,
g ggeneral and
administrative in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations.
Advertisingg expenses
p
are recorded as a component
p
of Selling,
g ggeneral and administrative expenses
p
in the
accompanying
p y g consolidated statements of operations.
p
Total advertisingg expenses
p
of $0.7 million, $0.7 million and
$0.8 million were incurred during the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018, respectively.
Income Taxes
The Company’s
p y consolidated US federal income tax return is comprised
p
of its US subsidiaries, one of its foreign
g
branches located in Korea and certain foreign subsidiaries.
The Company
p y pprovides for income taxes on all transactions that have been recognized
g
in the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with accountingg guidance
g
ggoverningg income tax accounting.
g Accordingly,
g y the impact
p of
changes
g in income tax laws on deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are recognized
g
in net earnings
g in the
p
period
during
g which such changes
g are enacted.
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The Company
p y records deferred tax assets and liabilities based on temporary
p
y differences between the financial
statement bases and tax bases of assets and liabilities. Deferred tax assets are recorded for tax benefit carryforwards
y
usingg tax rates anticipated
p
to be in effect in the yyear in which the temporary
p
y differences are expected
p
to reverse. If it
does not appear
pp more likely
y than not that the full value of a deferred tax asset will be realized, the Company
p y records
a valuation allowance against
g
the deferred tax asset, with an offsetting
g charge
g to the Company’s
p y income tax
pprovision or benefit. The value of the Company’s
p y deferred tax assets is estimated based on, among
g other things,
g the
Company’s
p y ability
y to generate
g
a sufficient level of future taxable income. In estimatingg future taxable income, the
Company
p y has considered both positive
p
and negative
g
evidence, such as historical and forecasted results of operations,
p
and has considered the implementation of prudent and feasible tax planning strategies.
The Company’s
p y accountingg position
p
is that unremitted foreign
g earnings
g are indefinitely
y reinvested. Therefore, the
Company
p y has not recorded deferred foreign
g withholding
g taxes on the unremitted foreign
g earnings.
g Refer to Note 11
for further information regarding this assertion.
The Company
p y follows accountingg guidance
g
related to accounting
g for uncertainty
y in income taxes which requires
q
significant
g
judgment
j g
in determiningg what constitutes an individual tax position
p
as well as assessingg the ppossible
outcome of each tax pposition. Changes
g in judgments
j g
as to recognition
g
or measurement of tax ppositions can
materially
y affect the estimate of the effective tax rate, and, consequently,
q
y the Company’s
p y consolidated financial
results. The Company
p y considers manyy factors when evaluatingg and estimating
g tax positions
p
and tax benefits, which
mayy require
q
pperiodic adjustments
j
and which may
y not accuratelyy anticipate
p actual outcomes. In addition, the
calculation of tax liabilities involves dealingg with uncertainties in the application
pp
of complex
p tax regulations
g
in a
multitude of jjurisdictions. The Company
p y determines its liability
y for uncertain tax ppositions gglobally.
y If the ppayment
y
of these amounts ultimatelyy proves
p
to be unnecessary,
y the reversal of liabilities would result in tax benefits beingg
recognized
g
in the period
p
when it is determined the liabilities are no longer
g necessary.
y If the calculation of the
liabilityy related to uncertain tax ppositions pproves to be more or less than the ultimate assessment, a tax expense
p
or tax
benefit would result. Interest and ppenalties associated with uncertain tax ppositions are recognized
g
as components
p
of
the Company’s Income tax provision.
Research and Development Credits
Research and development
p
credits are available to the Company
p y under tax laws in certain jjurisdictions, based on
qqualifying
y g research and development
p
spend
p
as defined under those tax laws. Certain tax jjurisdictions pprovide
refundable credits that are not whollyy dependent
p
on the Company’s
p y income tax status or income tax pposition. In
these circumstances the benefit of the credits is recorded as a reduction of operating
p
g expense.
p
When theyy are whollyy
dependent
p
upon
p the Company’s
p y income tax position,
p
research and development
p
credits are recognized
g
as a reduction
of income tax expense.
Stock-Based Compensation
The Company has stock-based employee compensation plans for which it incurs compensation expense.
Equity Awards
In connection with the Company's initial public offering (IPO), the Board approved the formation of the 2016
Incentive Award Plan (the “2016 Plan”), which replaced our 2014 Equity Incentive Plan (the “2014 Plan”). The
2016 Plan provides for long-term equity incentive compensation for key employees, officers and non-employee
directors. A variety of discretionary awards (collectively, the “Awards”) for employees and non-employee directors
are authorized under the 2016 Plan, including vested common shares, stock options, stock appreciation rights
(“SARs”), restricted stock awards (“RSAs”), restricted stock units (“RSUs”), or other cash based or stock dividend
equivalent awards. The vesting of such awards may be conditioned upon either a specified period of time or the
attainment of specific performance goals as determined by the administrator of the 2016 Plan. The option price and
term are also subject to determination by the administrator with respect to each grant. Option prices are generally
expected to be set at the market price of our common stock at the date of grant and option terms are not expected to
exceed ten years. All outstanding Awards under the 2016 Plan are equity classified awards.
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The Company
p y created the 2014 Plan, providing
p
g for the future issuance of vested shares, stock options,
p
RSAs and
RSUs in Medpace
p
Holdings,
g Inc.’s common stock (the “2014 Plan Awards”). The 2014 Plan Awards were subject
j to
either equity
q y or liability-classification
y
ppursuant to the terms of the pparticipant’s
p
award agreement
g
and the 2014 Plan
based on accountingg guidance
g
which ggoverns such transactions. All outstanding
g Awards under the 2014 Plan are
equity classified awards.
Stock-based compensation
p
expense
p
for both the 2016 Plan and 2014 Plan is calculated using
g the fair value method
on the g
grant date. The Company
p y expenses
p
stock-based compensation
p
over the term of the award based on the vesting
g
described in the award agreement.
g
Stock-based compensation
p
expense
p
is allocated between Total direct costs, and
Selling,
g general
g
and administrative in the consolidated statements of operations
p
based on the underlying
y g
classification and scope
p of work for the employees
p y
receiving
g the Awards.
Net Income Per Share
Basic and diluted earnings
g or loss pper share (“EPS”) are computed
p
usingg the two-class method, which is an earnings
g
allocation that determines EPS for each class of common stock and pparticipating
p
g securities accordingg to dividends
declared and pparticipation
p
rights
g in undistributed earnings.
g The Company’s
p y RSAs are considered participating
p
p g
securities because theyy are legally
g y issued at the date of ggrant and holders are entitled to receive non-forfeitable
dividends during the vesting term.
The computation
p
of diluted EPS includes additional common shares, such as unvested RSUs and stock options
p
with
exercise pprices less than the average
g market pprice of the Company’s
p y common stock duringg the period
p
(“in-themoneyy options”),
p
which would be considered outstanding.
g This assumes that additional shares would have to be
issued in cases where the exercise pprice of stock options
p
is less than the value of the common stock being
g acquired
q
because the cash pproceeds received from the stock option
p
holder would not be sufficient to acquire
q
that same
number of shares. The Company
p y does not compute
p diluted EPS in cases where the inclusion of such additional
shares would be anti-dilutive in effect.
The followingg table sets forth the computation
p
of basic and diluted earnings
g pper share for the years
y
ended
December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018 (in thousands, except
p for earnings
g per
p share):

Year Ended December 31,
2019

2020

Weighted-average shares:
Common shares outstanding
RSAs
Total weighted-average shares
Earnings per common share—Basic
Net income
Less: Undistributed earnings allocated to RSAs
Net income available to common shareholders—
Basic

35,635
112
35,747

Net income per common share—Basic

35,881
100
35,981

35,547
142
35,689

$

145,384
459

$

100,443
279

$

73,185
291

$

144,925

$

100,164

$

72,894

$

4.07

$

2.79

$

2.05

Basic weighted-average common shares outstanding
Effect of diluted shares
Diluted weighted-average shares outstanding
Net income per common share—Diluted

2018

35,635
2,073
37,708
$
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3.84

35,881
1,695
37,576
$

2.67

35,547
1,365
36,912
$

1.97

For the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018, the computation of diluted EPS excludes the effect of (in
thousands) 204, 248 and 121 stock options, respectively, due to each respective period’s average fair value of the
Company’s common stock not exceeding the exercise prices.
Fair Value Measurements
The Company
p y follows accountingg guidance
g
related to fair value measurements that defines fair value, establishes a
framework for measuringg fair value, and establishes a hierarchyy for inputs
p used in measuringg fair value. This
hierarchyy maximizes the use of “observable” inputs
p and minimizes the use of unobservable inputs
p byy requiring
q
g that
the most observable inputs
p be used when available. The hierarchy
y specifies
p
three levels based on the inputs,
p
as
follows:
Level 1: Valuations based on quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2: Valuations based on directly observable inputs or unobservable inputs corroborated by market data.
Level 3: Valuations based on unobservable inputs
p supported
pp
byy little or no market activity
y representing
p
g
management’s
g
determination of assumptions
p
of how market pparticipants
p
would price
p
the assets or liabilities.
The fair value of financial instruments such as cash and cash equivalents,
q
accounts receivable and unbilled, net,
accounts ppayable,
y
accrued expenses,
p
and advanced billings
g approximate
pp
their carrying
y g amounts due to their short
term maturities.
The Company
p y does not have anyy recurring
g fair value measurements as of December 31, 2020. There were no
transfers between Level 1, Level 2, or Level 3 duringg the years
y
ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018.
Cash and Cash Equivalents, including Restricted Cash
Cash and cash equivalents,
q
including
g restricted cash, are invested in demand deposits
p
and money
y market funds, all
of which have an original
g
maturityy of three months or less. Restricted cash consists of customer funds received in
advance and subject
j to specific
p
restrictions, as well as amounts pplaced in escrow for contingent
g payments
p y
resultingg
from acquisitions or other contractual arrangements.
Accounts Receivable and Unbilled, Net
Accounts receivable represent
p
amounts due from the Company’s
p y customers who are concentrated pprimarily
y in the
ppharmaceutical, biotechnology,
gy and medical device industries. Unbilled services represent
p
revenue recognized
g
to
date that is currently
y not billable to the customer pursuant
p
to contractual terms. In general,
g
amounts become billable
upon
p the achievement of negotiated
g
contractual events or in accordance with predetermined
p
payment
p y
schedules.
Amounts classified to unbilled services are those billable to customers within one yyear from the respective
p
balance
sheet date.
The Company
p y ggrants credit terms to its customers pprior to signing
g g a service contract and monitors the
creditworthiness of its customers on an ongoing
g g basis. The Company
p y maintains an allowance for doubtful accounts
based on specific
p
identification of accounts receivable that are at risk of not being
g collected. Uncollectible accounts
receivable are written off onlyy after all reasonable collection efforts have been exhausted. Moreover, in some cases
the Company
p y requires
q
advance ppayment
y
from its customers for a pportion of the study
y contract pprice upon
p the signing
g g
of a service contract. These advance payments are deferred and recognized as revenue as services are performed.
Inventory
Inventory,
y which consists pprimarily
y of laboratory
y supplies,
pp
is valued at the lower of cost or market. Inventory
y is
stated at ppurchased cost usingg the first-in, first out (FIFO) cost method. The inventoryy balance is included in Prepaid
p
expenses
p
and other current assets in the consolidated balance sheets.
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Property and Equipment
Property
p y and equipment
q p
is recorded at cost. Depreciation
p
is provided
p
on the straight-line
g
method at rates adequate
q
to
allocate the cost of the applicable
pp
assets over their estimated useful lives, which is three to five yyears for computer
p
hardware, software, pphone, and medical imaging
g g equipment,
q p
five to seven years
y
for furniture and fixtures and other
equipment,
q p
and thirtyy to fortyy years
y
for buildings.
g The Company
p y capitalizes
p
costs of computer
p
software developed
p
for internal use and amortizes these costs on a straight-line
g
basis over the estimated useful life, not to exceed three
yyears. Leasehold improvements
p
and deemed assets from landlord building
g construction are capitalized
p
and
amortized on a straight-line
g
basis over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the improvement
p
or the associated
remaining lease term. Repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred.
Leases
The Company
p y enters into contracts to lease facilities and equipment
q p
to be used in its operations.
p
At contract
inception,
p
the Company
p y determines whether a contract contains a lease within the scope
p of Accounting
g Standard
Codification Topic
p 842, Leases (“ASC 842”), and determines the appropriate
pp p
classification of the lease as either
operating
p
g or finance.
Contracts containingg operating
p
g leases are recorded on the consolidated balance sheets within Operating
p
g lease rightg
of-use (“ROU”) assets, Other current liabilities, and Operating
p
g lease liabilities. Operating
p
g lease ROU assets and
operating
p
g lease liabilities are recognized
g
based on the ppresent value of the future lease ppayments
y
over the lease term
as of the lease commencement date. In addition, operating
p
g ROU assets also include lease ppayments
y
made and
exclude lease incentives and initial direct costs incurred. Operating
p
g lease expense
p
for lease payments
p y
is recognized
g
on a straight-line
g
basis over the lease term within Total direct costs and Selling,
g ggeneral, and administrative
expenses.
p
Variable lease costs are pprimarily
y related to adjustments
j
for inflation, common area maintenance and
property tax and are recognized within Total direct costs and Selling, general and administrative expenses.
Contracts containingg finance leases are recognized
g
initiallyy in the same manner as Operating
p
g lease ROU assets and
liabilities; however, theyy are recorded on the consolidated balance sheets within Property
p y and equipment,
q p
net, Other
current liabilities, and Other long-term
g
liabilities. Finance lease assets are subsequently
q
y amortized on a straight
g line
basis over the lease term within Depreciation
p
expense,
p
while the lease liability
y is accreted within Interest expense,
p
net utilizingg the discount rate determined at lease commencement and reduced by
y periodic
p
lease payments
p y
over the
lease term. Currently,
y the Company
p y does not have any
y finance leases.
The discount rate utilized in determiningg the ppresent value of future ppayments
y
for both operating
p
g and finance leases,
unless implicit
p
in the lease contract, is determined based on the Company’s
p y collateralized incremental borrowing
g
rate based on the information available at lease commencement.
Lease terms mayy include options
p
to extend or terminate the lease when it is reasonably
y certain that the Company
p y will
exercise that option
p
as determined at lease commencement.
Manyy of our lease agreements
g
have both lease and non-lease components,
p
which the Company
p y has elected to treat as
a single
g lease component
p
for recognition
g
ppurposes.
p
The Company
p y may
y enter into short-term leases (leases with a lease term of less than one yyear), which it has elected
not to capitalize
p
as assets and liabilities on the consolidated balance sheets, but instead recognizes
g
lease ppayments
y
within Total direct costs and Selling,
g ggeneral, and administrative expenses
p
on a straight
g line basis over the lease
term.
Goodwill and Intangible Assets
Goodwill
Goodwill represents
p
the excess of purchase
p
pprice over the fair value of net assets acquired
q
in business combinations.
The carrying
y g value of goodwill
g
is reviewed at least annuallyy for impairment,
p
or as indicators of ppotential impairment
p
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are identified, at the reporting
p
g unit level. The reporting
p
g units are Phase I-IV clinical research services and
Laboratories as of December 31, 2020.
The Company
p y pperforms its annual impairment
p
tests duringg the fourth quarter
q
each year,
y
comparing
p
g the fair value of
each of our reporting
p
g units with its carrying
y g amount, inclusive of goodwill.
g
A goodwill
g
impairment
p
charge
g would be
recognized
g
for the amount by
y which the carrying
y g amount exceeds the reporting
p
g unit’s fair value. Fair value is
estimated usingg a combination of the income approach,
pp
a discounted cash flow analysis,
y
and the market approach,
pp
utilizingg the guideline
g
company
p y method. There was no indication of impairment
p
related to ggoodwill based on the
fourth quarter 2020 assessment.
Intangible Assets
The Company
p y has an indefinite lived intangible
g
asset related to its trade name. The carrying
y g value of the trade name
asset is reviewed at least annuallyy for impairment,
p
or as indicators of potential
p
impairment
p
are identified. The
Company
p y performs
p
its annual impairment
p
test in the fourth qquarter each yyear in conjunction
j
with its annual
assessment of ggoodwill. The assessment consists of comparing
p
g the carrying
y g value of the indefinite lived intangible
g
asset to its estimated fair value, utilizingg the relief from royalty
y y method, an income approach
pp
valuation. There was
no indication of impairment related to the trade name asset based on the fourth quarter 2020 assessment.
Finite-lived intangible
g
assets consist mainly
y of the value assigned
g
to customer relationships
p and developed
p
technologies.
g
Finite-lived intangible
g
assets are amortized straight-line
g
or usingg an accelerated method over their
estimated useful lives, which range in term from five to fifteen years.
Impairment of Long-Lived Assets
Long-lived
g
assets, pprimarily
y pproperty
p y and equipment
q p
and finite-lived intangible
g
assets, are reviewed for impairment
p
and the reasonableness of the estimated useful lives whenever events or changes
g in circumstances indicate that the
carrying
y g amounts of the assets mayy not be recoverable or that a change
g in useful life mayy be appropriate.
pp p
Recoverabilityy for long-lived
g
assets is determined byy comparing
p
g the forecasted undiscounted cash flows of the
operation
p
to which the assets relate to the carrying
y g amount of the assets. If the undiscounted cash flows are less than
the carrying
y g amount of the assets, then the Company
p y reduces the carrying
y g value of the assets to estimated fair values,
which are pprimarily
y based upon
p forecasted discounted cash flows. Fair value of long-lived
g
assets is determined
based on a combination of discounted cash flows and market multiples.
Advanced Billings
Advanced billings
g represents
p
cash received from customers, or billed amounts per
p an agreed
g
upon
p payment
p y
schedule, in advance of services being performed or revenue being recognized.
Other Current Liabilities and Other Long-Term Liabilities
Deferred credit represents
p
tax credits recognized
g
initially
y in conjunction
j
with the Nephrogenex
p g
asset acquisition
q
that
will be recognized
g
within Income tax pprovision in pproportion
p
to the realization of the deferred tax assets and federal
tax credits prospectively.
Asset retirement obligations,
g
to the extent they
y exist, are recorded at their net ppresent value and accreted to the
Company’s
p y estimate of liabilityy at the time the obligation
g
would be required
q
to be satisfied.
Recently Adopted Accounting Standards
In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-09 ‘‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers,’’ (“ASC 606”) to clarify
the principles of recognizing revenue and create common revenue recognition guidance between US GAAP and
International Financial Reporting Standards. The new standard became effective for the Company in the first quarter of
2018.
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Under ASC 606, the majority of the Company’s contracts will have a single performance obligation that is satisfied
over time, with revenue recognized based on overall project progress measured as of the financial statement date.
This represents a change in the Company’s previous revenue accounting methodology, Accounting Standards
Codification Topic 605, Revenue Recognition (“ASC 605”), as a majority of contracts were accounted for under the
multiple element arrangement guidance. Under the previous revenue recognition accounting methodology, certain
revenue related to reimbursable expenses was presented either as a separate line item within Reimbursable out-ofpocket revenue or net of related expenses within Service revenue, net in the consolidated statements of
operations. As a result of having a single performance obligation, the Company accounts for all revenue related to
reimbursable expenses on a gross basis within a single revenue line item. Measurement of progress on contracts
with customers will generally be based on the input measurement of cost incurred relative to the total expected costs
to satisfy the performance obligation.
The Company elected to utilize the modified retrospective implementation method for its transition to ASC 606 as
of January 1, 2018 (the “Implementation Date”). Under this implementation method, the Company recognized the
cumulative effect of initially applying the ASC 606 revenue recognition guidance to contracts that were not
completed at the Implementation Date. At the Implementation Date, the Company elected to reflect the aggregate
effect of all contract modifications that occurred before January 1, 2018 in determining the satisfied and unsatisfied
performance obligations and determination of the transaction price.
The cumulative effect adjustment was recorded as a reduction to the opening balance of Accumulated deficit in the
consolidated balance sheets in the amount of $5.7 million, with offsetting amounts of $23.9 million to Accounts
receivable and unbilled, net, $(1.6) million to Deferred income taxes, $35.1 million to Accrued expenses, $(57.4)
million to Pre-funded study costs and $38.9 million to Advanced billings, respectively. The amounts recorded to
Accounts receivable and unbilled, net, Deferred income taxes, Accrued expenses, Pre-funded study costs, and
Advanced billings reflect differences between revenue recognized and billings to customers by project as well as
costs incurred but not settled as of the Implementation Date. The above disclosed cumulative effect adjustments
have been revised from the amounts previously disclosed in the Company’s interim financial statements filed on
Form 10-Q for the quarterly periods ended March 31, 2018, June 30, 2018 and September 30, 2018 to correct certain
immaterial misstatements to the opening balance sheet adoption impact of the standard. The effects of these
misstatements were immaterial to the Company’s results of operations.
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In connection with the implementation of ASC 606 on the modified retrospective method, the Company is
presenting additional information to assist with the comparability of select line items of the current and prior period
year to date reporting in its consolidated balance sheets and consolidated statements of operations. Below the
Company has presented the amountt by which each financial statementt line item is affected in the currentt reporting
period by the application off ASC 606 as compared with the guidance thatt was in effectt before the change (ASC
605).

As Reported

Revenue:
Revenue, net
Service revenue, net
Reimbursed out-of-pocket revenue
Total revenue
Operating expenses:
Direct service costs, excluding depreciation and
amortization
Reimbursed out-of-pocket expenses
Total direct costs
Total operating expenses
Income from operations
Income before income taxes
Income tax provision
Net income
Net income per share attributable to common
shareholders:
Basic
Diluted
Weighted average common shares outstanding:
Basic
Diluted

$

Year Ended December 31, 2018
As Revised under
Adjustments
ASC 605

704,589
704,589

$

(704,589) $
478,063
71,305
(155,221)

478,063
71,305
549,368

252,284
71,305
323,589
438,071
111,297
104,200
22,648
81,552

$

252,284
236,775
489,059
603,541
101,048
93,951
20,766
73,185

$

(165,470)
(165,470)
(165,470)
10,249
10,249
1,882
8,367 $

$
$

2.05
1.97

$
$

0.24
0.23

35,547
36,912
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-

$
$

2.29
2.20
35,547
36,912

ASSETS
Current assets:
Accounts receivable and unbilled, net
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Total current assets
Deferred income taxes
Total assets
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accrued expenses
Pre-funded study costs
Advanced billings
Other current liabilities
Total current liabilities
Deferred income tax liability
Other long-term liabilities
Total liabilities
Shareholders’ equity:
Accumulated deficit
Total shareholders’ equity
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity

As Reported

$

$

As of December 31, 2018
As Revised under
Adjustments
ASC 605

133,449
21,383
178,114
713
967,933

(28,729)
1,147
(27,582)
(389)
(27,971) $

104,720
22,530
150,532
324
939,962

87,493
147,935
4,861
257,026
439
16,560
378,230

(51,109)
61,156
(41,732)
(590)
(32,275)
2,049
(382)
(30,608)

36,384
61,156
106,203
4,271
224,751
2,488
16,178
347,622

(41,487)
589,703
967,933 $

2,637
2,637
(27,971) $

(38,850)
592,340
939,962

$

Year Ended December 31, 2018
As Revised under
As Reported
Adjustments
ASC 605

Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by
operating activities:
Deferred income tax provision
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable and unbilled, net
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Accrued expenses
Pre-funded study costs
Advanced billings
Other assets and liabilities, net
Net cash provided by operating activities

73,185

8,367

81,552

3,942

4,002

7,944

(27,047)
(1,241)
29,029
35,593
1,925
156,584

4,842
(1,147)
(15,967)
3,782
(2,907)
(972)
-

(22,205)
(2,388)
13,062
3,782
32,686
953
156,584

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, “Leases (Topic 842)” (“ASC 842”). The guidance in ASC 842
supersedes the lease recognition requirements in ASC Topic 840, Leases (FAS 13) (“ASC 840”). The objective of
ASC 842 is to increase transparency and comparability among organizations by requiring the recognition of Rightof-use assets (“ROU assets”) and Lease liabilities on the balance sheet. In addition, ASC 842 introduces additional
disclosure requirements that are meant to enable users of the financial statements to assess the amount, timing, and
uncertainty of cash flows arising from leases. ASC 842 became effective for the Company in the first quarter of
2019.
ASC 842 allows by policy election, an entity to choose its transition approach. Entities must adopt ASC 842 on a
either a modified retrospective basis to each prior reporting period presented or through an optional alternative
method referred to as the “Comparatives Under ASC 840 Option” transition approach which allows entities to apply
the new requirements to only those leases that exist as of January 1, 2019. The Company has elected to adopt ASC
842 utilizing the Comparatives Under ASC 840 Option. As such, ASC 842 is applied on a prospective basis as of
January 1, 2019 and any cumulative catch up adjustment for differences between ASC 842 and ASC 840 were
recorded upon adoption.
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ASC 842 also allows for the election of certain practical expedients that are meant to ease the burden of transitioning
to ASC 842 while still achieving compliance. The Company elected the “package of three” practical expedient
allowing the Company to carry forward decisions made and documented under current U.S. GAAP, rather than
reassessing all of the Company’s contracts to determine whether they are or contain leases and how they would be
classified under ASC 842. The Company has decided not to elect the hindsight practical expedient, which had it
been elected, would require the Company to reassess the lease term and assessment of impairment for all of the
Company’s leases using the facts and circumstances known up to the adoption date of the standard.
ASC 842 had a material impact on our consolidated balance sheets, as all leases currently classified as operating
were recognized as ROU assets and lease liabilities upon adoption. In addition, it was determined that two contracts
entered into with a related party for two of the Company’s corporate offices that were classified as deemed assets
and deemed liabilities under ASC 840 were determined to be operating leases under ASC 842. These deemed assets
and liabilities were reclassified on the consolidated balance sheets to ROU assets and lease liabilities and an
adjustment to retained earnings was recorded as a cumulative adjustment for the difference in depreciation expense
and operating lease expense as of the date of adoption.
The impact of the adoption of ASC 842 as of January 1, 2019 is as follows:
ASSETS

As of
January 1, 2019

Current assets:
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Total current assets
Property and equipment, net
Operating lease right-of-use assets
Total assets
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’
EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Other current liabilities
Total current liabilities
Operating lease liabilities
Deemed landlord liability, less current portion
Deferred income tax liability
Other long-term liabilities
Total liabilities
Shareholders’ equity:
Accumulated deficit
Total shareholders’ equity
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity

$

21,013
177,744
37,613
51,854
1,004,775

Adjustments

$

10,951
263,116
45,294
3,158
14,630
405,919

$

(32,334)
598,856
1,004,775 $

December 31, 2018

(370)
(370)
(14,642)
51,854
36,842 $

21,383
178,114
52,255
967,933

6,090
6,090
45,294
(24,484)
2,719
(1,930)
27,689

4,861
257,026
24,484
439
16,560
378,230

9,153
9,153
36,842

(41,487)
589,703
967,933

$

In February 2018, the FASB issued ASU 2018-02, “Income Statement - Reporting Comprehensive Income (Topic
220): Reclassification of Certain Tax Effects from Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income.” ASU 2018-02
allows for an entity to elect to reclassify the income tax effects on items within accumulated other comprehensive
income resulting from U.S. tax reform to retained earnings. The guidance is effective for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2018 with early adoption permitted, including interim periods within those years. The Company
adopted this standard in the first quarter of 2019 and it had no impact on the consolidated financial statements.
In January 2017, the FASB issued ASU 2017-04, “Intangibles- Goodwill and Other (Topic 350): Simplifying the
Test for Goodwill Impairment.” ASU 2017-04 simplifies how an entity assesses goodwill forr impairmentt by
eliminating Step 2 from the goodwill impairmentt test. As amended, the goodwill impairmentt testt will consist
stt of
comparing the fairr value off a reporting unitt with its carrying amount. An entity should recognize a goodwill
impairmentt charge forr the amountt by which the carrying amountt exceeds the reporting unit’s fairr value. The
guidance is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2019 with early adoption permitted. The
Company adopted this standard on a prospective basis in the first quarter of 2019 and it had no impact to the
consolidated financial statements.
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In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-13, “Financial Instruments-Creditt Losses (Topic 326): Measurementt of
Creditt Losses on Financial Instruments” intended to provide financial statementt users with more decision-useful
information aboutt expected creditt losses and otherr commitments to extend creditt held by the reporting entity.. The
standard replaces the incurred loss impairmentt methodology with one thatt reflects expected creditt losses and
requires consideration off a broaderr range off reasonable and supportable information to inform creditt loss estimates.
The guidance is effective forr fiscal years beginning afterr Decemberr 15, 2019 with early adoption permitted. The
Company adopted this
his standard in the firstt quarterr off 2020 and itt had no material impactt to the consolidated
financial statements.
3. CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT LIABILITIES
Contract assets and liabilities are reflected in the Company’s consolidated balance sheets within the accounts
reflected below.
Contract Assets
Accounts receivable represent amounts due from the Company’s customers who are concentrated primarily in the
pharmaceutical, biotechnology, and medical device industries. Unbilled represents revenue recognized to date that
has not been billed or is not yet contractually billable to the customer. In general, amounts become billable upon the
achievement of negotiated contractual events, in accordance with predetermined payment schedules or when a
reimbursable expense has been incurred. Amounts classified to unbilled are those billable to customers within one
year from the respective balance sheet date.
Accounts receivable and unbilled, net consisted of the following (in thousands):
As of
December 31,

December 31,

2020

Accounts receivable
Unbilled receivables
Less: allowance for doubtful accounts
Total accounts receivable and unbilled, net

$

2019

137,912
23,396
(346)
160,962

$

$

127,877
28,368
(583)
155,662

$

Contract Liabilities
Advanced billings represents cash received from customers, or billed amounts per an agreed upon payment
schedule, in advance of services being performed or revenue being recognized. During the year ended December 31,
2020, the Company recognized approximately $165.6 million of revenue that was included in the Advanced billings
balance at the beginning of the year.
Advanced billings consisted of the following (in thousands):
As of
December 31,

December 31,

2020

Advanced billings

$
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2019

255,664

$

192,359

A rollforward of allowance for doubtful account activity is as follows:

2020

Allowance for doubtful accounts - beginning balance
Current year provision
Write-offs, recoveries and the effects of foreign currency
exchange
Allowance for doubtful accounts - ending balance

$

$

Year Ended December 31,
2019

2018

(583) $
(167)

(1,032) $
(263)

(673)
(791)

404
(346) $

712
(583) $

432
(1,032)

4. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET
Property
p y and equipment,
q p
net consisted of the following
g at December 31 (in thousands):
2020

Land
Equipment
Furniture, fixtures, and leasehold improvements
Computer hardware, software, and phone equipment
Buildings
Construction-in-progress
Property and equipment at cost
Less: Accumulated depreciation
Property and equipment, net

$

$

2,492 $
24,049
61,238
18,111
14,309
3,926
124,125
(39,108)
85,017 $

2019

1,577
20,225
24,624
15,958
13,272
3,265
78,921
(31,629)
47,292

Depreciation
p
expense
p
was $11.7 million, $8.4 million and $9.2 million for the years
y
ended December 31, 2020, 2019
and 2018, respectively.
p
y
5. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Goodwill
Total assets carried on the balance sheet and not remeasured to fair value on a recurringg basis, identified as Level 3
measurements, as of December 31, 2020 are $694.0 million, comprised
p
of $662.4 million of ggoodwill and $31.6
million of identified indefinite-lived intangible
g
assets. Accumulated goodwill
g
impairment
p
losses to date amounts to
$9.3 million, all of which was recognized
g
in 2015.

- 72 -

Intangible Assets, Net
Intangible assets, net consisted of the following at December 31 (in thousands):
2020

Intangible assets:
Finite-lived intangible assets:
Carrying amount:
Customer relationships
Other
Total finite-lived intangible assets
Accumulated amortization:
Customer relationships
Other
Total accumulated amortization
Total finite-lived intangible assets, net
Trade name (indefinite-lived)
Total intangible assets, net

$

$

2019

145,051
3,074
148,125

$

(130,223)
(3,074)
(133,297)
14,828
31,646
46,474 $

145,051
3,074
148,125
(122,426)
(2,995)
(125,421)
22,704
31,646
54,350

As of December 31, 2020, estimated amortization expense of the Company’s intangible assets for each of the next
five years and thereafter is as follows (in thousands):
Amortization

2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
Later years

$

5,114
3,353
2,199
1,443
946
1,773
14,828

$
6. ACCRUED EXPENSES
Accrued expenses consisted of the following at December 31 (in thousands):
2020

Employee compensation and benefits
Project related reimbursable expenses
Other
Total accrued expenses

$

$

40,208
87,092
7,067
134,367

2019

$

$

34,119
68,696
6,437
109,252

7. DEBT
On September 30, 2019 (the “Closing Date”), the Company obtained an unsecured credit facility in an aggregate
principal amount up to $50.0 million (the “Credit Facility”) through its wholly owned subsidiaries, Medpace, Inc., as
borrower (the “Borrower”), and Medpace IntermediateCo, Inc., as guarantor (the “Guarantor”).
On the Closing Date, the Borrower and lender entered into a Loan Agreement (the “Loan Agreement”) providing for
the Credit Facility, and the Guarantor executed a Guaranty Agreement providing for its guarantee of the payment
and performance of the obligations under the Loan Agreement. The Loan Agreement provides that outstanding
balances under the Credit Facility will bear interest at a rate of LIBOR plus 100 basis points (1.00%). The Loan
Agreement also provides that the Credit Facility will expire in 364 days from the Closing Date. On March 30, 2020,
the Company amended the creditt facility to extend its expiration date to March 31, 2021
21 and add provisions for
alternative interestt rates when certain interbankk markett offered rates are nott available.
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The Loan Agreementt contains otherr customary loan terms, representations
negative covenants, in each case, subject to customary limitations, exceptions and exclusions. The Loan Agreement
contains certain events of default, including, among others, non-payment of principal or interest and breach of the
covenants.
As off Decemberr 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively, there were no outstanding borrowings underr the Creditt Facility
and $0.2 million in letters off creditt outstanding related to certain operating lease obligations, which are secured by
the Creditt Facility.
8. LEASES
The Company enters into leases for real estate and equipment. Real estate leases are for our corporate office space
and laboratories around the world. Real estate leases have remaining lease terms of less than one year
to 20 years. Many of the Company’s leases include options to extend the leases on a month to month basis or for set
periods for up to 20 years. Many leases also include options to terminate the leases within one year or per other
contractual terms.
The components
p
of lease expense
p
were as follows (in thousands):
Year Ended December 31,
2020

Operating lease cost
Variable lease cost

$

2019

19,842
5,335

$

13,151
2,813

Supplemental
pp
cash flow information related to the leases was as follows (in thousands):
Year Ended December 31,
2020

2019

Cash paid for amounts included in the measurement of lease liabilities:
Operating cash flows from operating leases
$

13,956

Right-of-use assets obtained in exchange for lease obligations:
Operating leases

73,905

$

9,773

10,294

Supplemental balance sheet information related to the leases was as follows (in thousands):
As of
December 31,

December 31,

2020

2019

Operating lease right-of-use assets

$

113,809

$

52,152

Other current liabilities
Operating lease liabilities
Total operating lease liabilities

$

15,890
115,143
131,033

$

10,977
45,212
56,189

$

Weighted Average Remaining Lease Term (years)
Operating leases
Weighted Average Discount Rate
Operating leases

12.9
5.9%
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$

6.3
6.0%

Lease payments due related to lease liabilities as of December 31, 2020 were as follows (in thousands):

2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
Later years
Total lease payments
Less: imputed interest
Total

Related Party
Operating Leases
$
10,510
10,301
8,771
8,900
9,032
103,006
150,520
(59,799)
$
90,721

Non-Related Parties
Operating Leases
$
11,905
8,960
7,477
5,206
3,746
8,657
45,951
(5,639)
$
40,312

Total
Operating Leases
$
22,415
19,261
16,248
14,106
12,778
111,663
196,471
(65,438)
$
131,033

Comparative period disclosures under ASC 840:
Rental expense under operating leases totaled $9.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2018 and is allocated
between Total direct costs, and Selling, general and administrative in the consolidated statements of operations.
9. SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Stock-Based Compensation
2016 Incentive Award Plan
On August 11, 2016 in connection with the Company's IPO, the Board approved the formation of the 2016 Incentive
Award Plan (the “2016 Plan”), which replaced our 2014 Equity Incentive Plan (the “2014 Plan”). The 2016 Plan
provides for long-term equity incentive compensation for key employees, officers and non-employee directors. A
variety of discretionary awards (collectively, the “Awards”) for employees and non-employee directors are
authorized under the 2016 Plan, including vested shares, stock options, stock appreciation rights (“SARs”),
restricted stock awards (“RSAs”), restricted stock units (“RSUs”), or other cash based or stock dividend equivalent
awards, which are all equity-classified instruments under the 2016 Plan. The number of shares registered and
available for grant under the 2016 Plan is 6,000,000. The vesting of such awards may be conditioned upon either a
specified period of time or the attainment of specific performance goals as determined by the administrator of the
2016 Plan. The option price and term are also subject to determination by the administrator with respect to each
grant. Option prices are generally expected to be set at the market price of the Company’s common stock at the date
of grant and option terms are not expected to exceed ten years.
The Company
p y ggranted 405,237 awards to employees
p y
under the 2016 Incentive Award Plan duringg the yyear ended
December 31, 2020, consistingg of 20,724 restricted stock awards (“RSA”) and 177,808 restricted stock units
(“RSU”) vestingg after four yyears, 4,800 stock option
p
awards and 2,500 RSU vesting
g after three yyears
and 199,405 fully-vested
y
stock option
p
awards. The Company
p y granted
g
an additional 23,148 stock option
p
awards to
non-employee
p y directors under the 2016 Incentive Award Plan, during
g the yyear ended December 31, 2020. These
awards will vest on the earlier of (a) the dayy immediatelyy preceding
p
g the date of the first annual meeting
g followingg
the date of ggrant and (b) the first anniversary
y of the date of grant,
g
subject
j to the non-employee
p y director continuingg in
service through
g the applicable
pp
vestingg date.
The Company granted 816,286 awards to employees under the 2016 Incentive Award Plan during the year ended
December 31, 2019, consisting of 10,000 stock option awards and 227,610 RSU vesting after four years, 5,000 stock
option awards vesting after one year, 551,676 fully-vested stock option awards and 22,000 stock option awards with
vesting in twelve equal monthly installments beginning on March 31, 2019. The Company granted an additional
41,853 stock option awards to non-employee directors under the 2016 Incentive Award Plan, during the year ended
December 31, 2019. These awards will vest on the earlier of (a) the day immediately preceding the date of the first
annual meeting following the date of grant and (b) the first anniversary of the date of grant, subject to the nonemployee director continuing in service through the applicable vesting date.
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The Company granted 850,700 awards to employees under the 2016 Plan during the year ended December 31, 2018,
consisting of 550,500 stock option awards and 300,200 RSU, all vesting after four years. The Company granted an
additional 33,801 stock option awards to non-employee directors under the 2016 Incentive Award Plan, during the
year ended December 31, 2018. These awards will vest on the earlier of (a) the day immediately preceding the date
of the first annual meeting following the date of grant and (b) the first anniversary of the date of grant, subject to the
non-employee director continuing in service through the applicable vesting date.
The 2016 Plan expires in 2026, except for awards then outstanding, and is administered by the Board. All Awards
granted at the IPO or thereafter were or will be issued under the 2016 Plan.
The company satisfies stock option exercises and vested stock awards with treasury shares or newly issued shares.
Shares available for future stock compensation grants under the 2016 Plan totaled 2.9 million and 3.2 million at
December 31, 2020 and 2019.
2014 Equity Incentive Plan
The 2014 Plan forr employees and directors provided the issuance off vested shares, stockk options, RSAs and RSUs in
Medpace Holdings, Inc.’s common stock. The awards were granted to key employees as additional compensation
forr services rendered and as a means off retention overr the vesting period, typically three to fourr years. RSAs
awarded underr the 2014 Plan were subjectt to automatic forfeiture upon departure until vested and entitle the
shareholderr to all rights off common stockk ownership exceptt thatt they may nott be sold, transferred, pledged or
otherwise disposed off during the restriction period, exceptt as noted in the following paragraph. The 2014 Plan
allowed forr the issuance off non-qualified stockk options to employees, officers, and directors underr this plan
(collectively, “the Participants”). Underr the 2014 Plan, options could be granted with an exercise price equal to or
greaterr than the fairr value off common stockk att the grantt date as determined by the Board off Directors. The stock
options, iff unexercised, expired seven years from the date off grant. The awards under the 2014 Plan were equity
classified instruments for all periods presented.
In the third quarter of 2019, Medpace Investors, LLC (“MPI”), a related party to the Company, filed a Tender Offer
Statement (“Tender Offer”) offering to purchase, for cash, vested stock options of employee holders of options
outstanding from the 2014 Incentive Award Plan. The Tender Offer resulted in the tender and purchase
of 229,431 vested options from employee holders of options by MPI. Under generally accepted accounting guidance
governing such transactions, because the Tender Offer was made by an economic interest holder in the Company,
this transaction is accounted for as a settlement of vested options and a reissuance of options at fair value as of the
transaction date. Expense related to the reissuance of options to MPI is included as stock-based compensation
expense of $5.1 million within Selling, general and administrative expenses during the year ended December 31,
2019.
Equity Awards
Valuation Assumptions
The Company
p y determines the fair value of stock options
p
using
g the Black-Scholes-Merton option
p
ppricing
g model (the
“BSM Model”). The BSM Model is pprimarily
y affected byy the fair value of the Company’s
p y common stock (see
restricted share valuation discussion below), the expected
p
holding
g period
p
for the option,
p
expected
p
stock price
p
volatilityy over the term of the awards, the risk-free interest rate, and expected
p
dividends.
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The followingg table sets forth the keyy weighted-average
g
g assumptions
p
used in the BSM Model to calculate the fair
value of options:
p

2020

Expected holding period – years
Expected volatility
Risk-free interest rate
Expected dividend yield

3.1
31.0%
1.0%
0.0%

Year Ended December 31,
2019

2.6
26.3%
2.0%
0.0%

2018

5.4
27.0%
2.8%
0.0%

The assumptions
p
used in the table above reflect grant
g
date inputs
p to arrive at the ggrant date fair values for stock
options subject to equity-classified stock compensation accounting.
The expected
p
holdingg period
p
represents
p
the period
p
of time the ggrants are expected
p
to be outstanding.
g The Company
p y
uses the simplified
p
method, as prescribed
p
byy accountingg gguidance governing
g
g such awards, to calculate the expected
p
holdingg period
p
for options
p
granted
g
to employees
p y
as we do not have sufficient historical evidence data to pprovide a
reasonable basis upon
p which to estimate the expected
p
holding
g pperiod. For options
p
valued by
y the Company
p y for the
yyears ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018, respectively,
p
y the expected
p
holdingg period
p
is based on an average
g
between the midpoint of the vesting date and the expiration date of the options.
The Company
p y estimates expected
p
volatility
y pprimarily
y by
y using
g the historical volatility
y of a ppublicly
y traded ppeer
ggroupp that operates
p
in the clinical research and development
p
industry.
y The Company
p y does not have adequate
q
historyy
to calculate its own historical or implied
p
volatilityy and believes the Company’s
p y expected
p
volatilityy will approximate
pp
the historical experience of the peer group.
The risk-free interest rate is based on the yyield on U.S. Treasuryy obligations
g
with remainingg durations equal
q to the
expected
p
holdingg period
p
of the options.
p
The expected
p
dividend yyield is assumed to be zero based on recent and
anticipated dividend activity.
q
p y
g
g
upon
p the market price
p
of the Company’s
p y common stock on the date of grant
g
as listed on the NASDAQ. Due to the
absence of an active market for the Company’s
p y common stock prior
p
to the IPO, the Company
p y determined the fair
value of restricted shares byy obtainingg an independent
p
valuation of the fair value of the Company’s
p y equity,
q y applying
pp y g
a discount for lack of marketability,
y and then calculatingg the implied
p
share pprice. The fair value of the Company
p y was
estimated pprimarilyy usingg an income approach
pp
which is based on assumptions
p
and estimates made byy management
g
and, secondarily,
y usingg other market-related factors in current industryy trends as well as observed transaction values.
In determiningg the estimated future cash flows used in the income approach,
pp
the Company
p y developed
p and applied
pp
certain estimates and jjudgments,
g
including
g current and pprojected
j
future levels of income based on management’s
g
pplans, business trends, prospects
p p
and market and economic conditions, including
g market-participant
p
p considerations.
Significant
g
assumptions
p
utilized in the income approach
pp
were based on company
p y specific
p
information and
pprojections,
j
which were not observable in the market and are thus considered Level 3 measurements byy authoritative
gguidance. The discount for lack of marketabilityy (the “Marketabilityy Discount”) was applied
pp
to reflect what a market
pparticipant
p would consider in relation to the post-vesting
p
g restrictions imposed
p
regarding
g
g the inabilityy to sell, transfer,
or ppledge
g the shares duringg the restriction period.
p
The Marketability
y Discount was estimated by
y usingg the BSM
Model to calculate the cost of a theoretical pput option
p
to hedge
g the fluctuation in value of the investment between the
valuation date and an anticipated
p
liquidity
q
y date.
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The followingg table summarizes the ggrant date fair values of stock options
p
and restricted shares issued during
g the
pperiod as well as the allocation of stock-based compensation
p
expense
p
to Total direct costs, and Selling,
g general
g
and
administrative reported
p
in the consolidated statements of operations:
p

Year Ended December 31,
2019

2020

Weighted average, grant date fair value
Stock options
Restricted shares (RSAs and RSUs)
Stock-based compensation expense
allocated to:
Total direct costs
Selling, general, and administrative
Total stock-based compensation expense

2018

$
$

15.19
98.61

$
$

14.06
60.53

$
$

11.51
49.38

$

7,781
6,003
13,784

$

6,999
13,742
20,741

$

4,132
2,367
6,499

$

$

$

Award Activity
The followingg table sets forth the Company’s
p y stock option
p
activity:
y
Year Ended December 31,
2020
2019
Weighted Average
Weighted Average
Options
Exercise Price
Options
Exercise Price Options
Outstanding beginning of Period 3,030,071 $
Granted
227,353 $
Exercised
(637,806) $
Forfeited/Expired (118,891) $
Outstanding - end of
period
2,500,727 $
Exercisable - end of
period

1,498,829 $

2018
Weighted Average
Exercise Price

34.50 2,945,040 $
105.77 859,960 $
25.07 (399,368) $
37.16 (375,561) $

24.18 2,782,868 $
54.97 584,301 $
16.19 (169,771) $
19.91 (252,358) $

20.73
37.72
14.98
23.69

43.26 3,030,071 $

34.50 2,945,040 $

24.18

48.99 1,435,088 $

38.62 1,096,116 $

16.01

The following table sets forth the Company’s Restricted Share activity:

2020
Shares/Units

Outstanding and unvested - beginning of
period
Granted
Vested
Forfeited
Outstanding and unvested - end of period

Year Ended December 31,
2019
Shares/Units

569,770
201,032
(75,240)
695,562

Cumulative vested shares - end of period

1,913,916
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421,200
227,610
(79,040)
569,770
1,913,916

2018
Shares/Units

183,629
300,200
(29,629)
(33,000)
421,200
1,913,916

The followingg table summarizes information about stock options
p
expected
p
to vest, stock options
p
exercisable, and
unvested restricted share awards expected
p
to vest at December 31, 2020:

December 31, 2020
Number of stock options expected
to vest
Number of Restricted Shares expected
to vest
Total expected to vest - December 31, 2020
Total stock options exercisable December 31, 2020
Unrecognized compensation cost December 31, 2020 (in thousands)
Weighted average years over which
unrecognized compensation cost will be
recognized

Weighted Average
Exercise
Price

Stock
Options

$

2,500,727

-

2,500,727

695,562
695,562

$

43.26

48.99

Weighted Average
Remaining
Life (Years)

Restricted
Shares

3.4

1,498,829
$

2,487 $

1.3

3.1
26,760

2.9

The followingg table sets forth the aggregate
gg g intrinsic value off stockk options
p
exercised, the fairr values off awards
vested, and share based liabilities settled duringg the respective
p
periods
p
(in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,
2019

2020

Total intrinsic value of stock options
exercised
Total grant-date fair value of stock
options vested
Total grant-date fair value of
restricted shares vested
Total settlement date fair value of
restricted shares vested

2018

$

57,927

$

19,807

$

5,326

$

6,833

$

12,117

$

1,417

$

-

$

-

$

447

$

-

$

-

$

1,568

The actual tax benefits recognized related to stock-based compensation totaled $11.7 million, $5.5 million and $1.0
million forr the years ended Decemberr 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018, respectively.
10. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS
The Company provides a 401(k) plan that covers substantially all U.S. employees. Participants can elect to
contribute up to 50% of their eligible earnings on a pre-tax basis, subject to Internal Revenue Service annual
limitations.
The U.S.-based plan offers a year-end employer matching contribution, requiring the participant to be an employee
at year-end to qualify for the match. Participants with one year or more of service are eligible for the matching
contribution. Participants fully vest in the employer contributions after three years of service. The employer
contribution represents a percentage of a participant’s eligible compensation. The Company’s 401(k) Plan costs
were $3.7 million, $3.1 million and $2.7 million during the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018,
respectively, and were allocated between Total direct costs, and Selling, general and administrative in the
consolidated statements of operations.
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The Company has various defined contribution arrangements for eligible employees of non-U.S. entities. These
defined contribution arrangements provide employees with retirement savings and life insurance benefits. The
Company incurred expenses related to these arrangements of $1.5 million, $1.2 million and $1.0 million in the years
ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018, respectively, and were allocated between Total direct costs, and Selling,
general and administrative in the consolidated statements of operations.
The Company is also required to pay certain minimum statutory post-employment benefits. The Company
recognizes a liability and the associated expense for these benefits when it is probable that employees are entitled to
the benefit.
11. INCOME TAXES
The Company
p y files income tax returns for U.S. federal and various U.S. states, as well as various foreign
g
jjurisdictions. The liabilities for unrecognized
g
tax benefits are carried in Other long-term
g
liabilities on the
consolidated balance sheets because the payment of cash is not anticipated within one year of the balance sheet date.
The components
p
of income before income taxes consisted of the following
g (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,
2019

2020

Domestic
Foreign jurisdictions
Income before income taxes

$
$

158,432
10,100
168,532

$
$

117,326
7,506
124,832

2018

$
$

88,014
5,937
93,951

Income tax provision consisted off the following (in thousands):
Current

Year ended December 31, 2020
U.S. Federal
U.S. state and local
Foreign jurisdictions

$

$
Year ended December 31, 2019
U.S. Federal
U.S. state and local
Foreign jurisdictions

$

$
Year ended December 31, 2018
U.S. Federal
U.S. state and local
Foreign jurisdictions

$

$
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Deferred

Total

16,405 $
4,588
1,586
22,579 $

436
95
38
569

$

10,577 $
1,761
2,023
14,361 $

8,922
987
119
10,028

$

13,372 $
1,912
1,408
16,692 $

$

16,841
4,683
1,624
23,148

$

19,499
2,748
2,142
24,389

4,172 $
(116)
18
4,074 $

17,544
1,796
1,426
20,766

The difference between the statutory rate forr federal income tax and the effective income tax rate was as follows (in
thousands):

Year Ended December 31,
2019

2020

Income tax expense calculated
at the federal statutory rate
Effect of:
State and local taxes, net
of federal benefit
Tax on foreign earnings,
net of tax credits and
deductions
Tax reform adjustment
Write off of Deferred Tax Assets
Deferred credit
Permanent items:
Stock-based awards
Tax reform
Deduction for FDII
Other
State/Local tax credits
Foreign tax credits
Change in liability for
uncertain tax positions
Other

$ 35,392

21.0% $ 26,215

21.0% $ 19,730

1.6

(1,773)
(700)

(1.1)
(0.4)

593
(802)

0.4
(0.6)

172
(195)
509
(802)

0.2
(0.2)
0.6
(0.9)

(10,019)
(2,593)
144
(780)
-

(5.9)
(1.5)
0.1
(0.5)
-

(3,011)
(2,283)
964
(793)
-

(2.4)
(1.8)
0.8
(0.6)
-

(651)
126
687
(1,253)
(727)

(0.7)
0.1
0.7
(1.3)
(0.8)

0.7
1,325
(0.3)
160
13.7% $ 24,389

1.6

1,978

21.0%

2,639

1,120
(282)
$ 23,148

2,021

2018

1.0
1,102
0.1
90
19.5% $ 20,766

2.1

1.2
0.1
22.1%

Prior to the ppassage
g of the “Tax Cuts and Jobs Act” (TCJA), the Company
p y asserted that all of the undistributed
foreign
g earnings
g of its foreign
g subsidiaries were considered indefinitely
y reinvested and accordingly,
g y no deferred
taxes were pprovided. Beginning
g
g in 2018, the TCJA pprovides a 100% deduction for dividends received from 10ppercent owned foreign
g corporations
p
byy U.S. corporate
p
shareholders, subject
j to a one-year
y holdingg period.
p
Although
g
dividend income is now exempt
p from U.S. federal tax in the hands of the U.S. corporate
p
shareholders, companies
p
must still apply
pp y the guidance
g
of ASC 740-30-25-18 to account for the tax consequences
q
of outside basis differences
and other tax impacts
p
of their investments in non-U.S. subsidiaries. As of December 31, 2020, the Company’s
p y
accountingg position
p
is that unremitted foreign
g earnings
g are indefinitely
y reinvested. Therefore, the Company
p y has not
recorded deferred foreign
g withholdingg taxes on the unremitted foreign
g earnings
g and it is not practicable
p
to determine
the amount of the additional taxes that would result if these earnings
g were repatriated.
p
The undistributed earnings
g of
foreign
g subsidiaries was approximately
pp
y $27.8 million.
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Components
p
of the Company’s
p y net deferred tax asset (liability)
y included in the consolidated balance sheets consisted
of the followingg at December 31 (in thousands):
2020

Deferred tax assets:
Accrued liabilities
Depreciation and amortization
Foreign operating loss carryforward
U.S. state and local tax credits and carryforward
Other
Valuation allowance
Total deferred tax assets

$

Deferred tax liabilities:
Depreciation and amortization
Prepaid expenses
Advanced billings
Other
Total deferred tax liabilities
Net deferred tax liability

$

2019

16,634 $
881
311
246
(578)
17,494

12,229
1,121
447
184
96
(755)
13,322

(26,119)
(829)
(3,513)
(48)
(30,509)
(13,015) $

(21,787)
(808)
(3,147)
(53)
(25,795)
(12,473)

The Company
p y has foreign
g operating
p
g loss carryforwards
y
for which a deferred tax asset of $0.3 million has been
established. The Company
p y has a valuation allowance of $0.3 million against
g
this deferred tax asset based upon
p its
assessment that it is more likelyy than not that this amount will not be realized. The ultimate realization of this tax
benefit is dependent
p
upon
p the ggeneration of sufficient operating
p
g income in the respective
p
tax jjurisdictions.
Approximately
pp
y 12% of the foreign
g net operating
p
g loss carryforwards
y
can be utilized over an indefinite period
p
whereas
the remainder will expire
p at various times from 2023 to 2029 if not utilized.
Annual activityy related to the Company’s
p y valuation allowance is as follows (in thousands):

2020

Beginning Balance
Additions charged to expense
Additions due to asset acquisition
Reductions from utilization, reassessments and
expirations
Ending Balance

$

$
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Year Ended December 31,
2019

755
-

$

(177)
578 $

169
375
265

$

(54)
755 $

2018

2,394
(2,225)
169

A reconciliation off the beginning and ending balances off the total amounts off gross unrecognized tax benefits is as
follows (in thousands):

2020

Beginning Balance
Increases in tax positions for prior years
Decreases in tax positions for prior years
Increases in tax positions for current year
Lapse in statute of limitations
Ending Balance

$

Year Ended December 31,
2019

9,718 $
(181)
2,881
(1,727)
10,691 $

$

8,525 $
(888)
2,081
9,718 $

2018

6,890
(579)
2,214
8,525

p
p
g
p
p
in the consolidated statements of operations.
p
There was no material change
g to tax-related interest and penalties
p
duringg the years
y
ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018. As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively,
p
y the
Company
p y has a liability
y for interest and penalties
p
of $2.1 million and $1.4 million that is associated with related tax
liabilities of $8.6 million and $8.2 million for uncertain tax positions.
The Company
p y operates
p
in various foreign,
g state and local jjurisdictions. The number of tax yyears for which the statute
of limitations remains open
p for foreign,
g state and local jjurisdictions varies by
y jjurisdiction and is approximately
pp
y four
y
years
(2016 through
g 2020). For federal tax ppurposes,
p
the Company’s
p y open
p tax yyears are 2017 through
g 2020.
12. COMMITMENTS, CONTINGENCIES, AND GUARANTEES
Legall Proceedings
Medpace periodically becomes involved in various claims and lawsuits thatt are incidental to its business.
Managementt believes, afterr consultation with counsel, thatt no matters currently pending would, in the eventt off an
adverse outcome, have a material impact
p t on the Company’s
p y consolidated balance sheets, statements off operations,
p
orr
cash flows forr the years ended Decemberr 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018.
Purchase Commitments
The Company has several minimum purchase commitments forr projectt related supplies totaling $12.5 million as off
Decemberr 31, 2020. In return forr the commitment, Medpace
p
receives preferential
p
p
pricing.
g The commitments expire
p
att various times through
g 2027.
13. MISCELLANEOUS INCOME (EXPENSE), NET
Miscellaneous income (expense),
p
net consisted of the followingg (in thousands):

2020

Net gain (loss) on foreign-currency transactions
Other income (expense)
Miscellaneous income (expense), net

$
$

Year Ended December 31,
2019

514
669
1,183

$
$

(581) $
(282)
(863) $

2018

386
674
1,060

14. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Employee Loans
The Company periodically extends short term loans or advances to employees, typically upon commencement of
employment. Total receivables as a result of these employee advances of $0.2 million existed at December 31, 2020

- 83 -

and 2019, respectively, and are included in the Prepaid expenses and other current assets and Other assets line items
of the consolidated balance sheets, respectively, depending on the contractual repayment date.
Director Fees
The Company paid fees for director services provided by Cinven employees that were members of the Company’s
Board of Directors and any related committees. The director fees were paid directly to Cinven in accordance with
the Company’s non-employee director compensation policy. During the third quarter of 2018, Cinven sold its
remaining shares of the Company’s common stock and all three members of the Company’s Board affiliated with
Cinven subsequently resigned. During the year ended December 31, 2018, the Company incurred director fees of
$0.1 million and related travel expenses of less than $0.1 million.
Service Agreements
Cymabay Therapeutics, Inc. (“Cymabay”)
Cymabay is a clinical-stage biopharmaceutical company developing therapies to treat metabolic diseases with high
unmet medical need, including serious rare and orphan disorders. A Medpace employee was a member Cymabay’s
board of directors from the first quarter of 2016 until his resignation in the first quarter of 2020. The Company and
Cymabay entered into a Master Service Agreement (“MSA”) dated October 21, 2016. Subsequently, the Company
and Cymabay have entered into several task orders for the Company to perform clinical trial related services. The
Company recognized total revenue from Cymabay of $13.2 million and $10.8 million during the years ended
December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively, in the Company’s consolidated statements of operations. As of
Decemberr 31, 2019, the Company
mpany had Advanced billings from Cymabay off $1.6 million recorded in the
consolidated balance sheets. In addition, as of December 31, 2019, the Company had Accounts receivable and
unbilled, net from Cymabay of $1.4 million recorded in the consolidated balance sheets. As of the first quarter of
2020, Cymabay is no longer considered a related party.
LIB Therapeutics LLC and subsidiaries (“LIB”)
Certain executives and employees of the Company, including the chief executive officer, are members of LIB’s
board of managers and/or have equity investments in LIB. The Company entered into a MSA dated November 24,
2015 with LIB, a company that engages in research, development, marketing and commercialization of
pharmaceutical drugs. Subsequently, the Company and LIB have entered into several task orders for the Company to
perform clinical trial related services. The Company recognized total revenue from LIB of $2.6 million, $2.0 million
and $3.7 million during the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018 in the Company’s consolidated
statement of operations. As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Company had, from LIB, Advanced billings of
$0.7 million and $0.5 million in the consolidated balance sheets, respectively. In addition, the Company had
Accounts receivable and unbilled, net from LIB of $0.3 million in the consolidated balance sheets at December 31,
2020 and 2019, respectively.
CinRX Pharma and subsidiaries (“CinRx”)
Certain executives and employees of the Company, including the chief executive officer, are members of CinRx’s
board of managers and/or have equity investments in CinRx, a biotech company. The Company and CinRx have
entered into several task orders for the Company to perform clinical trial related services. During the years ended
December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018, the Company recognized total revenue from CinRx of $13.2 million, $3.7
million and $0.5 million in the Company’s consolidated statements of operations. As of December 31, 2020 and
2019, the Company had Advanced billings from CinRx of $5.8 million and $0.9 million in the consolidated balance
sheets, respectively. As of December 31, 2020 and 2019 the Company had Accounts receivable and unbilled, net
from CinRx of $2.2 million and $0.2 million in the consolidated balance sheets.
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The Summit Hotel (“The Summit”)
The Summit Hotel, located on the Medpace campus, is owned by the chief executive officer, and managed by an
unrelated hospitality management entity. Medpace incurs travel lodging and meeting expenses at The Summit.
During the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018, Medpace incurred expenses of $0.4 million, $0.6
million and $0.4 million at The Summit.
Medpace Investors, LLC (“MPI”)
MPI is a noncontrolling shareholder and related party of Medpace Holdings, Inc. MPI is owned and managed by
employees of the Company. The chief executive officer of Medpace is also the manager and majority unit holder of
MPI. The Company acted as a paying agent for MPI with taxing authorities principally in instances when employee
tax payments or remittance of withholdings related to equity compensation are required. Refer to Note 9 of the
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for details of the Tender Offer transaction.
Leased Real Estate
Headquarters Lease
The Company has entered into operating leases for its corporate headquarters and a storage space facility with an
entity that is wholly owned by the Company’s chief executive officer. The Company has evaluated its relationship
with the related party and concluded that the related party is not a variable interest entity because the Company has
no direct ownership interest or relationship other than the leases. The lease for headquarters is for an initial term of
twelve years through November 2022 with a renewal option for one 10-year term at prevailing market rates. The
Company pays rent, taxes, insurance, and maintenance expenses that arise from the use of the properties. Annual
base rent for the corporate headquarters allows for adjustments to the rental rate annually for increases in the
consumer price index. Operating lease cost recognized for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 was $2.0
million, respectively, and was allocated between Direct service costs, excluding depreciation and amortization, and
Selling, general and administrative in the consolidated statements of operations. The Operating lease right-of-use
assets at December 31, 2020 and 2019 were $3.5 million and $5.3 million in the consolidated balance sheets. The
current and long-term portions of the lease liabilities at December 31, 2020 were $1.9 million and $1.6 million,
respectively, and were recognized in Other current liabilities and Operating lease liabilities in the consolidated
balance sheets. The currentt and long-term portions off the lease liabilities att Decemberr 31, 2019 were $1.8 million
and $3.5 million, respectively, and were recognized in Otherr currentt liabilities and Operating lease liabilities in the
consolidated balance sheets. Underr ASC 840, lease expense recognized forr the years ended Decemberr 31, 2018 was
$2.2 million and was allocated between Direct service costs, excluding depreciation and amortization, and Selling,
general and administrative in the consolidated statements of operations.
In 2018, Medpace, Inc. entered into a multi-year lease agreement governing future occupancy of additional office
space in Cincinnati, Ohio with an entity thatt is wholly owned by the Company’s chieff executive officerr and certain
members off his immediate family. The Company began to occupy the premises in the second quarterr off fiscal year
2020. The lease expires in 2040 and the Company has two 10-year options to extend the term of the lease. The
2020
Company pays rent, taxes, insurance, and maintenance expenses that arise from the use of the property. Annual base
rent for the corporate headquarters allows for adjustments to the rental rate annually for increases in the consumer
price index. The Company has determined that the lease is an operating lease. Operating lease cost recognized for
the year ended December 31, 2020 was $3.6 million. The operating lease cost was allocated between Total direct
costs and Selling, general and administrative in the consolidated statements of operations. The Operating lease rightof-use assets at December 31, 2020 were $56.6 million in the consolidated balance sheets. The current and longterm portions of the lease liabilities at December 31, 2020 were $0.7 million and $66.8 million, respectively and
were recognized in Other current liabilities and Operating lease liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets.
The Company entered into two multi-year lease agreements governing the occupancy of space of two buildings in
Cincinnati, Ohio with an entity that is wholly owned by the Company’s chief executive officer and certain members
of his immediate family. The Company assumed occupancy in 2012 and the leases expire in 2027 with the Company
having one 10-year option to extend the lease term. The Company pays rent, taxes, insurance, and maintenance
expenses that arise from the use of the property. Annual base rent for the corporate headquarters allows for
adjustments to the rental rate annually for increases in the consumer price index. The Company has determined that
the leases are operating leases. Operating lease cost recognized for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019
was $3.6 million, respectively. The lease cost was allocated between Total direct costs and Selling, general and

- 85 -

administrative in the consolidated statements of operations. The Operating lease right-of-use assets at December 31,
2020 and 2019 were $19.7 million and $21.9 million, respectively, in the consolidated balance sheets. The current
and long-term portions of the lease liabilities at December 31, 2020 were $2.4 million and $17.2 million,
respectively, and were recognized in Other current liabilities and Operating lease liabilities in the consolidated
balance sheets. The currentt and long-term portions off the lease liabilities att Decemberr 31, 2019 were $2.3 million
and $19.7 million, respectively, and were recognized in Otherr currentt liabilities and Operating lease liabilities in the
consolidated balance sheets.
ASC 840 - Deemed Assets and Deemed Landlord Liabilities
The Company paid $3.8 million during the year ended December 31, 2018 related to leases recognized as deemed
assets and deemed landlord liabilities under ASC 840.
Travel Services
The Company incurs expenses for travel services for company executives provided by a private aviation charter
company that is owned by the chief executive officer and the executive vice president of operations of the Company
(“private aviation charter”). The Company may contract directly with the private aviation charter for the use of its
aircraft or indirectly through a third party aircraft management and jet charter company (the “Aircraft Management
Company”). The travel services provided are primarily for business purposes, with certain personal travel paid for as
part of the executives’ compensation arrangements. The Aircraft Management Company also makes the private
aviation charter aircraft available to third parties. The Company incurred travel expenses of $0.7 million, $1.2
million and $1.3 million during the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018, respectively. These travel
expenses are recorded in Selling, general and administrative in the Company’s consolidated statements of
operations.
15. ENTITY WIDE DISCLOSURES
Operations By Geographic Location
The Company
p y conducts operations
p
in North America, Europe,
p Africa, Asia-Pacific and Latin America through
g
wholly-owned
y
subsidiaries and representative
p
sales offices. The Company
p y attributes revenue to ggeographical
g p
locations based upon
p the location of the contractingg entity.
y For the yyears ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018,
total revenue attributable to the U.S. represented
p
approximately
pp
y 96%, 95% and 97%, respectively,
p
y of total
consolidated total revenue.
The followingg table summarizes pproperty
p y and equipment,
q p
nett byy geographic
g g p region
g
and is furtherr broken down to
show countries which accountt forr 10% orr more off total as off Decemberr 31, iff anyy (in thousands):
2020

Property and equipment, net:
United States
Europe
Belgium
Other
Total Europe
Asia-Pacific
Other
Total property and equipment, net
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$

58,124

$

12,024
7,961
19,985
6,566
342
85,017

2019

$

25,603

$

10,045
5,728
15,773
5,671
245
47,292

Revenue by Category
The followingg table disaggregates
gg g
the Company’s
p y revenue by
y major
j source (in thousands):
Years Ended December 31,
2019

2020
Therapeutic Area
Oncology
Other
Metabolic
AVAI
Cardiology
Central Nervous System
Total revenue

$

$

297,675
215,370
126,075
103,259
95,153
88,393
925,925

$

$

256,766
196,159
138,650
86,390
91,258
91,746
860,969

2018
$

$

189,056
163,983
124,837
77,271
95,213
54,229
704,589

y
p
p
p j
p
y
separate
p
therapeutic
p
area, has been included in the respective
p
therapeutic
p
area that best aligns
g with the therapeutic
p
focus of the medical device pproject
j and represents
p
how management
g
evaluates disaggregated
gg g
revenue in its internal
reporting.
p
g
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure
None.
Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
Limitations on Effectiveness of Controls and Procedures
In designing
g g and evaluatingg our disclosure controls and procedures,
p
management
g
recognizes
g
that any
y controls and
pprocedures, no matter how well designed
g
and operated,
p
can provide
p
onlyy reasonable assurance of achieving
g the
desired control objectives.
j
In addition, the design
g of disclosure controls and pprocedures must reflect the fact that
there are resource constraints and that management
g
is required
q
to apply
pp y jjudgment
g
in evaluating
g the benefits of
possible controls and procedures relative to their costs.
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures
Our management,
g
with the participation
p
p
of our chief executive officer and chief financial officer, evaluated, as of the
end of the pperiod covered byy this Annual Report
p on Form 10-K, the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and
pprocedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange
g Act of 1934, as amended
(the “Exchange
g Act”)). Based on that evaluation, our chief executive officer and chief financial officer concluded
that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of the end of the period covered by this report.
Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
Our management’s
g
report
p on internal control over financial reporting
p
g (as such term is defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and
15d-15(f) under the Exchange
g Act), and the related report
p of our independent
p
registered
g
public
p
accounting
g firm are
set forth in Part II, Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K and are incorporated herein by reference.
Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting
In the ordinary course off business, we routinely enhance ourr information systems by eitherr upgrading currentt
systems
y
orr implementing
p
g new ones. There were no changes
g in ourr internal control overr financial reporting
p
g (as such
term is defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) underr the Exchange
g Act) thatt occurred duringg the year
y r ended
Decemberr 31, 2020 thatt have materiallyy affected, orr are reasonably
y likelyy to materiallyy affect, ourr internal control
overr financial reporting.
Item 9B. Other Information
None.
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PART III
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance
The information required by this item with respect to the Company’s Directors is contained in our definitive proxy
statement (the “Proxy Statement”) for our 2021 Annual Meeting of Stockholders under the heading “Proposal 1:
Election of Directors” and is incorporated herein by reference.
The information required by this item with respect to the Company’s Executive Officers is contained in the Proxy
Statement under the heading “Named Executive Officers” and is incorporated herein by reference.
The information required by this item with respect to compliance with Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act is
contained in the Proxy Statement under the heading “Delinquent Section 16(a) Reports” and is incorporated herein
by reference.
The information required by this item with respect to the Company’s code of ethics that applies to directors, officers,
and employees, including the Company’s principal executive officer, principal financial officer, principal accounting
officer or controller, or persons performing similar functions, is contained in the Proxy Statement under the heading
“Corporate Governance—Code of Ethics” and is incorporated herein by reference.
The information required by this item with respect to the procedures by which security holders may recommend
nominees to the Board is contained in the Proxy Statement under the heading “Stockholders’ Proposals” and is
incorporated herein by reference.
The information required by this item with respect to the Company’s Audit Committee, including the Audit
Committee’s members and its financial experts, is contained in the Proxy Statement under the heading “Committees
of the Board—Audit Committee” and is incorporated herein by reference.
Item 11. Executive Compensation
The information required by this item with respect to executive compensation and director compensation is
contained in the Proxy Statement under the headings “Executive Compensation” and “Director Compensation” and
is incorporated herein by reference.
The information required by this item with respect to compensation committee interlocks and insider participation is
contained in the Proxy Statement under the heading “Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation”
and is incorporated herein by reference.
The compensation committee report required by this item is contained in the Proxy Statement under the heading
“Executive Compensation—Compensation Committee Report” and is incorporated herein by reference.
The information required by this item with respect to compensation policies and practices as they relate to the
Company’s risk management is contained in the Proxy Statement under the heading “Executive Compensation—
Compensation Risk Assessment” and is incorporated herein by reference.
Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder
Matters
The information required by this item with respect to securities authorized for issuance under the Company’s
equity compensation plans is contained in the Proxy Statement under the heading “Equity Compensation Plan
Information” and is incorporated herein by reference.
The information required by this item with respect to the security ownership of certain beneficial owners and
management is contained in the Proxy Statement under the heading “Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial
Owners and Management” and is incorporated herein by reference.
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Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence
The information required by this item with respect to certain relationships and transactions with related parties
is contained in the Proxy Statement under the heading “Certain Relationships” and is incorporated herein by
reference.
The information required by this item with respect to director independence is contained in the Proxy Statement
under the heading “Corporate Governance—Director Independence” and is incorporated herein by reference.
Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services
The information required by this item with respect to audit fees, tax fees, and the audit committee’s preapproval policies and procedures are contained in the Proxy Statement under the heading “Independent Registered
Public Accounting Firm Fees and Other Matters” and is incorporated herein by reference.
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PART IV
Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules
(1) Financial Statements
The followingg financial statements and supplementary
pp
y data are included in Item 8 of this annual report:
p
Page

Reports of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
Consolidated Balance Sheets
Consolidated Statements of Operations
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders' Equity
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

50
53
54
55
56
57
58

(2) Financial Statement Schedules
The information required
q
to be submitted in the Financial Statement Schedules for Medpace
p
Holdings,
g Inc. and
subsidiaries has either been shown in the financial statements or notes, or is not applicable
pp
or required
q
under
Regulation S-X; therefore, those schedules have been omitted.
(3) Exhibits
The exhibits listed in the accompanying
p y g Exhibit Index following
g the signature
g
ppage
g are filed or furnished as a ppart of
this report
p and are incorporated
p
herein byy reference.
Item 16. Form 10-K Summary
None.
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EXHIBIT INDEX
Incorporated by Reference
Exhibit
Number

Exhibit Description

Form

File No.

Exhibit

Filing
Date

3.1

Amended and Restated Certificate of
Incorporation of Medpace Holdings, Inc.

8-K

001-37856

3.1

8/16/16

3.2

Amended and Restated Bylaws of Medpace
Holdings, Inc.

8-K

001-37856

3.2

8/16/16

4.1

Specimen Stock Certificate evidencing
shares of common stock

S-1/A

333-212236

4.1

7/26/16

4.2

Description of Securities

10-K

001-37856

4.3

2/25/20

#10.1

Medpace Holdings, Inc. 2016 Incentive
Award Plan

10-Q

001-37856

10.1

11/3/16

#10.2

Medpace Holdings, Inc. 2016 Senior
Executive Incentive Bonus Plan

10-Q

001-37856

10.2

11/3/16

Registration Rights Agreement

10-Q

001-37856

10.3

11/3/16

Form of Medpace Holdings, Inc. 2016
Incentive Award Plan Restricted Stock
Award Grant Notice

S-1/A

333-212236

10.13

8/1/16

Form of Medpace Holdings, Inc. 2016
Incentive Award Plan Stock Option Grant
Notice and Stock Option Agreement

S-1/A

333-212236

10.14

8/1/16

Form of Medpace Holdings, Inc. 2016
Incentive Award Plan Restricted Stock Unit
Award Grant Notice.

S-1/A

333-212236

10.15

8/1/16

#10.7

Medpace Holdings, Inc. 2016 Incentive
Award Plan Sub-Plan for UK Participants

S-1/A

333-212236

10.16

8/1/16

#10.8

Amended and Restated Employment
Agreement, by and between Medpace
Holdings, Inc. and August J. Troendle

S-1/A

333-212236

10.18

7/26/16

Medpace Holdings, Inc. 2016 Incentive
Award Plan UK Company Share Option
Plan (CSOP) Sub-Plan

S-1/A

333-212236

10.19

8/1/16

Medpace Holdings, Inc. Non-Employee
Director Compensation Policy revised
effective October 25, 2018

10-Q

001-37856

10.1

10/30/18

Loan Agreementt dated as off Septemberr 30,
2019, by and among Medpace, Inc., as
borrower, and PNC Bank, National
Association.

8-K

001-37856

10.1

10/1/19

10.3
#10.4

#10.5

#10.6

#10.9

#10.10

10.11

- 92 -

Filed/
Furnished
Herewith

Incorporated by Reference
Exhibit
Number

10.12

Exhibit Description

Amendmentt No. 1 dated March 30, 2020 to
Loan Agreementt dated as off Septemberr 30,
2019, by and among Medpace, Inc., as
borrower, and PNC Bank, National
Association

Form

File No.

Exhibit

Filing
Date

8-K

001-37856

10.1

4/1/20

Filed/
Furnished
Herewith

10.13

Form off Indemnification Agreement

*

21.1

List of Subsidiaries of Medpace Holdings,
Inc.

*

23.1

Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP,
Independent Registered Public Accounting
Firm

*

31.1

Rule 13a-14(a) / 15d-14(a) Certification of
Chief Executive Officer

*

31.2

Rule 13a-14(a) / 15d-14(a) Certification of
Chief Financial Officer

*

32.1

Section 1350 Certification of Chief
Executive Officer

**

32.2

Section 1350 Certification of Chief Financial
Officer

**

Inline XBRL Instance Document – the
instance document does not appear in the
Interactive Data File because its XBRL tags
are embedded within the Inline XBRL
document

*

101.SCH

Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema
Document

*

101.CAL

Inline XBRL Taxonomy Calculation
Linkbase Document

*

101.DEF

Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension
Definition Linkbase Document

*

101.LAB

Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label
Linkbase Document

*

101.PRE

Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension
Presentation

*

104

Cover Page Interactive Data File (formatted
as Inline XBRL and contained in Exhibit
101)

101.INS

*
**
#

Filed herewith.
Furnished herewith.
Indicates management contract or compensatory plan.
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly
caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.
MEDPACE HOLDINGS, INC.
By: /s/ JESSE J. GEIGER
Name: Jesse J. Geiger
Title: Chief Financial Officer, and Chief Operating
Officer, Laboratory Operations
Date: February 16, 2021
POWER OF ATTORNEY
KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENT that the undersigned
g
officers and directors of Medpace
p
Holdings,
g
Inc. do herebyy constitute and appoint
pp
August
g J. Troendle and Jesse J. Geiger,
g
and each of them, as his or her true
and lawful attorneys-in-fact
y
and agents,
g
with full power
p
of substitution and resubstitution, for him or her and in his
or her name, pplace and stead, in anyy and all capacities,
p
to sign
g anyy and all amendments to this Annual Report
p on
Form 10-K, and to file the same, with all exhibits thereto, and other documents in connection therewith, with the
Securities and Exchange
g Commission, ggrantingg unto said attorneys-in-fact
y
and agents,
g
and each of them, full ppower
and authorityy to do and pperform each and every
y act and thing
g requisite
q
and necessary
y to be done in connection
therewith, as fullyy to all intents and purposes
p p
as he or she might
g or could do in person,
p
hereby
y ratifying
y g and
confirmingg that all said attorneys-in-fact
y
and agents,
g
or any
y of them or their or his or her substitute or substitutes,
mayy lawfully
y do or cause to be done by
y virtue hereof.
Pursuant to the requirements
q
of the Securities Exchange
g Act of 1934, this report
p has been signed
g
below byy the
followingg persons
p
on behalf of the registrant
g
and in the capacities
p
and on the dates indicated.
Signature

Capacity

Date

/s/ AUGUST J. TROENDLE
August J. Troendle

President, Chief Executive Officer and
Chairman of the Board of Directors (Principal
Executive Officer)

February 16, 2021

/s/ JESSE J. GEIGER
Jesse J. Geiger

Chief Financial Officer, and Chief Operating
Officer, Laboratory Operations (Principal
Financial and Accounting Officer)

February 16, 2021

/s/ BRIAN T. CARLEY
Brian T. Carley

Director

/s/ ROBERT O. KRAFT
Robert O. Kraft

Director

February 16, 2021
February 16, 2021

/s/ FRED B. DAVENPORT JR. Director
Fred B. Davenport Jr.
/s/ CORNELIUS P.
MCCARTHY III
Cornelius P. McCarthy III

Director

/s/ ASHLEY M. KEATING
Ashley M. Keating

Director

/s/ THOMAS C. KING
Thomas C. King

Director

February 16, 2021

February 16, 2021
February 16, 2021
February 16, 2021
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Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
RULES 13a-14(a) AND 15d-14(a) UNDER THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
I, August J. Troendle, certify that:
1.

I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Medpace Holdings, Inc.;

2.

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a
material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such
statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3.

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report,
fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the
registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4.

The registrant's other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over
financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

5.

(a)

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to
be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant,
including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly
during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b)

Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial
reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability
of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c)

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of
the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d)

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case
of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal
control over financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of
directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
(a)

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record,
process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b)

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting.

Date: February 16, 2021

By:

/s/ August
g J. Troendle
August J. Troendle
President, Chief Executive Officer and
Chairman of the Board of Directors
(Principal
p Executive Officer)

Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
RULES 13a-14(a) AND 15d-14(a) UNDER THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
I, Jesse J. Geiger, certify that:
1.

I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Medpace Holdings, Inc.;

2.

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a
material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such
statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3.

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report,
fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the
registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4.

The registrant's other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over
financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

5.

(a)

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to
be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant,
including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly
during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b)

Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial
reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability
of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c)

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of
the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d)

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case
of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal
control over financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of
directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
(a)

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record,
process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b)

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting.

Date: February 16, 2021

By:

/s/ Jesse J. Geiger
g
Jesse J. Geiger
Chief Financial Officer and Chief
Operating Officer, Laboratory
Operations
(Principal
p Financial Officer)

Exhibit 32.1
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
In connection with the Annual Report of Medpace Holdings, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2020 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”),
I certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:
(1)

The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934; and

(2)

The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition
and result of operations of the Company for the periods presented therein.

Date: February 16, 2021

By:

/s/ August
g J. Troendle
August J. Troendle
President, Chief Executive Officer and
Chairman of the Board of Directors
(Principal
p Executive Officer)

Exhibit 32.2
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
In connection with the Annual Report of Medpace Holdings, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2020 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”),
I certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:
(1)

The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934; and

(2)

The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition
and result of operations of the Company for the periods presented therein.

Date: February 16, 2021

By:

/s/ Jesse J. Geiger
g
Jesse J. Geiger
Chief Financial Officer and Chief
Operating Officer, Laboratory
Operations
(Principal
p Financial Officer)
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